

### TRITAX BIG BOX REIT PLC

(incorporated with limited liability in England and Wales with registered number 8215888)

### GBP1,500,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme

## unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of Tritax Big Box REIT plc

Under this GBP1,500,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme (the **Programme**), Tritax Big Box REIT plc (the **Issuer**) may from time to time issue notes (the **Notes**) denominated in any currency agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer (as defined below).

The payments of all amounts due in respect of the Notes will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed on a joint and several basis by the Guarantors (as defined below). References in these Base Listing Particulars to the Guarantors are references to Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited; TBBR Holdings 1 Limited; TBBR Holdings 2 Limited; Sherburn Trustee One limited in its capacity as joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust; Sherburn Trustee Two limited in its capacity as joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust; Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd; Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd; Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited; Tritax Atherstone Limited; Tritax Atherstone Limited; Tritax Crewe Limited; Tritax Carlisle Limited; Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited; Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited; Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited; Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited; Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited; Tritax Lymedale Limited; Tritax Peterborough Limited; Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited; Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited; Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited; Baljean Properties Limited; Tritax Knowsley Limited; Sonoma Ventures Limited; Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited; Tritax Worksop Limited; Tritax Ripon Limited; and Tritax Harlow Limited (the Original Guarantors) and each (if any) additional guarantor (each an Additional Guarantor) but shall not include any Subsidiary (as defined under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes") of the Issuer which ceases to be a Guarantor of the relevant Series (as defined under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes") of Notes after the relevant Issue Date, all as described under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes - Status of the Notes and the Notes Guarantee". Notes may be issued in bearer or registered form (respectively, Bearer Notes and Registered Notes). The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme will not exceed GBP1,500,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies calculated as described in the Programme Agreement (as defined below)), subject to increase as described herein.

The Notes may be issued on a continuing basis to one or more of the Dealers specified under "Overview of the Programme" and any additional Dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time by the Issuer (each a **Dealer** and together the **Dealers**), which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongoing basis. References in these Base Listing Particulars to the **relevant Dealer** shall, in the case of an issue of Notes being (or intended to be) subscribed by more than one Dealer, be to all Dealers agreeing to subscribe such Notes.

An investment in Notes issued under the Programme involves certain risks. For a discussion of these risks see "Risk Factors".

These Base Listing Particulars do not constitute a prospectus for the purposes of Article 5 of Directive 2003/71/EC (as such directive may be amended from time to time including by Directive 2010/73/EU, the **Prospectus Directive**). The Issuer is not offering the Notes in any jurisdiction in circumstances that would require a prospectus to be prepared pursuant to the Prospectus Directive.

Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange plc (the **Irish Stock Exchange**) for the approval of this document as base listing particulars (**Base Listing Particulars**). Application has also been made to the Irish Stock Exchange for the Notes to be admitted to the official list (the **Official List**) and to trading on the Global Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange (the **Global Exchange Market**). The Global Exchange Market is not a regulated market for the purposes of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC). These Base Listing Particulars have been approved by the Irish Stock Exchange.

The Programme provides that Notes may be listed or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on such other or further stock exchanges or markets as may be agreed between the Issuer, the Guarantors and the relevant Dealer. The Issuer may also issue unlisted Notes not admitted to trading on any market.

The minimum denomination of any Notes issued under the Programme shall be at least €100,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency as at the date of issue of the Notes).

Notice of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes, interest (if any) payable in respect of Notes, the issue price of Notes and certain other information which is applicable to each Tranche (as defined under "*Terms and Conditions of the Notes*") of Notes will be set out in a pricing supplement document (the **Pricing Supplement**).

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the **Securities Act**) or any U.S. State securities laws and may not be offered or sold in the United States or to, or for the account or the benefit of, U.S. persons as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act unless an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act is available and in accordance with all applicable securities laws of any state of the United States and any other jurisdiction.

The Issuer has been rated Baa1 by Moody's Investors Service Limited (Moody's). The Programme has been rated Baa1 by Moody's. Moody's is established in the European Union and is registered under the Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the **CRA Regulation**). As such, Moody's is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on its website (at http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAs) in accordance with the

CRA Regulation. Notes issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. Where a Tranche of Notes is rated, such rating will be disclosed in the Pricing Supplement and will not necessarily be the same as the rating assigned to the Programme by the relevant rating agency. A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

Arranger

**Barclays** 

**Dealers** 

BNP PARIBAS HSBC

ING NatWest Markets

Santander Global Corporate Banking Wells Fargo Securities

The date of these Base Listing Particulars is 23 November 2017

#### IMPORTANT INFORMATION

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information and each Original Guarantor accepts responsibility for the information in relation to itself contained in these Base Listing Particulars and the Pricing Supplement for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme. To the best of the knowledge of the Issuer and each Original Guarantor (each having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in these Base Listing Particulars is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

Certain information in the "Description of the Issuer" section of these Base Listing Particulars has been extracted from certain third party sources as specified therein. The Issuer confirms that such information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware, and is able to ascertain from information published by such sources, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

These Base Listing Particulars are to be read in conjunction with all documents which are deemed to be incorporated in it by reference (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference"). These Base Listing Particulars shall be read and construed on the basis that those documents are incorporated and form part of these Base Listing Particulars.

None of the Dealers nor the Trustee (as defined below) have independently verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility or liability is accepted by the Dealers, or the Trustee as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained or incorporated in these Base Listing Particulars or any other information provided by the Issuer or the Original Guarantors in connection with the Programme. None of the Dealers nor the Trustee accepts any liability in relation to the information contained or incorporated by reference in these Base Listing Particulars or any other information provided by the Issuer or the Original Guarantors in connection with the Programme.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuer, the Original Guarantors or the Trustee to give any information or to make any representation not contained in or not consistent with these Base Listing Particulars or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer, the Original Guarantors, any of the Dealers or the Trustee.

Neither these Base Listing Particulars nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Notes (a) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (b) should be considered as a recommendation by the Issuer, the Original Guarantors, any of the Dealers or the Trustee that any recipient of these Base Listing Particulars or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Notes should purchase any Notes. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make its own independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuer and/or the Original Guarantors. Neither these Base Listing Particulars nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of any Notes constitutes an offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuer or the Original Guarantors, any of the Dealers or the Trustee to any person to subscribe for or to purchase any Notes.

Neither the delivery of these Base Listing Particulars nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Notes shall in any circumstances imply that the information contained in it concerning the Issuer and/or the Original Guarantors is correct at any time subsequent to its date or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. The Dealers and the Trustee expressly do not undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer or the Original Guarantors during the life of the Programme or to advise any investor in Notes issued under the Programme of any information coming to their attention.

**IMPORTANT** – **EEA RETAIL INVESTORS** – If the Pricing Supplement includes a legend entitled "Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors", the Notes, from 1 January 2018 are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and, with effect from such date, should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic Area (**EEA**). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (**MiFID II**); (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2002/92/EC (**IMD**), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended, the **Prospectus Directive**). Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the **PRIIPs Regulation**) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.

### IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATING TO THE USE OF THESE BASE LISTING PARTICULARS AND OFFERS OF NOTES GENERALLY

These Base Listing Particulars do not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Notes in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The distribution of these Base Listing Particulars and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. The Issuer, the Original Guarantors, the Dealers and the Trustee do not represent that these Base Listing Particulars may be lawfully distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, no action has been taken by the Issuer, the Original Guarantors, the Dealers or the Trustee which is intended to permit a public offering of any Notes or distribution of these Base Listing Particulars in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither these Base Listing Particulars nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations. Persons into whose possession these Base Listing Particulars or any Notes may come must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of these Base Listing Particulars and the offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of these Base Listing Particulars and the offer or sale of Notes in the United States, the EEA (including the United Kingdom), the British Virgin Islands, Jersey, the Isle of Man, Guernsey, and Japan, see "Subscription and Sale".

These Base Listing Particulars have been prepared on the basis that any offer of Notes in any Member State of the EEA which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a **Relevant Member State**) will be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as

implemented in that Relevant Member State, from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Notes. Accordingly any person making or intending to make an offer of Notes which are the subject of an offering contemplated in these Base Listing Particulars as completed by the Pricing Supplement in relation to the offer of those Notes may only do so (i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer, the Original Guarantors or any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer. Neither the Issuer nor any Dealer have authorised, nor do they authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

### PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

#### **Presentation of Financial Information**

Unless otherwise indicated, the financial information in these Base Listing Particulars relating to the Issuer has been derived from (i) the audited consolidated financial statements of the Issuer for the financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 and (ii) the unaudited reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Issuer for the six months ended 30 June 2017 (together, the **Financial Statements**).

The Issuer's financial year ends on 31 December and references in these Base Listing Particulars to any specific year are to the 12-month period ended on 31 December of such year. The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

### **Certain Defined Terms and Conventions**

Capitalised terms which are used but not defined in any particular section of these Base Listing Particulars will have the meaning attributed to them in "*Terms and Conditions of the Notes*" or any other section of these Base Listing Particulars. In addition, the following terms as used in these Base Listing Particulars have the meanings defined below:

### In these Base Listing Particulars, all references to:

- *U.S. dollars*, *U.S.*\$ and \$ refer to United States dollars;
- Sterling, £ and GBP refer to pounds sterling;
- euro and e refer to the lawful single currency of the member states of the European Union that have adopted and continue to retain a common single currency through monetary union in accordance with European Union treaty law (as amended from time to time); and
- references to *yen* are to the lawful currency of Japan.

References to a billion are to a thousand million.

Certain figures and percentages included in these Base Listing Particulars have been subject to rounding adjustments; accordingly, figures shown in the same category presented in different tables may vary slightly and figures shown as totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures which precede them.

#### SUITABILITY OF INVESTMENT

The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors. Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor may wish to consider, either on its own or with the help of its financial and other professional advisers, whether it:

- (i) has sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the merits and risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained or incorporated by reference in these Base Listing Particulars or any applicable supplement;
- (ii) has access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its particular financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact the Notes will have on its overall investment portfolio;
- (iii) has sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Notes, including Notes where the currency for principal or interest payments is different from the potential investor's currency;
- (iv) understands thoroughly the terms of the Notes and is familiar with the behaviour of any relevant indices and financial markets; and
- (v) is able to evaluate possible scenarios for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the applicable risks.

Legal investment considerations may restrict certain investments. The investment activities of certain investors are subject to investment laws and regulations, or review or regulation by certain authorities. Each potential investor should consult its legal advisers to determine whether and to what extent (1) Notes are legal investments for it, (2) Notes can be used as collateral for various types of borrowing and (3) other restrictions apply to its purchase or pledge of any Notes. Financial institutions should consult their legal advisers or the appropriate regulators to determine the appropriate treatment of Notes under any applicable risk-based capital or similar rules.

#### **STABILISATION**

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the Stabilisation Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilisation Manager(s)) in the applicable Pricing Supplement may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However stabilisation may not necessarily occur. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes is made and, if begun, may cease at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant Tranche of Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of Notes. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilisation Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilisation Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.

### **CONTENTS**

	Page
Overview of the Programme	10
Risk Factors	
Documents Incorporated by Reference	35
Form of the Notes	36
Form of Pricing Supplement	40
Use of Proceeds	104
Description of the Issuer	105
Description of the Original Guarantors	129
Taxation	
Subscription and Sale	183
General Information	188

#### **OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRAMME**

The following overview does not purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by, the remainder of these Base Listing Particulars and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche of Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement. The Issuer, the Guarantors and any relevant Dealer may agree that Notes shall be issued in a form other than that contemplated in the Terms and Conditions.

Words and expressions defined in "Form of the Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the Notes" shall have the same meanings in this Overview.

Issuer: Tritax Big Box REIT plc

Guarantors: Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited

TBBR Holdings 1 Limited TBBR Holdings 2 Limited

Sherburn Trustee One Limited in its capacity as joint

trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust

Sherburn Trustee Two Limited in its capacity as joint

trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust

Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited
Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited

Tritax Atherstone Limited<sup>1</sup>

Tritax Atherstone Limited<sup>2</sup>

Tritax Crewe Limited Tritax Carlisle Limited

Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited

Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This is company is incorporated in England and Wales

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> This company is incorporated in Jersey

Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited
Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited
Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited
Tritax Lymedale Limited
Tritax Peterborough Limited
Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited
Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited
Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited
Baljean Properties Limited
Tritax Knowsley Limited
Tritax Burton Upon Trent Limited
Tritax Worksop Limited
Tritax Ripon Limited
Tritax Harlow Limited

### (together, the **Original Guarantors**)

and each Additional Guarantor (if any) as defined under the "Terms and Conditions of the Notes".

In relation to each Series, any of the Original Guarantors or any Additional Guarantor may after the relevant Issue Date (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) cease to be a guarantor, as described in Condition 3.3 (Status of the Notes and the Guarantee – Release of a Guarantor) of the Conditions of the Notes.

Certain limitations in respect of the Guarantors will be included in the Trust Deed and as more fully described under "Status of the Notes and the Guarantee". In the event that an Additional Guarantor is added pursuant to Condition 3.4 (Status of the Notes and the Guarantee – Additional Guarantors), any applicable limitations shall be set out in the relevant supplemental Trust Deed applicable to such Additional Guarantor.

There are certain factors that may affect the Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under Notes issued under the Programme. There are also certain factors that may affect the Original Guarantors' ability to fulfil their obligations under the Guarantee (as defined in Condition 3.2 (Status of the Notes and the Guarantee – Status of the Guarantee)). In addition, there are certain factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with Notes issued under the Programme and risks relating to the structure of a particular Series of Notes issued under the Programme. All of these are set out under "Risk Factors".

Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Barclays Bank PLC

11

**Risk Factors:** 

Description:

Arranger:

Dealers:

Certain Restrictions:

Banco Santander, S.A. Barclays Bank PLC

BNP Paribas HSBC Bank plc ING Bank N.V.

The Royal Bank of Scotland plc (trading as NatWest

Markets)

Wells Fargo Securities International Limited

and any other Dealers appointed in accordance with the Programme Agreement.

E

Each issue of Notes denominated in a currency in respect of which particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which comply with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements from time to time (see "Subscription and Sale") including the following restrictions applicable at the date of these Base Listing Particulars.

### Notes having a maturity of less than one year

Notes having a maturity of less than one year will constitute deposits for the purposes of the prohibition on accepting deposits contained in section 19 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA) unless they are issued to a limited class of professional investors and have a denomination of at least £100,000 or its equivalent, see "Subscription and Sale".

Trustee: BNY Mellon Corporate Trustee Services Limited.

Issuing and Principal Paying The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch.

Agent:

Programme Size: Up to GBP1,500,000,000 (or its equivalent in other

currencies calculated as described in the Programme Agreement) outstanding at any time. The Issuer and the Original Guarantors may increase the amount of the Programme in accordance with the terms of the

Programme Agreement.

Distribution: Notes may be distributed by way of private or public

placement and in each case on a syndicated or non-

syndicated basis.

Currencies: Subject to any applicable legal or regulatory restrictions,

notes may be denominated in euro, Sterling, U.S. dollars, yen and any other currency agreed between the Issuer

and the relevant Dealer.

Maturities: The Notes will have such maturities as may be agreed

between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer, subject to

such minimum or maximum maturities as may be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the Issuer or the relevant Specified Currency.

Issue Price:

Notes may be issued on a fully-paid or a partly-paid basis and at an issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or premium over, par.

Form of Notes

The Notes will be issued in either bearer or registered form as described in "Form of the Notes". Registered Notes will not be exchangeable for Bearer Notes and vice versa.

Fixed Rate Notes:

Fixed interest will be payable on such date or dates as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer and on redemption and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Floating Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:

- (a) on the same basis as the floating rate under a notional interest rate swap transaction in the relevant Specified Currency governed by an agreement incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions (as published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc., and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes of the relevant Series); or
- (b) on the basis of the reference rate set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes in respect of each Interest Period, as agreed prior to issue by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer, will be payable on such Interest Payment Dates, and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction, as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer for each Series of Floating Rate Notes.

Floating Rate Notes may also have a maximum interest rate, a minimum interest rate or both.

Zero Coupon Notes:

Zero Coupon Notes will be offered and sold at a discount to their nominal amount and will not bear interest.

Other Types of Notes:

The Issuer may issue various types of Notes including Index Linked Notes, Dual Currency Notes, Partly Paid Notes or Notes redeemable in one or more instalments:

Index Linked Notes: Payments of principal in respect of Index Linked Redemption Notes or of interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes will be calculated by reference to such index and/or formula or to changes in the prices of securities or commodities or to such other factors as the Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

**Dual Currency Notes:** Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual Currency Notes will be made in such currencies, and based on such rates of exchange, as the Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

**Partly Paid Notes:** The Issuer may issue Notes in respect of which the issue price is paid in separate instalments in such amounts and on such dates as the Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

Notes redeemable in instalments: The Issuer may issue Notes which may be redeemed in separate instalments in such amounts and on such dates as the Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

The Issuer and each Original Guarantor may agree with any Dealer and the Trustee that Notes may be issued in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes, in which event the relevant provisions will be included in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will indicate either that the relevant Notes cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than in the case of Notes in specified instalments, if applicable, or for taxation reasons or following an Event of Default) or that such Notes will be redeemable at the option of the Issuer and/or the Noteholders upon giving notice to the Noteholders or the Issuer, as the case may be, on a date or dates specified prior to such stated maturity and at a price or prices and on such other terms as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Notes having a maturity of less than one year may be subject to restrictions on their denomination and distribution, see "Certain Restrictions - Notes having a maturity of less than one year" above.

Redemption:

Optional Redemption by Noteholders following a Change of Control:

The applicable Pricing Supplement will indicate if a Change of Control put will apply to the relevant Notes. If applicable, then upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, the holder of each Note will have the option to require the Issuer to redeem or, at the Issuer's option, purchase (or procure the purchase of) that Note as further described in Condition 7.6 (*Redemption and Purchase - Redemption at the option of the Noteholders upon a change of control (Change of Control Put)*).

Denomination of Notes:

The Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer save that the minimum denomination of each Note will be such amount as may be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the relevant Specified Currency, see "Certain Restrictions - Notes having a maturity of less than one year" above, and save that the minimum denomination of each Note will be €100,000 (or, if the Notes are denominated in a currency other than euro, the equivalent amount in such currency).

Taxation:

All payments in respect of the Notes will be made without deduction for or on account of withholding taxes imposed by any Tax Jurisdiction as provided in Condition 8 (*Taxation*). In the event that any such deduction is made, the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Original Guarantors will, save in certain limited circumstances provided in Condition 8 (*Taxation*), be required to pay additional amounts to cover the amounts so deducted.

Negative Pledge and other Covenants:

Negative Pledge: The terms of the Notes will contain a negative pledge provision as further described in Condition 4.1 (*Covenants – Negative pledge*).

Under the terms of the Notes, the Issuer will also ensure that:

- (a) Net Borrowings shall not, in respect of any Measurement Period on the last day of such Measurement Period, exceed 175 per cent. of Adjusted Capital and Reserves; and
- (b) Net Unsecured Borrowings shall not, in respect of any Measurement Period on the last day of such Measurement Period, exceed 70 per cent. of Unencumbered Assets,

all as further described in Condition 4.2 (*Covenants – Financial Covenants*).

Cross Acceleration:

The terms of the Notes will contain a cross acceleration provision as further described in Condition 10 (*Events of Default and Enforcement*).

Status of the Notes:

The Notes will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject to the provisions of Condition 4.1 (*Covenants – Negative pledge*)) unsecured obligations of the Issuer and will rank *pari passu* among themselves and (save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law) equally with all other unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if any) of the Issuer, from time to time outstanding.

Guarantee:

The Notes will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Guarantors. The obligations of each of the Guarantors under the Guarantee will be direct, unconditional and (subject to the provisions of Condition 4.1 (*Covenants – Negative Pledge*) unsecured obligations of each of the Guarantors and will rank *pari passu* and (save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law) equally with all other unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if any) of each of the Guarantors from time to time outstanding.

In relation to each Series, any of the Original Guarantors or any Additional Guarantor may after the relevant Issue Date cease to be a guarantor, as described in Condition 3.3 (*Status of the Notes and the Guarantee – Release of a Guarantor*) of the Conditions of the Notes.

The Issuer has been rated Baa1 and the Programme has been rated Baa1 by Moody's. Series of Notes issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated. Where a Series of Notes is rated, such rating will be disclosed in the applicable Pricing Supplement and will not necessarily be the same as the rating assigned to the Programme. A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange for the Notes to be admitted to listing on the Official List of the Irish Stock Exchange and to trading on the Global Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange, with effect from the Issue Date or such other date as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Notes may be listed and/or admitted to trading, as the case may be, on other or further stock exchanges or markets agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer in relation to the Series. Notes which are neither listed nor admitted to trading on any market may also be

Rating:

Listing:

issued.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will state whether or not the relevant Notes are to be listed and/or admitted to trading and, if so, on which stock exchanges and/or markets.

Governing Law:

The Notes and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Notes will be governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.

Selling Restrictions:

There are restrictions on the offer, sale and transfer of the Notes in the United States, the EEA (including the United Kingdom), the British Virgin Islands, Jersey, the Isle of Man, Guernsey and Japan and such other restrictions as may be required in connection with the offering and sale of a particular Tranche of Notes, see "Subscription and Sale".

United States Restrictions:

Selling Regulation S, Category 2. TEFRA C or D/TEFRA not applicable, as specified in the applicable Pricing

Supplement.

#### **RISK FACTORS**

In purchasing Notes, investors assume the risk that the Issuer and each Original Guarantor may become insolvent or otherwise be unable to make all payments due in respect of the Notes or under the Guarantee. There is a wide range of factors which individually or together could result in the Issuer and the Original Guarantors becoming unable to make all payments due. It is not possible to identify all such factors or to determine which factors are most likely to occur, as the Issuer and the Original Guarantors may not be aware of all relevant factors and certain factors which they currently deem not to be material may become material as a result of the occurrence of events outside the Issuer's and the Original Guarantors' control. The Issuer and each Original Guarantor have identified in these Base Listing Particulars a number of factors which could materially adversely affect their businesses and ability to make payments due under the Notes and the Guarantee.

In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with Notes issued under the Programme are also described below.

Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in these Base Listing Particulars and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

## FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT THE ISSUER AND THE GUARANTORS' ABILITY TO FULFIL THEIR RESPECTIVE OBLIGATIONS UNDER NOTES ISSUED UNDER THE PROGRAMME AND THE GUARANTEE

The performance of the Issuer and its subsidiary undertakings (the REIT Group) will depend on general real estate market conditions

Both the condition of the real estate market and the overall UK economy will impact the returns of the Issuer, and hence may have a negative impact on or delay the REIT Group's ability to execute investments in suitable assets that generate acceptable returns. Market conditions may also negatively impact the revenues earned from the real estate assets in the investment portfolio of the Issuer, as set out under "Description of the Issuer and the REIT Group – Portfolio" (the Portfolio) and the price at which the REIT Group is able to dispose of those assets. In these circumstances, the REIT Group's ability to make distributions to shareholders and make payments due under the Notes from rental income could be affected. A severe fall in values may result in the REIT Group selling assets from its Portfolio to repay its loan commitments. These outcomes may, in turn, have an adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

### The REIT Group is exposed to risks related to the UK Government's decision to trigger Article 50 of the Treaty of Lisbon

The REIT Group faces potential risks associated with the "leave" result of the referendum on the United Kingdom's continued membership of the EU held on 23 June 2016. Article 50 of the Treaty of Lisbon was triggered by the UK Government on 29 March 2017, beginning a two-year period of negotiation with the EU to conclude a withdrawal agreement. In the absence of unanimous agreement between the European Council and the UK Government to extend the negotiation period, rights and obligations which derive from current EU legislation would no longer apply in the UK beyond 29 March 2019 to the extent that they have not been implemented in UK law. Agreements between the EU and third-party countries would also cease to apply to the UK after the expiry of this period and would have to be negotiated separately. The eventual outcome and the way that policies over the exit will be negotiated is impossible to predict at this time.

Import costs have increased due to Sterling's devaluation and may rise further once the UK leaves the EU, depending on any trade taxes and tariffs that are negotiated. This could increase UK inflation. The majority of the REIT Group's tenants are retailers with domestically focused sales. Those that import from the EU are likely to experience cost increases, which could squeeze their profits (at least in the short-term) and/or be passed on to UK consumers.

Conversely, potential action by central banks to counter inflation, such as the 0.25 per cent rise in the Bank of England base rate on 2 November 2017, will mean an appreciation in the value of Sterling and cheaper imports. However, such action will increase the cost of borrowing and could provoke slower economic growth in the UK. This could have a consequential negative impact on the REIT Group's tenants and the UK property market.

Negative impacts on the REIT Group's tenants and the UK property market could materially and adversely affect the Portfolio value and therefore, its ability to raise funds for potential acquisitions or refinance its existing debt facilities. Continuing political and economic uncertainty and instability could also materially and adversely affect the operational, regulatory, insurance and tax regime to which the REIT Group is currently subject. The effect of these risks could be to increase compliance and operating costs for the REIT Group and may also materially affect the REIT Group's tax position or business, results of operation and financial position more generally.

Negative changes in the financial condition of a significant number of the REIT Group's tenants, including actual customer failure, could also result in a substantial decline in the REIT Group's rental income or its ability to comply with its financial covenants. Similarly, a decline in demand for the REIT Group's services could result in a substantial decrease in the REIT Group's rental income. Such a decline could result from a range of factors affecting individual circumstances of customers or affecting customers more broadly. These factors could each have a material adverse impact on the REIT Group's business, prospects, financial condition and/or results of operations.

### Increasing competition for investment property in the Big Box sector

Big Box assets appeal to a broad spread of potential investors including other listed property specialists and funds together with pension and insurance companies and family offices. While the Issuer has been one of the most active investors in Big Box assets to date, other competitors may have greater financial resources than the Issuer or greater ability to borrow or leverage funds to acquire properties. Competition for available income producing investment properties is strong, hence there is no assurance that the Issuer will continue to be able to secure suitable Big Box assets.

In the event that the Issuer is unable to invest in suitable Big Box assets, this may have an adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects, which may affect the Issuer's ability to meet distribution targets and the ability of the Issuer and Guarantors to meet their payment obligations in respect of the Notes.

### The Issuer's future performance will depend on the performance of the UK retail sector

The Issuer's future performance will depend on the performance of the UK retail sector and continued growth of online retail. The Issuer will continue to focus exclusively on the UK Big Box sector, a sub-sector of the UK logistics market, therefore it will have direct reliance on the online and general retailer distribution requirements in the UK. Insolvencies in the larger retailers and online retailers (in particular those retailers who are tenants of the REIT Group) could affect the Issuer's revenues and property valuations. Retail is a dynamic sector and

operators are directly affected by consumer behaviour and sentiment. The Issuer could be affected by shopping trends and alternative retail supply methods. A weakness in the UK retail sector and shifts in geographical focus, together with reliance on concentrated individual tenants, may have an adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

### The Issuer's use of floating rate debt will expose the business to underlying interest rate movements

The Issuer is exposed to movements in interest rates which affect the amount of interest paid on its borrowings and the return on its cash investments. Interest rate derivatives protect the Issuer from significant increases in underlying interest rates, by either fixing or capping the level to which interest rates on borrowings can rise. To the extent that any of the Issuer's interest rate exposure remains unhedged, adverse movements in interest rates may have a material adverse impact on the Issuer's business, prospects, financial condition and/or results of operations. In addition, hedging arrangements expose the Issuer to credit risk in respect of the hedging counterparty.

### A lack of debt funding at appropriate rates may restrict the Issuer's ability to grow

The Issuer uses gearing to enhance equity returns. There is no assurance that debt funding will continue to be available under acceptable commercial terms and at appropriate rates. Without sufficient debt funding, the Issuer may be unable to pursue further suitable investments in line with the its investment policy (as detailed under "Description of the Issuer and the REIT Group – Investment Policy") (the Investment Policy). These outcomes may, in turn, have a material adverse effect on performance of the Issuer.

### The Issuer must be able to operate within its debt covenants

The terms of the Issuer's debt facilities and the Conditions of the Notes contain loan to value covenants. If real estate assets owned by the REIT Group decrease in value, such covenants could be breached, and the impact of such an event could include: an increase in borrowing costs; a call for additional capital from the lender; payment of a fee to the lender; a sale of an asset; or a forfeit of any asset to a lender. This could result in a total or partial loss of equity value for each specific asset or indeed the REIT Group as a whole and could affect the ability of the Issuer and the Guarantors to meet their payment obligations in respect of the Notes.

### The past or current performance of the REIT Group is not a guarantee of the future performance of the REIT Group

The past or current performance of the REIT Group is not indicative, or intended to be indicative, of future performance of the REIT Group or of the ability of the Issuer or the Guarantors to meet their payment obligations under the Notes.

### The appraised value of the REIT Group's properties may not accurately reflect the current or future value of the REIT Group's assets

The valuation of property is inherently subjective owing to the individual nature of each property and is based on a number of assumptions which may not turn out to be true, meaning that actual prices paid by the REIT Group for the real estate assets in the Portfolio may not reflect the valuations of the properties.

In determining the value of properties, valuers are required to make assumptions in respect of matters including, but not limited to, the existence of willing buyers in uncertain market

conditions, title, condition of structure and services, deleterious materials, plant and machinery and goodwill, environmental matters, statutory requirements and planning, expected future rental revenues from the property and other information. Such assumptions may prove to be inaccurate. Incorrect assumptions underlying the valuation reports could negatively affect the value of any property assets the REIT Group acquires and thereby have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's financial condition. This is particularly so in periods of volatility or when there is limited real estate transactional data against which property valuations can be benchmarked. There can also be no assurance that these valuations will be reflected in the actual transaction prices, even where any such transactions occur shortly after the relevant valuation date, or that the estimated yield and annual rental income will prove to be attainable.

To the extent valuations of the REIT Group's properties do not fully reflect the value of the underlying properties, whether due to the above factors or otherwise, this may have a material adverse effect on the Issuer's financial condition, business prospects and results of operations.

### Any costs associated with potential investments that do not proceed to completion will affect the Issuer's performance

The Issuer can incur certain third party costs associated with sourcing of suitable assets, including legal fees and the fees of other advisers. Whilst the Issuer will always seek to minimise any such costs, it can give no assurances as to the ongoing level of these costs or that negotiations to acquire such assets will be successful; the greater number of these deals which do not reach completion, the greater impact of such costs on the Issuer's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

### The Issuer's performance may be adversely affected by changes to planning legislation or practice

The Issuer's ability to carry out asset management proposals to maximise returns from properties, including extensions and structural changes, together with the supply, through new development, of new Big Box units is often subject to planning decisions on a local and national level which could lead to delays and constraints on the Issuer's financial performance.

### A default by a major tenant could result in a significant loss of letting income, void costs, a reduction in asset value and increased bad debts

A downturn in business, bankruptcy or insolvency could force a major tenant of the REIT Group to default on its rental obligations and/or vacate the premises. Such a default could result in a loss of rental income, void costs, an increase in bad debts and a decrease in the value of the relevant property. A default by a major tenant could have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects. This risk would not apply to a developer that has a non-occupational licence and pays a licence fee for a property under development pursuant to a forward funded contract, as the licence fee payable by a developer is placed in a locked bank account in favour of the REIT Group at the commencement of the contract.

### The REIT Group is dependent on the performance of third party contractors and subcontractors who may fail to perform their contractual obligations

Where the REIT Group seeks to create value by undertaking limited development of Big Box assets, or by investing in a pre-let but in-development assets, the REIT Group is dependent on the performance of third party contractors and sub-contractors. Whilst the REIT Group seeks

to negotiate contracts to contain appropriate warranty protection, any failure to perform against contractual obligations on the part of a contractor could adversely impact the value of the REIT Group's property assets which may, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

In addition, there is a risk of disputes with third party contractors or sub-contractors should they fail to perform against contractual obligations. Any litigation or arbitration resulting from any such disputes may increase the REIT Group's expenses and distract the Issuer and the Issuer's investment manager, Tritax Management LLP (the **Manager**) (see "*Description of the Issuer and the REIT Group – Manager*") from focusing their time to fulfil the strategy of the Issuer.

### Consequences of assignment by tenants of properties that the REIT Group may acquire in the future

The terms contained within the leases of the real estate assets in the Portfolio vary from lease to lease and are dependent upon the terms agreed between the original landlord and tenant at the time of the grant of the relevant lease. There is a risk that an assignor may not be required to give an authorised guarantee agreement or may only be required to do so if reasonably required by the landlord (as opposed to an absolute obligation to provide the guarantee). If an assignee is less creditworthy than the assignor, there would be an increased risk of tenant default, which could result in delays in receipt of rental and other contractual payments, by the REIT Group, inability to collect such payments at all or the termination of a tenant's lease.

## The discovery of previously undetected environmentally hazardous conditions in the REIT Group's properties could result in unforeseen remedial work or future liabilities even after disposal of such property

Under applicable environmental laws, a current or previous property owner may be liable for the cost of removing or remediating hazardous or toxic substances on, under or in such property, which cost could be substantial. While the Manager undertakes environmental due diligence before acquiring properties, there is still a risk that third parties may seek to recover from the REIT Group for personal injury or property damage associated with exposure to any release of hazardous substances. Payment of damages could adversely affect the Issuer's ability to make distributions to shareholders and to meet its payment obligation under the Notes.

Furthermore, the presence of environmentally hazardous substances, or the failure to remediate damage caused by such substances, may adversely affect the REIT Group's ability to sell or lease the relevant property at a level that would support the REIT Group's investment strategy which would, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

# Any forward funded projects will be subject to the hazards and risks normally associated with the construction and development of commercial real estate, any of which could result in increased costs and/or damage to persons or property

The Investment Policy provides that the REIT Group may purchase already built property assets or, in some circumstances, forward fund property assets that are in construction. Forward funded projects are subject to the hazards and risks normally associated with the construction and development of commercial real estate, including personal injury and property damage. To the extent that such risks are not assumed by the developer, the occurrence of any of these events could result in increased operating costs, fines and legal fees and potentially in reputational damage or criminal prosecution of the Issuer, and its

directors or management, all of which could have an adverse effect on the Issuer's business, financial condition, results of operations or future prospects. However, for all of the Issuer's investments in forward funded assets at the date of these Base Listing Particulars, such risks have been assumed by the developer.

### The REIT Group may not be able to dispose of its investments in a timely fashion and at satisfactory prices

As property assets are expected to be relatively illiquid, such illiquidity may affect the REIT Group's ability to dispose of or liquidate the Portfolio in a timely fashion. In addition, to the extent that market conditions are not favourable or deteriorate, the REIT Group may not be able to realise the real estate assets from the Portfolio at satisfactory prices. This could affect the profitability and general financial health of the REIT Group, which could in turn impact the ability of the Issuer and the Guarantors to meet their payment obligations under the Notes and the guarantee, respectively.

### The Issuer may be subject to liability following disposal of investments

The Issuer may be exposed to future liabilities and/or obligations with respect to the disposal of real estate assets in the Portfolio. The Issuer may be required to set aside money for warranty claims or contingent liabilities in respect of property disposals. The Issuer may be required to pay damages (including but not limited to litigation costs) to the extent that any representations or warranties that it has given to a purchaser prove to be inaccurate or to the extent that it has breached any of its covenants contained in the disposal documentation. In certain circumstances, it is possible that any incorrect representations and warranties could give rise to a right by the purchaser to unwind the contract in addition to the payment of damages. Further, the Issuer may become involved in disputes or litigation in connection with such disposed investments. Certain obligations and liabilities associated with the ownership of investments can also continue to exist notwithstanding any disposal, such as environmental liabilities. Any such claims, litigation or obligations, and any steps which the Issuer is required to take to meet the cost, such as sales of assets or increased borrowings, could have an adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

#### The REIT Group may not acquire 100 per cent. control of its investments

The Issuer's investment strategy does not restrict the REIT Group from entering into a variety of investment structures, such as joint ventures, acquisitions of controlling interests or acquisitions of minority interests. However, the Issuer does not propose that the REIT Group will take a passive or minority interest in Big Box investments in the future and, as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars, all real estate assets in the Portfolio are wholly owned by the REIT Group. In the event that the REIT Group acquires less than a 100 per cent. interest in a particular asset, the remaining ownership interest will be held by third parties and the subsequent management and control of such an asset may entail risks associated with multiple owners and decision-makers. Any such investment also involves the risk that third party owners might become insolvent or fail to fund their share of any capital contribution which might be required. In addition, such third parties may have economic or other interests which are inconsistent with the REIT Group's interests, or they may obstruct the REIT Group's plans (for example, in implementing active asset management measures), or they may propose alternative plans. If such third parties are in a position to take or influence actions contrary to the REIT Group's interests and plans, the REIT Group may face the potential risk of impasses on decisions that affect the ability to implement its strategies and/or dispose of the real estate asset. The above circumstances may have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

In addition, there is a risk of disputes between the REIT Group and third parties who have an interest in the Big Box asset in question. Any litigation or arbitration resulting from any such disputes may increase the REIT Group's expenses and distract the Issuer and the Manager from focusing their time to fulfil the Issuer's Investment Objective. The REIT Group may also, in certain circumstances, be liable for the actions of such third parties.

### The Issuer is a holding company that has no revenue generating operations of its own

The Issuer is a holding company that conducts no business quotations and has no revenue generating operations of its own. It therefore depends on revenues generated by its subsidiary undertakings in order for it to be able to make payments on the Notes.

### The REIT Group is exposed to counterparty credit risk

There is a risk of a loss being sustained by the REIT Group as a result of payment default by a counterparty with whom the REIT Group places surplus funds on deposit or an in-the-money derivative contract. There can be no assurance that the REIT Group will successfully manage this risk, which may have a material adverse impact on the REIT Group's business, prospects, financial condition and/or results of operations.

Adverse conditions in the financial market, such as the global financial crisis that began in 2007, or other factors, could inhibit the ability of a counterparty to honour its pre-existing lending or derivative contract commitments with the REIT Group and could limit the REIT Group's ability to access new funding over the longer term. While the Issuer has no reason to believe that these commitments will not remain outstanding and available to it during the term of such lending commitments, if, in the longer term, the REIT Group is unable to access funding available under its existing credit facilities, or is unable to access funding through alternative arrangements in the longer term, it may be unable to meet its financial obligations (including interest payments, loan repayments, operating expenses, development costs and dividends) when they fall due or to raise new funding needed to finance its operations. Actions by counterparties who fail to fulfil their obligations to the REIT Group, as well as the inability of the REIT Group to access new funding in the longer term, may impact the REIT Group's cash flow and liquidity. Such consequences may have a material adverse impact on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

### The REIT Group is dependent on its tenants

The REIT Group is dependent on its tenants for letting income. If occupancy levels were to decline, it could lead to a loss of rental income. There can be no assurance that the REIT Group's existing tenants will renew their leases or, alternatively, that new tenants of equivalent standing (or at all) will be found to take up replacement leases. The REIT Group may face difficulties in renewing current leases with existing tenants or entering into leases with new tenants on satisfactory terms. Furthermore, even if such renewals are effected or replacement leases are granted, there can be no assurance that such renewals or replacement leases will be on terms as favourable as those which exist before such termination. This could have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

#### Risk relating to the Manager

### The REIT Group is dependent on the efforts of the Manager and the Manager's investment team, together with the performance and retention of key personnel

The REIT Group is reliant on the management and advisory services the REIT Group receives from the Manager. As a result, the REIT Group's performance is, to a large extent, dependent upon the ability of the Manager. Any failure to source assets, execute transactions or manage investments by the Manager may have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance. Furthermore, there can be no assurance as to the continued involvement of the Manager's investment team with the Manager or (indirectly) with the REIT Group. The departure of any of the Manager's investment team without adequate replacement may also have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance.

The Manager is also responsible for carrying out the day-to-day management of the REIT Group's affairs and, therefore, any disruption to the services of the Manager could cause a significant disruption to the REIT Group's operations until a suitable replacement is found.

In addition, the REIT Group only has limited control over the personnel of or used by the Manager. If any such personnel were to do anything or be alleged to do anything that may be the subject of public criticism or other negative publicity or may lead to investigation, litigation or sanction, this may have an adverse impact on the REIT Group by association, even if the criticism or publicity is factually inaccurate or unfounded and notwithstanding that the REIT Group may have no involvement with, or control over, the relevant act or alleged act. Any damage to the reputation of the personnel of the Manager could result in potential counterparties and other third parties such as occupiers, landlords, joint venture partners, lenders or developers being unwilling to deal with the Manager and/or the REIT Group. This may have a material adverse effect on the ability of the REIT Group to successfully pursue its investment strategy and may have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's financial condition, business prospects and results of operations.

### The Manager's acquisition due diligence may not identify all risks and liabilities

Prior to entering into any agreement to acquire any property, the Manager, on behalf of the REIT Group, will perform or procure the performance of due diligence on the proposed acquisition target. In so doing, they would typically rely in part on third parties to conduct a significant portion of this due diligence (such as surveyors' reports and legal reports on title and property valuations).

To the extent the REIT Group, the Manager or other third parties underestimate or fail to identify risks and liabilities associated with the investment in question, the REIT Group may incur, directly or indirectly, unexpected liabilities, such as defects in title, an inability to obtain permits, or environmental, structural or operational defects requiring remediation. In addition, if there is a failure of due diligence, there may be a risk that properties are acquired which are not consistent with the Issuer's Investment Objective and Investment Policy, that properties are acquired that fail to perform in accordance with projections or that material defects or liabilities are not covered by insurance proceeds. This may, in turn, have a material adverse effect on the REIT Group's performance, financial condition and business prospects.

### Risk relating to the structure, regulation and taxation

### If the Issuer fails to remain qualified as a REIT, its rental income and gains will be subject to UK corporation tax

Those corporate groups that satisfy the relevant conditions (the **REIT Conditions**) contained in the UK tax legislation governing real estate investment trusts benefit from a number of UK corporation tax benefits. More particularly, certain property rental income and chargeable gains of the group members that derive from the holding and sale of investment properties will benefit from an exemption from corporation tax in their hands. For so long as those legislative conditions are satisfied by the REIT Group, the UK corporation tax payable by the REIT Group is expected to be very materially reduced as compared to the amount that would otherwise be payable. The Issuer has taken advice to endeavour to ensure that the REIT conditions (such as the distribution condition referred to under "Distribution requirements may limit the REIT Group's flexibility in executing the REIT Group's acquisition plans") are and remain satisfied. However, the Issuer cannot guarantee the continued compliance with all of the REIT Conditions and there is a risk that the REIT regime may cease to apply in certain circumstances. If the Issuer fails to remain qualified as a REIT, members of the REIT Group may be subject to UK corporation tax on some or all of their property rental income and chargeable gains on the sale of properties which would reduce the amounts available to meet its payment obligations under the Notes.

### Adverse changes in taxation law and in the tax position of the Issuer

UK taxation legislation and interpretation are subject to change. In particular, an increase in the rates of stamp duty land tax could have a material impact on the price at which UK land can be acquired and, therefore, on asset values. Changes to the requirements that must be complied with in order to retain REIT status could impose extra costs or constraints on the Issuer. The UK government has been known to introduce retrospective tax legislation and this cannot be ruled out in the future. This could impact the ability of the Issuer and the Guarantors to meet their payment obligations under the Notes.

### Distribution requirements may limit the REIT Group's flexibility in executing the REIT Group's acquisition plans

The Issuer's business model contemplates future growth to its investment Portfolio through the acquisition of Big Box assets. However, to obtain full exemption from tax on the its tax-exempt business afforded by the UK real estate investment trust (**REIT**) tax regime, the Issuer is required to distribute annually (either in cash or by way of stock dividend) to its shareholders, at least 90 per cent. of the REIT Group's rental income as calculated for tax purposes each year. The REIT Group would be required to pay tax at regular corporate rates on any shortfall to the extent that it distributes less than the amount required to meet the 90 per cent. distribution test each year. Therefore, the REIT Group's ability to grow its investment Portfolio through acquisitions with a value in excess of its permitted retained earnings and uninvested capital will be limited by the REIT Group's ability to obtain further debt or equity financing.

### Disposal of properties may have unfavourable tax consequences

If a subsidiary disposes of a property in a manner indicative of a company that is trading in property rather than investing, the property may be treated as having been disposed of in the course of a trade, and any gain will be subject to corporation tax at regular corporate rates. For example, acquiring a property with a view to sale or a view to developing that property followed by a disposal on completion of the development would indicate a trading activity,

whereas disposal of a property as part of a normal variation of a property rental Portfolio, where that property has been acquired and/or developed with a view to retention as part of that Portfolio, would generally not. Further, where development of a property has occurred following acquisition and the cost of development exceeds 30 per cent. of the fair value of the property at the later of the date of the acquisition of the property or the date the REIT Group qualified as a REIT, the proceeds will be taxable if a disposal takes place within three years of completion of the development; however, such a tax charge does not arise where the disposal is made to another member of the same REIT group.

Whilst the Issuer does not intend that the subsidiaries will dispose of property in the course of a trade, there can be no assurance that HM Revenue and Customs will not deem a disposal to have been in the course of a trade, with the consequence that corporation tax will be payable in respect of any profits from the disposal of such property.

Directive 2011/61/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund Managers (the AIFMD) may impair the ability of the Manager's investment team to manage investments of the REIT Group, which may materially adversely affect the Issuer's ability to implement its Investment Policy and achieve its Investment Objective

The AIFMD, which was transposed by EU member states into national law on 22 July 2013, imposed a new regime for EU managers of alternative investment funds (AIFs) and in respect of marketing of AIFs in the EU. The AIFMD was transposed in the UK law, including by way of the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Regulations 2013 and the FCA's Investment Funds sourcebook (the UK AIFMD Rules). The AIFMD requires that EU AIFMs of AIFs are authorised and regulated as such.

Based on the provisions of AIFMD and the UK AIFMD Rules, the Issuer is an AIF within the scope of AIFMD and the UK AIFMD Rules. The Issuer operates as an externally managed AIF, with the Manager being the REIT Group's alternative investment fund manager (an **AIFM**). The Manager became authorised by the FCA as an AIFM on 1 July 2014.

As an FCA authorised AIFM, the Manager must comply with various organisational, operational and transparency obligations. In complying with these obligations, the Issuer and the Manager may be required to amend the Investment Policy, provide additional or different information to or update information given to investors and appoint or replace external service providers that the REIT Group intends to use. In addition, in requiring AIFMs to comply with these organisational, operational and transparency obligations, the AIFMD is likely to increase management and operating costs, in particular regulatory and compliance costs, of the Issuer and Manager.

If the Manager does not or cannot maintain its authorisation under the AIFMD, the operation of the Issuer in the EU may be prohibited. This may adversely impact the REIT Group's ability to raise further capital and manage and/or add to the Issuer's property portfolio in the future. It may also require the Issuer to appoint an alternative manager with the required authorisation to replace the Manager as manager of the Issuer.

## FACTORS WHICH ARE MATERIAL FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSESSING THE MARKET RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH NOTES ISSUED UNDER THE PROGRAMME

### Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of Notes

A range of Notes may be issued under the Programme. A number of these Notes may have features which contain particular risks for potential investors. Set out below is a description of the most common such features, distinguishing between factors which may occur in relation to any Notes and those which might occur in relation to certain types of Notes:

### Risks applicable to all Notes

If the Issuer has the right to redeem any Notes at its option, this may limit the market value of the Notes concerned and an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a manner which achieves a similar effective return.

An optional redemption feature is likely to limit the market value of Notes. During any period when the Issuer may elect to redeem Notes, the market value of those Notes generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they can be redeemed. This also may be true prior to any redemption period.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem Notes when its cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate on the Notes. At those times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the Notes being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

If the Issuer has the right to convert the interest rate on any Notes from a fixed rate to a floating rate, or vice versa, this may affect the secondary market and the market value of the Notes concerned.

Fixed/Floating Rate Notes are Notes which may bear interest at a rate that converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate, or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Where the Issuer has the right to effect such a conversion, this will affect the secondary market in, and the market value of, the Notes since the Issuer may be expected to convert the rate when it is likely to result in a lower overall cost of borrowing for the Issuer. If the Issuer converts from a fixed rate to a floating rate in such circumstances, the spread on the Fixed/Floating Rate Notes may be less favourable than then prevailing spreads on comparable Floating Rate Notes tied to the same reference rate. In addition, the new floating rate at any time may be lower than the rates on other Notes. If the Issuer converts from a floating rate to a fixed rate in such circumstances, the fixed rate may be lower than then prevailing market rates.

Notes which are issued at a substantial discount or premium may experience price volatility in response to changes in market interest rates.

The market values of securities issued at a substantial discount (such as Zero Coupon Notes) or premium to their principal amount tend to fluctuate more in relation to general changes in interest rates than do prices for more conventional interest-bearing securities. Generally, the longer the remaining term of such securities, the greater the price volatility as compared to more conventional interest-bearing securities with comparable maturities.

### Risks applicable to certain types of Notes

There are particular risks associated with an investment in certain types of Notes, such as Index Linked Notes and Dual Currency Notes. In particular, an investor might receive less interest than expected or no interest in respect of such Notes and may lose some or all of the principal amount invested by it.

The Issuer may issue Notes with principal or interest determined by reference to an index or formula, to changes in the prices of securities or commodities, to movements in currency exchange rates or other factors (each, a **Relevant Factor**). In addition, the Issuer may issue Notes with principal or interest payable in one or more currencies which may be different from the currency in which the Notes are denominated. Potential investors should be aware that:

- (i) the market price of such Notes may be volatile;
- (ii) they may receive no interest;
- (iii) payment of principal or interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected;
- (iv) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their principal;
- (v) a Relevant Factor may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices;
- (vi) if a Relevant Factor is applied to Notes in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or contains some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the Relevant Factor on principal or interest payable likely will be magnified; and
- (vii) the timing of changes in a Relevant Factor may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the Relevant Factor, the greater the effect on yield.

The historical experience of an index or other Relevant Factor should not be viewed as an indication of the future performance of such Relevant Factor during the term of any Notes. Accordingly, each potential investor should consult its own financial and legal advisers about the risk entailed by an investment in any Notes linked to a Relevant Factor and the suitability of such Notes in light of its particular circumstances.

Where Notes are issued on a partly paid basis, an investor who fails to pay any subsequent instalment of the issue price could lose all of his investment.

The Issuer may issue Notes where the issue price is payable in more than one instalment. Any failure by an investor to pay any subsequent instalment of the issue price in respect of his Notes could result in such investor losing all of his investment.

Notes which are issued with variable interest rates or which are structured to include a multiplier or other leverage factor are likely to have more volatile market values than more standard securities.

Notes with variable interest rates can be volatile investments. If they are structured to include multipliers or other leverage factors, or caps or floors, or any combination of those features or

other similar related features, their market values may be even more volatile than those for securities that do not include those features.

Inverse Floating Rate Notes will have more volatile market values than conventional Floating Rate Notes.

Inverse Floating Rate Notes have an interest rate equal to a fixed rate minus a rate based upon a reference rate such as LIBOR. The market values of those Notes typically are more volatile than market values of other conventional floating rate debt securities based on the same reference rate (and with otherwise comparable terms). Inverse Floating Rate Notes are more volatile because an increase in the reference rate not only decreases the interest rate of the Notes, but may also reflect an increase in prevailing interest rates, which further adversely affects the market value of these Notes.

Uncertainty relating to the LIBOR calculation process, including the potential phasing out of LIBOR after 2021, and proposals to reform EURIBOR and other benchmark indices may adversely affect the value of the Notes

The London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (**LIBOR**), the Euro Interbank Offered Rate (**EURIBOR**) and other benchmarks are the subject of recent national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. Some of these reforms, such as the replacement of the British Bankers' Association (**BBA**) as LIBOR administrator with ICE Benchmark Administration Limited are already effective while others are still to be implemented. The implementation of such reforms and consequential changes to benchmarks may cause them to perform differently than in the past, which could have a material adverse effect on the value of any Floating Rate Notes where the interest rate is calculated with reference to benchmarks or may have other consequences that cannot be predicted.

Actions by bodies such as the BBA, or other regulators or law enforcement agencies may result in changes to the manner in which LIBOR is determined or the establishment of alternative reference rates. For example, on 27 July 2017, the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority (the FCA), which regulates LIBOR, announced that it would begin planning a transition away from LIBOR to alternative reference rates that are based on actual transactions, such as SONIA (the Sterling Over Night Index Average). The announcement indicates that the continuation of LIBOR in its current form is not guaranteed after 2021. At this time, it is not possible to predict the effect of the FCA announcement, any changes in the methods pursuant to which LIBOR rates are determined and any other reforms to LIBOR, including to the rules promulgated by the FCA in relation thereto, that will be enacted in the United Kingdom and elsewhere which may adversely affect the trading market for LIBORbased securities, including Floating Rate Notes, or result in the phasing out of LIBOR as a reference rate for securities. In addition, any changes announced by the FCA (including the changes conveyed in the FCA announcement), ICE Benchmark Administration Limited as independent administrator of LIBOR or any other successor governance or oversight body, or future changes adopted by such body, in the method pursuant to which the LIBOR rates are determined may result in a sudden or prolonged increase or decrease in the reported LIBOR rates. If that were to occur, the interest payments and the value of any relevant Floating Rate Notes may be affected. Uncertainty as to the nature of such potential changes, alternative reference rates or other reforms may adversely affect the trading market for LIBOR-based securities, including any LIBOR-based Notes. In particular, you should be aware that in relation to LIBOR-based Floating Rate Notes or Floating Rate Notes relating to any other such benchmarks where Screen Rate Determination is specified, the Notes contain the fallback provisions described under Condition 5.2 (Interest on Floating Rate Notes) of the Notes (see "Terms and Conditions of the Notes"). The operation of such provisions, being dependent in part upon the provision by the Reference Banks of offered quotations, is subject to market circumstances and the availability of rates information at the relevant time. If such quotations are not available, the Rate of Interest may revert to the Rate of Interest applicable to the last preceding Interest Period and, if LIBOR or any other relevant benchmarks are discontinued, the same Rate of Interest may continue to be the Rate of Interest for each successive Interest Period until the maturity of the Notes so that the Notes will, in effect, become fixed rate Notes utilising the relevant benchmark rate last available. Any of the foregoing could have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of and return on any Floating Rate Notes which reference LIBOR.

### Risks related to Notes generally

Set out below is a description of material risks relating to the Notes generally:

### Each Guarantor may be released

In accordance with the Conditions and the Trust Deed, each Guarantor may be released and cease to be a Guarantor if such Guarantor is no longer providing a Financial Indebtedness Guarantee (as defined in Condition 3 (*Status of the Notes and the Guarantee*)) in respect of any other Financial Indebtedness (as defined in Condition 3 (*Status of the Notes and the Guarantee*)) of the Issuer. Upon the Trustee's receipt of notice containing certain certifications, such Guarantor shall automatically and irrevocably be released and relieved of any obligation under the Guarantee. (See "*Terms and Conditions – Status of the Notes and the Guarantee - Release of a Guarantor*".)

### Risks relating to providing consolidated accounts only

The Issuer has requested the Irish Stock Exchange grant a derogation under Rule 3.3(3)(c) of the Irish Stock Exchange's Global Exchange Market Listing and Admission to Trading Rules from the requirement for the Guarantors to include their individual financial statements in these Base Listing Particulars. The Irish Stock Exchange has granted such derogation. The guarantees given by the Guarantors are full and unconditional and given on a joint and several basis. The accounts of the Guarantors have been included in the consolidated accounts of the REIT Group (along with the accounts of the non-Guarantors), which are incorporated by reference herein, and have not been presented separately herein. However, as the non-Guarantor subsidiaries represent more than 25 per cent of the REIT Group's consolidated net assets, the consolidated financial statements of the REIT Group may be of limited use in assessing the financial position of the Guarantors.

The Conditions of the Notes contain provisions which may permit their modification without the consent of all investors and confer significant discretions on the Trustee which may be exercised without the consent of the Noteholders and without regard to the individual interests of particular Noteholders.

The Conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to consider matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Noteholders including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

The Conditions of the Notes also provide that the Trustee may, without the consent of Noteholders and without regard to the interests of particular Noteholders, agree to (i) any modification of, or to the waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of, any of the provisions of the Notes or (ii) determine without the consent of the Noteholders that any Event of Default or potential Event of Default shall not be treated as such or (iii) the substitution of another company as principal debtor under any Notes in place of the Issuer, in

the circumstances described in Condition 15 (Meetings of Noteholders, Modification, Waiver and Substitution).

### The value of the Notes could be adversely affected by a change in English law or administrative practice.

The conditions of the Notes are based on English law in effect as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change to English law or administrative practice after the date of these Base Listing Particulars and any such change could materially adversely impact the value of any Notes affected by it.

## Investors who hold less than the minimum Specified Denomination may be unable to sell their Notes and may be adversely affected if definitive Notes are subsequently required to be issued.

In relation to any issue of Notes which have denominations consisting of a minimum Specified Denomination plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount, it is possible that such Notes may be traded in amounts in excess of the minimum Specified Denomination that are not integral multiples of such minimum Specified Denomination. In such a case a holder who, as a result of trading such amounts, holds an amount which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the relevant clearing system would not be able to sell the remainder of such holding without first purchasing a principal amount of Notes at or in excess of the minimum Specified Denomination such that its holding amounts to a Specified Denomination. Further, a holder who, as a result of trading such amounts, holds an amount which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the relevant clearing system at the relevant time may not receive a definitive Note in respect of such holding (should definitive Notes be printed or issued) and would need to purchase a principal amount of Notes at or in excess of the minimum Specified Denomination such that its holding amounts to a Specified Denomination.

If such Notes in definitive form are issued, holders should be aware that definitive Notes which have a denomination that is not an integral multiple of the minimum Specified Denomination may be illiquid and difficult to trade.

### A proportion of the REIT Group's indebtedness is secured

A proportion of the REIT Group's indebtedness is secured by pledges over property in its portfolio. Since the Notes are unsecured, the Notes are structurally and effectively subordinated to the extent of the value of collateral to all the REIT Group's secured creditors. In the event of any foreclosure, dissolution, winding-up, liquidation, reorganisation, administration or other bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding of the Issuer or the REIT Group that has secured obligations, holders of secured indebtedness will have prior claims to the REIT Group's assets that constitute the collateral for such secured indebtedness. In such a scenario, holders of the Notes may receive less, rateably, than the holders of secured indebtedness and they may lose some or all of their investment in the Notes.

### Risks related to the market generally

Set out below is a description of material market risks, including liquidity risk, exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and credit risk:

An active secondary market in respect of the Notes may never be established or may be illiquid and this would adversely affect the value at which an investor could sell his Notes.

Notes may have no established trading market when issued, and one may never develop. If a market for the Notes does develop, it may not be very liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able to sell their Notes easily or at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed secondary market.

If an investor holds Notes which are not denominated in the investor's home currency, he will be exposed to movements in exchange rates adversely affecting the value of his holding. In addition, the imposition of exchange controls in relation to any Notes could result in an investor not receiving payments on those Notes.

The Issuer will pay principal and interest on the Notes and the Guarantors will make any payments under the Guarantee in the Specified Currency. This presents certain risks relating to currency conversions if an investor's financial activities are denominated principally in a currency or currency unit (the **Investor's Currency**) other than the Specified Currency. These include the risk that exchange rates may significantly change (including changes due to devaluation of the Specified Currency or revaluation of the Investor's Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Investor's Currency may impose or modify exchange controls. An appreciation in the value of the Investor's Currency relative to the Specified Currency would decrease (1) the Investor's Currency-equivalent yield on the Notes, (2) the Investor's Currency equivalent value of the principal payable on the Notes and (3) the Investor's Currency equivalent market value of the Notes.

Government and monetary authorities may impose (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that could adversely affect an applicable exchange rate or the ability of the Issuer or the Guarantors to make payments in respect of the Notes. As a result, investors may receive less interest or principal than expected, or no interest or principal.

The value of Fixed Rate Notes may be adversely affected by movements in market interest rates.

Investment in Fixed Rate Notes involves the risk that if market interest rates subsequently increase above the rate paid on the Fixed Rate Notes, this will adversely affect the value of the Fixed Rate Notes.

Credit ratings assigned to the Issuer or any Notes may not reflect all the risks associated with an investment in those Notes.

One or more independent credit rating agencies may assign credit ratings to the Issuer or the Notes. The ratings may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to structure, market, additional factors discussed above, and other factors that may affect the value of the Notes. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised, suspended or withdrawn by the rating agency at any time.

In general, European regulated investors are restricted under the CRA Regulation from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless such ratings are issued by a credit rating agency established in the EU and registered under the CRA Regulation (and such registration has not been withdrawn or suspended, subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances). Such general restriction will also apply in the case of credit ratings issued by non-EU credit rating agencies, unless the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by an EU-registered credit rating agency or the relevant non-EU rating agency is certified in accordance with the CRA Regulation (and such endorsement action or certification, as the case may be,

has not been withdrawn or suspended, subject to transitional provisions that apply in certain circumstances). The list of registered and certified rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) on its website in accordance with the CRA Regulation is not conclusive evidence of the status of the relevant rating agency included in such list, as there may be delays between certain supervisory measures being taken against a relevant rating agency and the publication of the updated ESMA list. Certain information with respect to the credit rating agencies and ratings is set out on the cover of these Base Listing Particulars.

#### DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents shall be incorporated in, and form part of, these Base Listing Particulars:

- (a) the auditors' report and audited consolidated annual financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 of the Issuer (contained on pages 96 to 132 of the Issuer's Annual Report for 2016) which can be viewed online at:
  - http://tritaxbigbox.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/BBox-AR16-web-1.pdf
- (b) the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2017 of the Issuer which can be viewed online at:

http://tritaxbigbox.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/BBox-IR17-web.pdf

Any documents themselves incorporated by reference in the documents incorporated by reference in these Base Listing Particulars shall not form part of these Base Listing Particulars.

Copies of documents incorporated by reference in these Base Listing Particulars have been filed with the Irish Stock Exchange and can be obtained from the registered office of the Issuer and from the specified office of the Paying Agent for the time being in London and will be available for viewing on the website of the Issuer as specified above.

Any non-incorporated parts of a document referred to herein are either deemed not relevant for an investor or are otherwise covered elsewhere in these Base Listing Particulars.

The Issuer and the Original Guarantors will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to information included in these Base Listing Particulars which is capable of affecting the assessment of any Notes, prepare a supplement to these Base Listing Particulars or publish a new Base Listing Particulars for use in connection with any subsequent issue of Notes. Any such supplement or new Base Listing Particulars will be published in accordance with the rules of the Irish Stock Exchange.

#### FORM OF THE NOTES

The Notes of each Series will be in either bearer form, with or without interest coupons attached, or registered form, without interest coupons attached. Bearer Notes will be issued outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act (**Regulation S**) and Registered Notes will be issued outside the United States in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Regulation S.

#### **Bearer Notes**

Each Tranche of Bearer Notes will be in bearer form and will initially be issued in the form of a temporary global note (a **Temporary Bearer Global Note**) or, if so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, a permanent global note (a **Permanent Bearer Global Note** and, together with a Temporary Bearer Global Note, each a **Bearer Global Note**) which, in either case, will:

- (a) if the Bearer Global Notes are intended to be issued in new global note (**NGN**) form, as stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a common safekeeper (the **Common Safekeeper**) for Euroclear Bank SA/NV (**Euroclear**) and Clearstream Banking S.A. (**Clearstream**, **Luxembourg**); and
- (b) if the Bearer Global Notes are not intended to be issued in NGN Form, be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a common depositary (the **Common Depositary**) for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Where the Bearer Global Notes issued in respect of any Tranche are in NGN form, the applicable Pricing Supplement will also indicate whether such Bearer Global Notes are intended to be held in a manner which would allow Eurosystem eligibility. Any indication that the Bearer Global Notes are to be so held does not necessarily mean that the Bearer Notes of the relevant Tranche will be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue or at any times during their life as such recognition depends upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria. The Common Safekeeper for NGNs will either be Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or another entity approved by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Whilst any Bearer Note is represented by a Temporary Bearer Global Note, payments of principal, interest (if any) and any other amount payable in respect of the Notes due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined below) will be made (against presentation of the Temporary Bearer Global Note if the Temporary Bearer Global Note is not intended to be issued in NGN form) only to the extent that certification (in a form to be provided) to the effect that the beneficial owners of interests in the Temporary Bearer Global Note are not U.S. persons or persons who have purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as required by U.S. Treasury regulations, has been received by Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a like certification (based on the certifications it has received) to the Principal Paying Agent.

On and after the date (the **Exchange Date**) which is 40 days after a Temporary Bearer Global Note is issued, interests in such Temporary Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge) upon a request as described therein either for (i) interests in a Permanent Bearer Global Note of the same Series or (ii) for definitive Bearer Notes of the same Series with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached (as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement and subject, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, to such notice period

as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement), in each case against certification of beneficial ownership as described above unless such certification has already been given, provided that purchasers in the United States and certain U.S. persons will not be able to receive definitive Bearer Notes. The holder of a Temporary Bearer Global Note will not be entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due on or after the Exchange Date unless, upon due certification, exchange of the Temporary Bearer Global Note for an interest in a Permanent Bearer Global Note or for definitive Bearer Notes is improperly withheld or refused.

The option for an issue of Bearer Notes to be represented on issue by a Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable for definitive Bearer Notes should not be expressed to be applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement if the Bearer Notes are issued with a minimum Specified Denomination such as epsilon 100,000 (or its equivalent in another currency) plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount such as epsilon 1,000 (or its equivalent in another currency).

Payments of principal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Bearer Global Note will be made through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (against presentation or surrender (as the case may be) of the Permanent Bearer Global Note if the Permanent Bearer Global Note is not intended to be issued in NGN form) without any requirement for certification.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will specify that a Permanent Bearer Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for definitive Bearer Notes with, where applicable, receipts, interest coupons and talons attached upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, **Exchange Event** means that (i) an Event of Default (as defined in Condition 10 (Events of Default)) has occurred and is continuing, (ii) the Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and no successor clearing system satisfactory to the Trustee is available or (iii) the Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be suffered were the Notes represented by the Permanent Bearer Global Note in definitive form and a certificate to such effect signed by two Directors of the Issuer is given to the Trustee. The Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (Notices) if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Bearer Global Note) or the Trustee may give notice to the Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (iii) above, the Issuer may also give notice to the Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 45 days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Principal Paying Agent.

The following legend will appear on all Bearer Notes (other than Temporary Bearer Global Notes), receipts and interest coupons relating to such Notes where TEFRA D is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement:

"ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE."

The sections referred to provide that United States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be entitled to deduct any loss on Bearer Notes, receipts or interest coupons and will not be

entitled to capital gains treatment in respect of any gain on any sale, disposition, redemption or payment of principal in respect of Bearer Notes, receipts or interest coupons.

Notes which are represented by a Bearer Global Note will only be transferable in accordance with the rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be.

### **Registered Notes**

The Registered Notes of each Tranche will initially be represented by a global note in registered form (a **Registered Global Note**). Registered Global Notes will be deposited with a common depositary or, if the Registered Global Notes are to be held under the new safe-keeping structure (the **NSS**), a common safekeeper, as the case may be for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, and registered in the name of the nominee for the common depositary of, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or in the name of a nominee of the common safekeeper, as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Persons holding beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be entitled or required, as the case may be, under the circumstances described below, to receive physical delivery of definitive Notes in fully registered form.

Where the Registered Global Notes issued in respect of any Tranche is intended to be held under the NSS, the applicable Pricing Supplement will indicate/Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg will be notified as to whether or not such Registered Global Notes are intended to be held in a manner which would allow Eurosystem eligibility. Any indication that the Registered Global Notes are to be so held does not necessarily mean that the Notes of the relevant Tranche will be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue or at any time during their life as such recognition depends upon satisfaction of the Eurosystem eligibility criteria. The common safekeeper for a Registered Global Note held under the NSS will either by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or another entity approved by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Payments of principal, interest and any other amount in respect of the Registered Global Notes will, in the absence of provision to the contrary, be made to the person shown on the Register (as defined in Condition 6.5 (*Payments – Payments in respect of Registered Notes*)) as the registered holder of the Registered Global Notes. None of the Issuer, the Original Guarantors, any Paying Agent, the Trustee or the Registrar will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments or deliveries made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Payments of principal, interest or any other amount in respect of the Registered Notes in definitive form will, in the absence of provision to the contrary, be made to the persons shown on the Register on the relevant Record Date (as defined in Condition 6.5 (*Payments – Payments in respect of Registered Notes*)) immediately preceding the due date for payment in the manner provided in that Condition.

Interests in a Registered Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for definitive Registered Notes without receipts, interest coupons or talons attached only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, **Exchange Event** means that (i) an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, (ii) the Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and, in any such

case, no successor clearing system satisfactory to the Trustee is available or (iii) the Issuer has or will become subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be suffered were the Notes represented by the Registered Global Note in definitive form and a certificate to that effect signed by two Directors of the Issuer is given to the Trustee. The Issuer will promptly give notice to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*)) if an Exchange Event occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any person acting on their behalf (acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Registered Global Note) or the Trustee may give notice to the Registrar requesting exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in (iii) above, the Issuer may also give notice to the Registrar requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 10 days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Registrar.

### **Transfer of Interests**

No beneficial owner of an interest in a Registered Global Note will be able to transfer such interest, except in accordance with the applicable procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, in each case to the extent applicable.

#### General

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes"), the Principal Paying Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Notes is issued which is intended to form a single Series with an existing Tranche of Notes at a point after the Issue Date of the further Tranche, the Notes of such further Tranche shall be assigned a common code and ISIN which are different from the common code and ISIN assigned to Notes of any other Tranche of the same Series until such time as the Tranches are consolidated and form a single Series, which shall not be prior to the expiry of the distribution compliance period (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act) applicable to the Notes of such Tranche.

Any reference herein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

No Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer or any Guarantor unless the Trustee, having become bound so to proceed, fails so to do within a reasonable period and the failure shall be continuing.

The Issuer and the Original Guarantors may agree with any Dealer and the Trustee that Notes may be issued in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes.

[PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes[, from 1 January 2018,]¹ are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and[, with effect from such date,]² should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic Area (EEA). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (MiFID II); (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2002/92/EC (IMD), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended, the Prospectus Directive). Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the PRIIPs Regulation) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.]³

#### FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

NO PROSPECTUS IS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH DIRECTIVE 2003/71/EC FOR THE ISSUE OF NOTES DESCRIBED BELOW.

[Date]

#### TRITAX BIG BOX REIT PLC

Issue of [Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes]
Guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of Tritax Big Box REIT plc
under the GBP1,500,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

### PART A – CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Any person making or intending to make an offer of the Notes may only do so in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or to supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer.

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement for the Notes described herein. This document must be read in conjunction with the Base Listing Particulars dated 23 November 2017 [as supplemented by the supplement[s] dated [date[s]]] (the **Base Listing Particulars**). Full information on the Issuer, the Original Guarantors and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of this Pricing Supplement and the Base Listing Particulars. Copies of the Base Listing Particulars may be obtained from [address].

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not Applicable". Note that the numbering should remain as set out below, even if "Not Applicable" is indicated for

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> This date reference should not be included in Pricing Supplements for offers concluded on or after 1 January 2018.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Legend to be included on front of the Pricing Supplement (i) for offers concluded on or after 1 January 2018 if the Notes potentially constitute "packaged" products or the issuer wishes to prohibit offers to EEA retail investors for any other reason, in which case the selling restriction should be specified to be "Applicable" (ii) for offers concluded before 1 January 2018 at the option of the parties.

individual paragraphs or subparagraphs. Italics denote directions for completing the Pricing Supplement.]

[If the Notes have a maturity of less than one year from the date of their issue, the minimum denomination must be £100,000 or its equivalent in any other currency.]

1. (a) Issuer: Tritax Big Box REIT plc

(b) Original Guarantors: Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited

TBBR Holdings 1 Limited TBBR Holdings 2 Limited

Sherburn Trustee One Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust

Sherburn Trustee Two Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust

Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd

Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd

Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited

Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited

Tritax Atherstone Limited

Tritax Atherstone Limited

Tritax Crewe Limited

Tritax Carlisle Limited

Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited

Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited

Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited

Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited

Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited

Tritax Lymedale Limited

Tritax Peterborough Limited

Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited

Tritax Worksop Limited Tritax Ripon Limited Tritax Harlow Limited 2. (a) Series Number: ] Tranche Number: 1 (b) (c) Date on which the Notes will The Notes will be consolidated and form a be consolidated and form a single Series with [identify earlier Tranches] single Series: on [the Issue Date/the date that is 40 days after the Issue Date/exchange of the Temporary Global Note for interests in the Permanent Global Note, as referred to in paragraph [ ] below, which is expected to occur on or about [date]][Not Applicable] Specified Currency or Currencies: 3. ſ 1 4. Aggregate Nominal Amount: Series: (a) ſ ] (b) Tranche: 1 Issue Price: 5. ] per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus accrued interest from [insert date] (if applicable)] **Specified Denominations:** 6. (a) ] (N.B. Notes must have minimum denomination of  $\in 100,000$ ) (b) Calculation Amount (in 1 relation to calculation of interest in global form see Conditions): (If only one Specified Denomination, insert the Specified Denomination. If more than one Specified Denomination, insert the highest common factor. Note: There must be a common factor in the case of two or more Specified Denominations.)

Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited

Baljean Properties Limited Tritax Knowsley Limited Sonoma Ventures Limited

Tritax Burton Upon Trent Limited

Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited

]

7.

(a)

Issue Date:

	(b)	Interest Date:	Commencement	[specify/Issue Date/Not Applicable]
				(N.B. An Interest Commencement Date will not be relevant for certain Notes, for example Zero Coupon Notes.)
8.	Matu	rity Date:		[Specify date or for Floating Rate Notes - Interest Payment Date falling in or nearest to [specify month and year]]
9.	Intere	est Basis:		[[ ] per cent. Fixed Rate] [[specify Reference Rate] +/- [ ] per cent. Floating Rate] [Zero Coupon] [Index Linked Interest] [Dual Currency Interest] [specify other] (further particulars specified below)
10.	Rede	mption/Paym	ent Basis:	[Redemption at par] [Index Linked Redemption] [Dual Currency Redemption] [Partly Paid] [Instalment] [specify other]
11.	Change of Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment Basis:			[Specify details of any provision for change of Notes into another Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment Basis][Not Applicable]
12.	Put/C	Call Options:		[Investor Put] [Change of Control Put] [Issuer Call] [Issuer Maturity Par Call] [(further particulars specified below)]
13.	(a)	Status of t	he Notes:	Senior
	(b)	Status of t	he Guarantee:	Senior
	(c)	for issuar	[Board] approval ace of Notes [and obtained:	[ ] [and [ ], respectively]] (N.B. Only relevant where Board (or similar) authorisation is required for the particular tranche of Notes or related Guarantee)
PROV	VISION	IS RELATI	NG TO INTEREST	(IF ANY) PAYABLE
14.	Fixed	l Rate Note P	rovisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Rate(s) of	Interest:	[ ] per cent. per annum payable in arrear on each Interest Payment Date

	(b)	Interest Payment Date(s):	[ ] in each year up to and including the Maturity Date (Amend appropriately in the case of irregular coupons)
	(c)	Fixed Coupon Amount(s) for Notes in definitive form (and in relation to Notes in global form see Conditions):	[ ] per Calculation Amount
	(d)	Broken Amount(s) for Notes in definitive form (and in relation to Notes in global form see Conditions):	[[ ] per Calculation Amount, payable on the Interest Payment Date falling [in/on] [ ]][Not Applicable]
	(e)	Day Count Fraction:	[30/360/Actual/Actual (ICMA)/specify other]
	(f)	[Determination Date(s):	[[ ] in each year][Not Applicable] (Only relevant where Day Count Fraction is Actual/Actual (ICMA). In such a case, insert regular interest payment dates, ignoring issue date or maturity date in the case of a long or short first or last coupon]
	(g)	Other terms relating to the method of calculating interest for Fixed Rate Notes:	[None/Give details]
15.	Floatir	ng Rate Note Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest Payment Dates:	[ ][, subject to adjustment in accordance with the Business Day Convention set out in (b) below/, not subject to any adjustment, as the Business Day Convention in (b) below is specified to be Not Applicable]
	(b)	Business Day Convention:	[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/[specify other]] [Not Applicable]
	(c)	Additional Business Centre(s):	[ ]/[Not Applicable]
	(d)	Manner in which the Rate of Interest and Interest Amount is to be determined:	[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/specify other]

(e)	Party responsible for calculating the Rate of Interest and Interest Amount (if not the Agent):	[ ]/[Not Applicable]
(f)	Screen Rate Determination:	[Applicable/Not Applicable]
	• Reference Rate:	[ ] month [LIBOR/EURIBOR/specify other Reference Rate] (Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although additional information is required if other, including fallback provisions in the Agency Agreement.)
	• Interest Determination Date(s):	[ ] (Second London business day prior to the start of each Interest Period if LIBOR (other than Sterling or euro LIBOR), first day of each Interest Period if Sterling LIBOR and the second day on which the TARGET2 System is open prior to the start of each Interest Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)
	• Relevant Screen	[ ]
	Page:	(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBOR01 ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or amend the fallback provisions appropriately)
(g)	ISDA Determination:	[Applicable/Not Applicable]
	• Floating Rate Option:	[ ]
	• Designated Maturity:	[ ]
	• Reset Date:	[ ] (In the case of a LIBOR or EURIBOR based option, the first day of the Interest Period)
(h)	Linear Interpolation:	[Not Applicable/Applicable – the Rate of Interest for the [long/short] [first/last] Interest Period shall be calculated using Linear Interpolation (specify for each short or long interest period)]
(i)	Margin(s):	[+/-] [ ] per cent. per annum
(j)	Minimum Rate of Interest:	[ ] per cent. per annum
(k)	Maximum Rate of Interest:	[ ] per cent. per annum

	(1)	Day Count Fraction:	[Actual/Actual (ISDA)][Actual/Actual] Actual/365 (Fixed) Actual/365 (Sterling) Actual/360 [30/360][360/360][Bond Basis] [30E/360][Eurobond Basis] 30E/360 (ISDA) [Other]
	(m)	Fallback provisions, rounding provisions and any other terms relating to the method of calculating interest on Floating Rate Notes, if different from those set out in the Conditions:	
16.	Zero C	Coupon Note Provisions	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Accrual Yield:	[ ] per cent. per annum
	(b)	Reference Price:	[ ]
	(c)	Any other formula/basis of determining amount payable for Zero Coupon Notes:	[ ]
	(d)	Day Count Fraction in relation to Early Redemption Amounts:	[30/360] [Actual/360] [Actual/365]
17.	Index	Linked Interest Note	[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Index/Formula:	[give or annex details]
	(b)	Calculation Agent	[give name]
	(c)	Party responsible for calculating the Rate of Interest (if not the Calculation Agent) and Interest Amount (if not the Agent):	

	(d)	Provisions for determining Coupon where calculation by reference to Index and/or Formula is impossible or impracticable:	[need to include a description of market disruption or settlement disruption events and adjustment provisions]
	(e)	Specified Period(s)/Specified Interest Payment Dates:	[ ]
	(f)	Business Day Convention:	[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day Convention/Modified Following Business Day Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/specify other]
	(g)	Additional Business Centre(s):	[ ]
	(h)	Minimum Rate of Interest:	[ ] per cent. per annum
	(i)	Maximum Rate of Interest:	[ ] per cent. per annum
	(j)	Day Count Fraction:	[ ]
18.	Dual Provis	Currency Interest Note ions	[Applicable/Not Applicable]  (If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Rate of Exchange/method of calculating Rate of Exchange:	[give or annex details]
	(b)	Party, if any, responsible for calculating the principal and/or interest due (if not the Agent):	[ ]
	(c)	Provisions applicable where calculation by reference to Rate of Exchange impossible or impracticable:	[need to include a description of market disruption or settlement disruption events and adjustment provisions]
	(d)	Person at whose option Specified Currency(ies) is/are payable:	[ ]
PRO	VISION	S RELATING TO REDEMPT	ION
10	NT		N

Notice periods for Condition 7.2 Minimum period: [30] days (Redemption and Purchase – Maximum period: [60] days 19. Redemption for taxation reasons):

20.	Issue	r Call:		(If	olicable/Not Applicable] not applicable, delete the remaining paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Option Date(s	-	[	]
	(b)		ant and method, if any, calculation of such		] per Calculation Amount/[Spens ount/Make Whole Redemption Amount/] ify other/see Appendix]
		(i)	Reference Bond:	[	]
		(ii)	Redemption Margin:	[	1
		(iii)	Quotation Time:	[	1
	(c)	If rede	eemable in part:		
		(i)	Minimum Redemption Amount:	[	J
		(ii)	Maximum Redemption Amount:	[	1
	(d)	Notice	e periods:	Max (N.B is a distr inter (whi syste custo requ	imum period: [ ] days imum period: [ ] days ?. When setting notice periods, the Issuer dvised to consider the practicalities of ibution of information through mediaries, for example, clearing systems ch require a minimum of 5 clearing em business days' notice for a call) and odians, as well as any other notice irements which may apply, for example, between the Issuer and the Agent or tee.)
21.	Issue	Issuer Maturity Par Call:			plicable/Not Applicable]
					not applicable, delete the remaining paragraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Matur	ity Par Call Period:		n (and including) [ ] to (but excluding) Maturity Date.
	(b)	Notice	e periods:		imum period: [ ] days imum period: [ ] days

22.	Investor Put:			[Applicable/Not Applicable]
				(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
	(a)	Optional Date(s):	Redemption	[ ]
	(b)	Optional Amount and m of calculation amount(s):		[[ ] per Calculation Amount/specify other/see Appendix]
	(c)	Notice periods:		Minimum period: [15] days Maximum period: [30] days (N.B. When setting notice periods, the Issuer is advised to consider the practicalities of distribution of information through intermediaries, for example, clearing systems (which require a minimum of 15 clearing system business days' notice for a put) and custodians, as well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for example, as between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee.)
23.	Change	e of Control Put:		[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this paragraph)
	Change Amour		Redemption	[ ] per Calculation Amount
24.	Final Redemption Amount:		unt:	[[ ] per Calculation Amount/specify other/see Appendix]
25.	Early Redemption Amount payable on redemption for taxation reasons or on event of default and/or the method of calculating the same (if required):			[[ ] per Calculation Amount/specify other/see Appendix]
GENE	NERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE			TO THE NOTES
26.	Form o	of Notes:		
	(a)	Form:		[Bearer Notes:
				[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for a Permanent Global Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes upon an Exchange Event]

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes on and after the Exchange Date]

[Permanent Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes upon an Exchange Event]

[Registered Notes:

[Global Note registered in the name of a nominee for a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg/a common safekeeper for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg]

(b) New Global Note: [Yes][No]

27. Additional Financial Centre(s): [Not Applicable/give details]

(Note that this paragraph relates to the date of payment and not the end dates of Interest Periods for the purposes of calculating the amount of interest, to which sub-paragraphs

15(c) and 17(g) relate)

28. Talons for future Coupons to be attached to Definitive Notes:

[Yes, as the Notes have more than 27 coupon payments, Talons may be required if, on exchange into definitive form, more than 27 coupon payments are still to be made/No]

29. Details relating to Partly Paid Notes: amount of each payment comprising the Issue Price and date on which each payment is to be made and consequences (if any) of failure to pay, including any right of the Issuer to forfeit the Notes and interest due on late payment.

[Not Applicable/give details. N.B. A new form of Temporary Global Note and/or Permanent Global Note may be required for Partly Paid issues]

30. Details relating to Instalment Notes: [Ap

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining

subparagraphs of this paragraph)

(a) Instalment Amount(s): [give details]

(b) Instalment Date(s): [give details]

31. Other terms or special conditions: [Not Applicable/give details]

## RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer [and the Original Guarantors] accept[s] responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing Supplement. [[Relevant third party information] has been extracted from [specify source]. [Each of the] [The] Issuer [and each Original Guarantor] confirms that

such information has been accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by [specify source], no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

Signed on behalf of Tritax Big Box REIT plc:	Signed on behalf of Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of TBBR Holdings 1 Limited:	Signed on behalf of TBBR Holdings 2 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Sherburn Trustee One Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of the Sherburn RDC Unit Trust:	Signed on behalf of Sherburn Trustee Two Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of the Sherburn RDC Unit Trust:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly Authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised

Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited:
By:	Ву:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited:
Ву:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited:
By:	By:

Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Atherstone Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Atherstone Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Carlisle Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Crewe Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	
Signed on behalf of Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Lymedale Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Peterborough Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited:
By:	By:
Duly authorised	Duly authorised
Signed on behalf of Baljean Properties Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Knowsley Limited:
Ву:	Ву:

Duly authorised	Duly authorised		
Signed on behalf of Sonoma Ventures Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited:		
Ву:	By:		
Duly authorised	Duly authorised		
Signed on behalf of Tritax Worksop Limited:	Signed on behalf of Tritax Ripon Limited:		
By:	Ву:		
Duly Authorised	Duly authorised		
Signed on behalf of Tritax Harlow Limited:			
By:			

Duly authorised

# PART B – OTHER INFORMATION

1.	LISTI	NG	[Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange for the Notes to be admitted to the Official List and to trading on the Global Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange with effect from [ ].]
			[Application [has been made/is expected to be made] by the Issuer (or on its behalf) for the Notes to be listed on [specify market – note this must not be a regulated market] with effect from [ ].] [Not Applicable]
2.	RATIN	NGS	
	Ratings	S:	[The Notes to be issued [[have been]/[are expected to be]] rated [insert details] by [insert the legal name of the relevant credit rating agency entity(ies)]. (The above disclosure is only required if the ratings of the Notes are different to those stated in the Base Listing Particulars)
3.	INTER ISSUE		LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE
	to the fut with, a and [its	is aware, no person involved in offer. The [Managers/Dealers] ure engage, in investment ban and may perform other services	anagers named below/Dealers], so far as the the issue of the Notes has an interest material and their affiliates have engaged, and may in king and/or commercial banking transactions for, the Issuer [and the Original Guarantors] course of business – <i>Amend as appropriate if</i>
4.	OPER	ATIONAL INFORMATION	
	(i)	ISIN:	[ ]
	(ii)	Common Code:	[ ]
	(iii)	Any clearing system(s) other than Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and the relevant identification number(s):	[Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]
	(iv)	Delivery:	Delivery [against/free of] payment
	(v)	Names and addresses of additional Paying Agent(s) (if any):	[ ]

(vi) Intended to be held in a manner which would allow Eurosystem eligibility:

[Yes. Note that the designation "yes" simply means that the Notes are intended upon issue to be deposited with one of the ICSDs as common safekeeper[, and registered in the name of a nominee of one of the ICSDs acting as common safekeeper] [include this text for Registered Notes which are to be held under the NSS and does not necessarily mean that the Notes will be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra day credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon issue or at any or all times during their life. Such recognition will depend upon the ECB being satisfied that Eurosystem eligibility criteria have been met.]/

[No. Whilst the designation is specified as "no" at the date of this Pricing Supplement, should the Eurosystem eligibility criteria be amended in the future such that the Notes are capable of meeting them the Notes may then be deposited with one of the ICSDs as common safekeeper [, and registered in the name of a nominee of one of the ICSDs acting as common safekeeper] [include this text for Registered Notes]. Note that this does not necessarily mean that the Notes will then be recognised as eligible collateral for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra day credit operations by the Eurosystem at any time during their life. Such recognition will depend upon the ECB being satisfied that Eurosystem eligibility criteria have been met.]

### 5. DISTRIBUTION

(i) Method of distribution: [Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

(ii) If syndicated, names of [Not Applicable/give names] Managers:

(iii) Stabilisation Manager(s) (if [Not Applicable/give name] any):

(iv) If non-syndicated, name of [Not Applicable/give name] relevant Dealer:

(v) U.S. Selling Restrictions: Reg. S Compliance Category 2; [TEFRA D/TEFRA C/TEFRA not applicable]

(vi) Additional selling [Not Applicable/give details]

restrictions:

(Additional selling restrictions are only likely to be relevant for certain structured Notes, such as commodity-linked Notes)

(vii) Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors: [Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If the offer of the Notes is concluded prior to 1 January 2018, or on and after that date the Notes clearly do not constitute "packaged" products, "Not Applicable" should be specified. If the offer of the Notes will be concluded on or after 1 January 2018 and the Notes may constitute "packaged" products, "Applicable" should be specified.)

### TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following are the Terms and Conditions of the Notes which will be incorporated by reference into each Global Note (as defined below) and each definitive Note, in the latter case only if permitted by the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority (if any) and agreed by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer at the time of issue but, if not so permitted and agreed, such definitive Note will have endorsed thereon or attached thereto such Terms and Conditions. The applicable Pricing Supplement (or the relevant provisions thereof) will be endorsed upon, or attached to, each Global Note and definitive Note. Reference should be made to "Applicable Pricing Supplement" for a description of the content of final terms which will specify which of such terms are to apply in relation to the relevant Notes.

This Note is one of a Series (as defined below) of Notes issued by Tritax Big Box REIT plc (the Issuer) constituted by a Trust Deed (such Trust Deed as modified and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the Trust Deed) dated 23 November 2017 made between the Issuer, the Original Guarantors (as defined below) and BNY Mellon Corporate Trustee Services Limited (the Trustee, which expression shall include any successor as Trustee). References herein to the Guarantors are references to Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited; TBBR Holdings 1 Limited; TBBR Holdings 2 Limited; Sherburn Trustee One Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust; Sherburn Trustee Two Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust; Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd; Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd; Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited; Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited; Tritax Atherstone Limited; Tritax Atherstone Limited; Tritax Crewe Limited; Tritax Carlisle Limited; Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited; Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited; Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited; Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited; Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited; Tritax Lymedale Limited; Tritax Peterborough Limited; Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited; Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited; Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited; Baljean Properties Limited; Tritax Knowsley Limited; Sonoma Ventures Limited; Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited; Tritax Worksop Limited; Tritax Ripon Limited; and Tritax Harlow Limited (the Original Guarantors) and each company (if any) which becomes an additional guarantor (each an **Additional Guarantor**) pursuant to Condition 3.4 (Status of the Notes and the Guarantee – Additional Guarantors) and in accordance with the Trust Deed, but shall not include any Subsidiary (as defined in Condition 4.1 (Covenants - Negative Pledge)) of the Issuer which ceases to be a Guarantor of the relevant Series pursuant to Condition 3.3 (Status of the Notes and the Guarantee - Release of a Guarantor).

References herein to the **Notes** shall be references to the Notes of this Series and shall mean:

- (a) in relation to any Notes represented by a global Note (a **Global Note**), units of each Specified Denomination in the Specified Currency;
- (b) any Global Note;
- (c) any definitive Notes in bearer form (**Bearer Notes**) issued in exchange for a Global Note in bearer form; and

(d) any definitive Notes in registered form (**Registered Notes**) (whether or not issued in exchange for a Global Note in registered form).

The Notes, the Receipts (as defined below) and the Coupons (as defined below) have the benefit of an Agency Agreement (such Agency Agreement as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the **Agency Agreement**) dated 23 November 2017 and made between the Issuer, the Guarantors, the Trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch as issuing and principal paying agent and agent bank (the **Principal Paying Agent**, which expression shall include any successor principal paying agent) and the other paying agents named therein (together with the Principal Paying Agent, the **Paying Agents**, which expression shall include any additional or successor paying agents), The Bank of New York Mellon S.A./N.V., Luxembourg Branch as registrar (the **Registrar**, which expression shall include any successor registrar) and a transfer agent and the other transfer agents named therein (together with the Registrar, the **Transfer Agents**, which expression shall include any additional or successor transfer agents). The Principal Paying Agent, the Registrar, the Paying Agents, the Exchange Agent and other Transfer Agents together referred to as the **Agents**.

The final terms for this Note (or the relevant provisions thereof) are set out in Part A of the Pricing Supplement attached to or endorsed on this Note which supplement these Terms and Conditions (the **Conditions**) and may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the Conditions, replace or modify the Conditions for the purposes of this Note. References to the **applicable Pricing Supplement** are, unless otherwise stated, to Part A of the Pricing Supplement (or the relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on this Note. The expression **Prospectus Directive** means Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended, including by Directive 2010/73/EU), and includes any relevant implementing measure in a relevant Member State of the European Economic Area.

Interest bearing definitive Bearer Notes have interest coupons (**Coupons**) and, in the case of Bearer Notes which, when issued in definitive form, have more than 27 interest payments remaining, talons for further Coupons (**Talons**) attached on issue. Any reference herein to Coupons or coupons shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed to include a reference to Talons or talons. Notes in definitive bearer form which are repayable in instalments have receipts (**Receipts**) for the payment of the instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) attached on issue. Registered Notes and Global Notes do not have Receipts, Coupons or Talons attached on issue.

The Trustee acts for the benefit of the Noteholders (which expression shall mean (in the case of Bearer Notes) the holders of the Notes and (in the case of Registered Notes) the persons in whose name the Notes are registered and shall, in relation to any Notes represented by a Global Note, be construed as provided below), the holders of the Receipts (the Receiptholders) and the holders of the Coupons (the Couponholders, which expression shall, unless the context otherwise requires, include the holders of the Talons), in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

As used herein, **Tranche** means Notes which are identical in all respects (including as to listing and admission to trading) and **Series** means a Tranche of Notes together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Notes which (a) are expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (b) have the same terms and conditions or terms and conditions which are the same in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon and the date from which interest starts to accrue.

Copies of the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement are available for inspection during normal business hours at the specified office of each of the Paying Agents. If the Notes are to

be admitted to trading on the Global Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange the applicable Pricing Supplement will be published on the website of the Irish Stock Exchange. In the case of a Tranche of Notes which is not admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation on any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system, copies of the applicable Pricing Supplement will only be obtainable by a Noteholder holding one or more Notes and such Noteholder must produce evidence satisfactory to the Issuer, the Trustee and the relevant Agent as to its holding of such Notes and identity. The Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders are deemed to have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement which are applicable to them. The statements in the Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement.

Words and expressions defined in the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable Pricing Supplement shall have the same meanings where used in the Conditions unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of inconsistency between the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement, the Trust Deed will prevail and, in the event of inconsistency between the Trust Deed or the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement, the applicable Pricing Supplement will prevail.

In the Conditions, **euro** means the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended.

## 1. FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE

The Notes are in bearer form or in registered form as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and, in the case of definitive Notes, serially numbered, in the currency (the **Specified Currency**) and the denominations (the **Specified Denomination(s)**) specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Notes of one Specified Denomination may not be exchanged for Notes of another Specified Denomination and Bearer Notes may not be exchanged for Registered Notes and *vice versa*.

This Note may be a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon Note, an Index Linked Interest Note, a Dual Currency Interest Note or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Interest Basis shown in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

This Note may also be an Index Linked Redemption Note, an Instalment Note, a Dual Currency Redemption Note, a Partly Paid Note or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Redemption/Payment Basis shown in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Definitive Bearer Notes are issued with Coupons attached, unless they are Zero Coupon Notes in which case references to Coupons and Couponholders in the Conditions are not applicable.

Subject as set out below, title to the Bearer Notes, Receipts and Coupons will pass by delivery and title to the Registered Notes will pass upon registration of transfers in accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement. The Issuer, the Guarantors, the Trustee and any Agent will (except as otherwise required by law) deem and treat the bearer of any Bearer Note, Receipt or Coupon and the registered holder of any Registered Note as the absolute owner thereof (whether or not overdue and notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing thereon or notice of any

previous loss or theft thereof) for all purposes but, in the case of any Global Note, without prejudice to the provisions set out in the next succeeding paragraph.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Euroclear Bank SA/NV (Euroclear) and/or Clearstream Banking S.A. (Clearstream, **Luxembourg**), each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes (in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantors, the Trustee and the Agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such Notes, for which purpose the bearer of the relevant Bearer Global Note or the registered holder of the relevant Registered Global Note shall be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantors, the Trustee and any Agent as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of the relevant Global Note and the expressions Noteholder and holder of Notes and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

In determining whether a particular person is entitled to a particular nominal amount of Notes as aforesaid, the Trustee may rely on such evidence and/or information and/or certification as it shall, in its absolute discretion, think fit and, if it does so rely, such evidence and/or information and/or certification shall, in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on all concerned.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be. References to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in Part B of the applicable Pricing Supplement.

#### 2. TRANSFERS OF REGISTERED NOTES

### 2.1 Transfers of interests in Registered Global Notes

Transfers of beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be effected by Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, and, in turn, by other participants and, if appropriate, indirect participants in such clearing systems acting on behalf of transferors and transferees of such interests. A beneficial interest in a Registered Global Note will, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory restrictions, be transferable for Notes in definitive form or for a beneficial interest in another Registered Global Note of the same series only in the authorised denominations set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement and only in accordance with the rules and operating procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, and in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement.

# 2.2 Transfers of Registered Notes in definitive form

Subject as provided in paragraphs 2.3, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement, a Registered Note in

definitive form may be transferred in whole or in part (in the authorised denominations set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement). In order to effect any such transfer (a) the holder or holders must (i) surrender the Registered Note for registration of the transfer of the Registered Note (or the relevant part of the Registered Note) at the specified office of any Transfer Agent, with the form of transfer thereon duly executed by the holder or holders thereof or his or their attorney or attorneys duly authorised in writing and (ii) complete and deposit such other certifications as may be required by the relevant Transfer Agent and (b) the relevant Transfer Agent must, after due and careful enquiry, be satisfied with the documents of title and the identity of the person making the request. Any such transfer will be subject to such reasonable regulations as the Issuer, the Trustee and the Registrar may from time to time prescribe (the initial such regulations being set out in Schedule 3 to the Agency Agreement). Subject as provided above, the relevant Transfer Agent will, within three business days (being for this purpose a day on which banks are open for business in the city where the specified office of the relevant Transfer Agent is located) of the request (or such longer period as may be required to comply with any applicable fiscal or other laws or regulations), authenticate and deliver, or procure the authentication and delivery of, at its specified office to the transferee or (at the risk of the transferee) send by uninsured mail, to such address as the transferee may request, a new Registered Note in definitive form of a like aggregate nominal amount to the Registered Note (or the relevant part of the Registered Note) transferred. In the case of the transfer of part only of a Registered Note in definitive form, a new Registered Note in definitive form in respect of the balance of the Registered Note not transferred will be so authenticated and delivered or (at the risk of the transferor) sent to the transferor.

### 2.3 Registration of transfer upon partial redemption

In the event of a partial redemption of Notes under Condition 7 (*Redemption and Purchase*), the Issuer shall not be required to register the transfer of any Registered Note, or part of a Registered Note, called for partial redemption.

# 2.4 Costs of registration

Noteholders will not be required to bear the costs and expenses of effecting any registration of transfer as provided above, except for any costs or expenses of delivery other than by regular uninsured mail and except that the Issuer may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any stamp duty, tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation to the registration.

### 3. STATUS OF THE NOTES AND THE GUARANTEE

### 3.1 Status of the Notes

The Notes and any relative Receipts and Coupons are direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject to the provisions of Condition 4.1 (*Covenants - Negative Pledge*)) unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank *pari passu* among themselves and (save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law) equally with all other unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if any) of the Issuer, from time to time outstanding.

#### 3.2 Status of the Guarantee

The payment of principal and interest in respect of the Notes and all other moneys payable by the Issuer under or pursuant to the Trust Deed has been jointly and severally, unconditionally and (subject to the provisions of Condition 3.3 (*Status of the Notes and the Guarantee – Release of a Guarantor*)) irrevocably guaranteed by the Guarantors in the Trust Deed (the **Guarantee**). The obligations of the Guarantors under the Guarantee are direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject to the provisions of Condition 4.1 (*Covenants - Negative Pledge*)) unsecured obligations of each Guarantor and (save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law) rank equally with all other unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if any) of the Guarantor, from time to time outstanding.

### 3.3 Release of a Guarantor

The Issuer may by written notice (which includes the certifications referred to below) to the Trustee signed by two Authorised Signatories (as defined in the Trust Deed) of the Issuer request that a Guarantor ceases to be a Guarantor if such Guarantor is no longer providing a Financial Indebtedness Guarantee in respect of any Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer. Upon the Trustee's receipt of such notice, such Guarantor shall automatically and irrevocably be released and relieved of all of its obligations under the Guarantee and will cease to be a Guarantor for the purposes of these Conditions.

Such notice must also contain the following certifications upon which the Trustee can rely without liability to any person and without further enquiry:

- (a) no Event of Default or Potential Event of Default (as defined in the Trust Deed) is continuing or will result from the release of that Guarantor;
- (b) no part of the Financial Indebtedness in respect of which that Guarantor is or was providing a Financial Indebtedness Guarantee is at that time due and payable but unpaid; and
- (c) such Guarantor is not (or will cease to be simultaneously with such release) providing a Financial Indebtedness Guarantee in respect of any other part of the Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer.

If a Guarantor provides a Financial Indebtedness Guarantee in respect of any other Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer at any time subsequent to the date on which it is released from the Guarantee as described above, such Guarantor will be required to provide a guarantee as described in Condition 3.4 (*Status of the Notes and the Guarantee - Additional Guarantors*) below.

#### 3.4 Additional Guarantors

If at any time after the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes, any Subsidiary of the Issuer provides or at the time it becomes a Subsidiary is providing a Financial Indebtedness Guarantee in respect of any Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer, the Issuer covenants that it shall procure that such Subsidiary shall, as soon as reasonably practicable but in any event no later than 7 days after the date of the giving of such Financial Indebtedness Guarantee, or the date it so becomes a Subsidiary and is providing such a Financial Indebtedness Guarantee, execute and deliver a supplemental trust deed to the Trustee, such supplemental trust deed to be in a form

set out in Schedule 6 of the Trust Deed subject to such conditions as are set out in the Trust Deed (but without of the consent of the Noteholders), pursuant to which such Subsidiary shall guarantee the obligations of the Issuer in respect of the Notes, the Coupons and the Trust Deed on the same terms *mutatis mutandis* as the Guarantee including, but not limited to, such guarantee being joint and several. Each other Guarantor has in the Trust Deed confirmed that it has consented to any such entity becoming a Guarantor as aforesaid without any need for it to execute any supplemental trust deed.

For the purposes of this Condition:

**Financial Indebtedness** means any amount borrowed under the revolving credit facility dated 23 November 2017 (as amended and restated from time to time) between (*inter alios*) the Issuer and Barclays Bank PLC as facility agent, or any refinancing, renewal or substitution thereof; and

**Financial Indebtedness Guarantee** means in respect of any Financial Indebtedness, any guarantee or indemnity given in respect of such Financial Indebtedness.

# 3.5 Notice of change of Guarantor

Notice of any release of a Guarantor or addition of a Guarantor pursuant to this Condition will be given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*).

#### 4. COVENANTS

# 4.1 Negative Pledge

So long as any of the Notes remains outstanding:

- (a) the Issuer will not, and the Issuer will procure that none of its Subsidiaries (as defined below) will, create or have outstanding any mortgage, charge, lien, pledge or other security interest (each a **Security Interest**) (other than a Permitted Security Interest) upon, or with respect to, any of their present or future business, undertaking, assets or revenues (including any uncalled capital) of the Issuer and/or any of its Subsidiaries to secure any Relevant Indebtedness (as defined below), unless the Issuer, in the case of the creation of a Security Interest, before or at the same time and, in any other case, promptly, takes any and all action necessary to ensure that:
  - (i) all amounts payable by it under the Notes, the Coupons and the Trust Deed are secured by the Security Interest equally and rateably with the Relevant Indebtedness to the satisfaction of the Trustee; or
  - (ii) such other Security Interest or other arrangement (whether or not it includes the giving of a Security Interest) is provided either (A) as the Trustee in its absolute discretion deems not materially less beneficial to the interests of the Noteholders or (B) as is approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Trust Deed) of the Noteholders; and
- (b) none of the Guarantors will, and each of the Guarantors will procure that none of its Subsidiaries will, create or have outstanding any Security Interest

(other than a Permitted Security Interest) upon, or with respect to, any of the present or future business, undertaking, assets or revenues (including any uncalled capital) of each Guarantor and/or any of their Subsidiaries to secure any Relevant Indebtedness unless the relevant Guarantor, in the case of the creation of the Security Interest, before or at the same time and, in any other case, promptly, takes any and all action necessary to ensure that:

- (i) all amounts payable by it under the Guarantee are secured by the Security Interest equally and rateably with the Relevant Indebtedness to the satisfaction of the Trustee; or
- (ii) such other Security Interest or other arrangement (whether or not it includes the giving of a Security Interest) is provided either (A) as the Trustee in its absolute discretion deems not materially less beneficial to the interests of the Noteholders or (B) as is approved by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders.

For the purposes of this Condition:

**Permitted Security Interest** means a Security Interest on the undertaking or assets of a company acquired by the Issuer or any of its Subsidiaries after the Issue Date, provided that such Security Interest was not created in contemplation of such acquisition and the principal amount secured by such Security Interest has not been increased in contemplation of or since such acquisition.

**Relevant Indebtedness** means (a) any present or future indebtedness (whether being principal, premium, interest or other amounts) for or in respect of any notes, bonds, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock or other securities which are, or are intended to be (with the agreement of the issuer thereof), quoted, listed or ordinarily dealt in on any stock exchange, over-the-counter or other securities market, and (b) any guarantee or indemnity in respect of any such indebtedness.

**Subsidiary** means in relation to any person (the first person) at any particular time, any other person (the second person):

- (a) whose affairs and policies the first person controls or has power to control, whether by ownership or share capital, contract, the power to appoint or remove members of the governing body of the second person or otherwise; or
- (b) whose financial statements are, in accordance with applicable law and generally accepted accounting principles, consolidated with those of the first person.

#### **4.2** Financial Covenants

The Issuer shall procure that so long as any of the Notes remains outstanding (as defined in the Trust Deed),

- (a) Net Borrowings shall not, in respect of any Measurement Period on the last day of such Measurement Period, exceed 175 per cent. of Adjusted Capital and Reserves; and
- (b) Net Unsecured Borrowings shall not, in respect of any Measurement Period on the last day of such Measurement Period, exceed 70 per cent. of Unencumbered Assets.

For so long as any Notes remain outstanding, the Issuer will, concurrently with the delivery of each of the annual or semi-annual financial statement as provided in the Trust Deed, deliver a certificate to the Trustee signed by two Authorised Signatories of the Issuer, certifying the Issuer's compliance with the covenants set out in this Condition 4.2 in respect of the most recent completed Measurement Period.

Such Certificate as to compliance or otherwise by the Issuer with the covenants in this Condition 4.2 or as to any other defined term or figure required in connection with this Condition 4.2 (unless expressly stated otherwise) may, in the absence of manifest error, be relied upon by the Trustee and, if so relied upon, shall be conclusive and binding on the Issuer, the Noteholders and the Couponholders.

For the purpose of this Condition 4:

**Accounts Date** means the date of the Latest Consolidated Accounts.

Adjusted Capital and Reserves means, at any time, the amount of the issued and paid up share capital of the Issuer (for which purpose an issue or proposed issue of share capital for cash which has been unconditionally underwritten shall be deemed paid up to the extent that the underwriters are liable therefor but only if such capital will be paid up within six months from the date when such underwriting liability becomes unconditional) and the aggregate amount standing to the credit of the consolidated capital and revenue reserves of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries (including any share premium account, capital redemption reserve, revaluation reserve, other reserves and the credit or debit balance on the profit and loss account) all as shown in the Latest Consolidated Accounts but:

- (i) adjusted as may be appropriate to take account of:
  - (A) any increase in or reduction of such share capital and such reserves (other than in respect of any unaudited profit or loss attributable to the ordinary course of trading) since the Accounts Date,
  - (B) external valuation surplus arising in respect of any Assets stated in the Latest Consolidated Accounts.
  - (C) any increase in or reduction of such reserves arising as a result of a Revaluation,
  - (D) any distributions in cash or specie made (otherwise than to the Issuer, or any Subsidiary of the Issuer and attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Issuer) from such reserves or profit and loss account since the Accounts Date and not provided for therein,
  - (E) any Subsidiary of the Issuer not consolidated in the Latest Consolidated Accounts or any companies which since the Accounts Date have become or have ceased to be Subsidiaries of the Issuer, and
  - (F) any other variation in the Issuer's interests in Subsidiaries of the Issuer since the Accounts Date:
- (ii) after excluding any sums set aside for taxation (whether in respect of deferred tax or otherwise);

- (iii) after deducting all amounts (if any) attributable to goodwill or any other intangible assets unless such amounts were included in the Latest Consolidated Accounts (or, in the case of any company which has become a Subsidiary of the Issuer since the Accounts Date, in the most recent audited accounts of such company);
- (iv) after excluding any amount attributable to outside interests in Subsidiaries;
- (v) after making such other adjustments (if any) as the auditors for the time being of the Issuer may consider appropriate; and
- (vi) after excluding any increase or decrease in the amount of any reserve made (save in relation to any equity instrument) as a result of any requirement that any gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or of a financial liability be recorded in reserves, whether by inclusion in the profit and loss account or otherwise. (For the purpose of this provision the terms "financial asset" and "financial liability" shall not include property assets or property liabilities).

**Assets** means, at any time, all real property assets, land and pre-let forward funded developments.

### Borrowings means, at any time

- (i) the principal amount of all moneys borrowed (with or without security) by any member of the Group (excluding any such obligations to any other members of the Group);
- (ii) the maximum amount for the time being outstanding for which any member of the Group has given security or is liable as guarantor or indemnifier or in any other like capacity in respect of moneys borrowed;
- (iii) the principal amount raised by any member of the Group by acceptances (not being acceptances in relation to the purchase of goods or services in the ordinary course of trading which have been outstanding for 180 days or less) or under any acceptance credit opened on its behalf by a bank or accepting house;
- (iv) the principal amount of any debenture (as defined by section 738 of the Companies Act 2006) of any member of the Group;
- (v) the principal amount outstanding by any member of the Group under a Finance Lease. For the avoidance of doubt, rents payable in respect of leaseholds of immovable property entered into in the ordinary course of business shall not be deemed to be finance leases for these purposes; and
- (vi) principal amounts outstanding which do not otherwise fall to be treated as Borrowings of any member of the Group under any other paragraph of this definition if they are treated as borrowings in the Latest Consolidated Accounts.

**Finance Lease** means any lease or hire purchase contract, a liability under which would, in accordance with GAAP, be treated as a balance sheet liability (other than a

lease or hire purchase contract which would, in accordance with the GAAP in force prior to January 2019, have been treated as an operating lease).

**Financial Half Year** means the semi-annual accounting period of the Group commencing on 1 January and ending on 30 June in each year.

**Financial Year** means the annual accounting period of the Group ending 31 December in each year.

**GAAP** means generally accepted accounting principles in the United Kingdom, including international accounting standards within the meaning of the IAS Regulation 1606/2002 to the extent applicable to the relevant financial statements;

**Group** means the Issuer and its Subsidiaries from time to time.

**Latest Consolidated Accounts** means, at any date, the then latest consolidated financial statements of the Group (including the notes thereto) which have been audited and/or reported on by the auditors for the time being of the Issuer and published and distributed to the shareholders generally of the Issuer as the accounts of the Group.

#### **Measurement Period** means:

- (i) each period of twelve months ending on the last day of each Financial Year; and
- (ii) each period of six months ending on the last day of the Financial Half Year.

**Net Borrowings** means, at any time, Borrowings less cash and deposits beneficially owned by any member of the Group.

**Net Unsecured Borrowings** means, at any time, Borrowings less:

- (i) cash and deposits beneficially owned by any member of the Group which are not subject to a Security Interest;
- (ii) Secured Borrowings; and
- (iii) Non-Recourse Borrowings.

**Non-Recourse Borrowings** means, at any time, Borrowings (as identified in the Latest Consolidated Accounts or which, having arisen since the Accounts Date, the Issuer intends will be identified in the next consolidated accounts) made by a ring fenced special purpose company such that the lender has recourse for repayment of those Borrowings only to that company or its assets and (if applicable) to other Non-Recourse Companies or their assets.

**Non-Recourse Company** means a member of the Group whose Borrowings are Non-Recourse Borrowings, or to whom or against whose assets the lender of Non-Recourse Borrowings has recourse for their repayment.

**Revaluation** means a valuation of all or any Assets carried out by external valuers on an open market basis.

**Secured Borrowings** means, at any time, Borrowings the discharge of which is secured by a Security Interest.

**Security Interest** means a mortgage, pledge, charge, assignment, hypothecation or other agreement conferring security, other than (i) netting or set-off arrangement entered into by any member of the Group in the ordinary course of its banking arrangements and (ii) any lien arising by operation of law and in the ordinary course of trading.

**Unencumbered Assets** means the aggregate Value of the Assets of the Group at the relevant date, as adjusted by deducting (i) the Value of Assets over which a Security Interest has been granted and (ii) and any other Assets to which a lender of Non-Recourse Borrowings has recourse for their repayment (each as identified in the Latest Consolidated Accounts or which, having arisen since the Accounts Date, the Issuer intends will be identified in the next consolidated accounts).

#### Value means

- (i) the value attributed to any Asset in the Latest Consolidated Accounts including (without limitation) any external valuation surplus;
- (ii) in the case of an Asset acquired by a member of the Group since the Accounts Date, the acquisition cost of such Asset or, in the case of an Asset owned by a Subsidiary acquired since the Accounts Date, the fair value attributed to such Asset in the acquisition;
- (iii) in the case of an Asset the subject of a Revaluation since the Accounts Date, the open market value attributed to such Asset by the Revaluation.

#### 5. INTEREST

#### 5.1 Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date at the rate(s) per annum equal to the Rate(s) of Interest. Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to (and including) the Maturity Date.

If the Notes are in definitive form, except as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment Date in respect of the Fixed Interest Period ending on (but excluding) such date will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount. Payments of interest on any Interest Payment Date will, if so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, amount to the Broken Amount so specified.

As used in the Conditions, **Fixed Interest Period** means the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date.

Except in the case of Notes in definitive form where an applicable Fixed Coupon Amount or Broken Amount is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, interest shall be calculated in respect of any period by applying the Rate of Interest to:

- (a) in the case of Fixed Rate Notes which are represented by a Global Note, the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the Fixed Rate Notes represented by such Global Note (or, if they are Partly Paid Notes, the aggregate amount paid up); or
- (b) in the case of Fixed Rate Notes in definitive form, the Calculation Amount;

and, in each case, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention. Where the Specified Denomination of a Fixed Rate Note in definitive form is a multiple of the Calculation Amount, the amount of interest payable in respect of such Fixed Rate Note shall be the product of the amount (determined in the manner provided above) for the Calculation Amount and the amount by which the Calculation Amount is multiplied to reach the Specified Denomination, without any further rounding.

**Day Count Fraction** means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest, in accordance with this Condition 5.1:

- (i) if "Actual/Actual (ICMA)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement:
  - (A) in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period from (and including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (the **Accrual Period**) is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the number of days in such Accrual Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) that would occur in one calendar year; or
  - (B) in the case of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:
    - (1) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period in which the Accrual Period begins divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one calendar year; and
    - (2) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination Period divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one calendar year; and

(ii) if "30/360" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the period from (and including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (such number of days being calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months) divided by 360.

In these Conditions:

**Determination Period** means each period from (and including) a Determination Date to (but excluding) the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest Commencement Date or the final Interest Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on the first Determination Date prior to, and ending on the first Determination Date falling after, such date); and

**sub-unit** means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such currency that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro, one cent.

## 5.2 Interest on Floating Rate Notes

### (a) Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note bears interest from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date and such interest will be payable in arrear on either:

- (i) the Specified Interest Payment Date(s) in each year specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; or
- (ii) if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, each date (each such date, together with each Specified Interest Payment Date, an **Interest Payment Date**) which falls the number of months or other period specified as the Specified Period in the applicable Pricing Supplement after the preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after the Interest Commencement Date.

Such interest will be payable in respect of each Interest Period. In these Conditions, **Interest Period** means the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date.

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and (x) if there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date should occur or (y) if any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified is:

(A) in any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with Condition 5.2(a) (Interest - Interest on Floating Rate Notes - Interest Payment Dates - (ii)) above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest Payment Date (a) in the case of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant month and the provisions of (ii) below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (b) in the case of (y) above, shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the

next calendar month, in which event (i) such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (ii) each subsequent Interest Payment Date shall be the last Business Day in the month which falls the Specified Period after the preceding applicable Interest Payment Date occurred; or

- (B) the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or
- (C) the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day; or
- (D) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

### In these Conditions, **Business Day** means:

- (a) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in London and each Additional Business Centre (other than TARGET2 System) specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
- (b) if TARGET2 System is specified as an Additional Business Centre in the applicable Pricing Supplement, a day on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET2) System (the **TARGET2 System**) is open; and
- either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (which if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET2 System is open.

# (b) Rate of Interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(i) ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if any). For the purposes of this subparagraph (i), **ISDA Rate** for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Principal Paying Agent under an interest rate swap transaction if the Principal

Paying Agent were acting as Calculation Agent for that swap transaction under the terms of an agreement incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions, as published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes (the **ISDA Definitions**) and under which:

- (A) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
- (B) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; and
- (C) the relevant Reset Date is the day specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

For the purposes of this subparagraph (i), Floating Rate, Calculation Agent, Floating Rate Option, Designated Maturity and Reset Date have the meanings given to those terms in the ISDA Definitions.

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement the Minimum Rate of Interest shall be deemed to be zero.

(ii) Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will, subject as provided below, be either:

- (A) the offered quotation; or
- (B) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate (being either LIBOR or EURIBOR, as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) which appears or appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page (or such replacement page on that service which displays the information) as at 11.00 a.m. (London time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the Interest Determination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if any), all as determined by the Principal Paying Agent. If five or more of such offered quotations are available on the Relevant Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one only of such quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by the Principal Paying Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of such offered quotations.

If the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of (A) above, no such offered quotation appears or, in the case of (B) above, fewer than three such offered quotations appear, in each case as at the time specified in the preceding paragraph, the Principal Paying Agent shall request each of the Reference Banks to provide the Principal Paying Agent with its offered

quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate at approximately the Specified Time on the Interest Determination Date in question. If two or more of the Reference Banks provide the Principal Paying Agent with offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for the Interest Period shall be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any), all as determined by the Principal Paying Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date one only or none of the Reference Banks provides the Principal Paying Agent with an offered quotation as provided in the preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall be the rate per annum which the Principal Paying Agent determines as being the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as communicated to (and at the request of) the Principal Paying Agent by the Reference Banks or any two or more of them, at which such banks were offered, at approximately the Specified Time on the relevant Interest Determination Date, deposits in the Specified Currency for a period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate by leading banks in the London inter-bank market (if the Reference Rate is LIBOR) or the Eurozone inter-bank market (if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR) plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any) or, if fewer than two of the Reference Banks provide the Principal Paying Agent with offered rates, the offered rate for deposits in the Specified Currency for a period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate, or the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of the offered rates for deposits in the Specified Currency for a period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate, at which, at approximately the Specified Time on the relevant Interest Determination Date, any one or more banks (which bank or banks is or are in the opinion of the Issuer suitable for the purpose) informs the Principal Paying Agent it is quoting to leading banks in the London inter-bank market (if the Reference Rate is LIBOR) or the Euro-zone inter-bank market (if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR) plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any), provided that, if the Rate of Interest cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this paragraph, the Rate of Interest shall be determined as at the last preceding Interest Determination Date (though substituting, where a different Margin is to be applied to the relevant Interest Period from that which applied to the last preceding Interest Period, the Margin relating to the relevant Interest Period in place of the Margin relating to that last preceding Interest Period).

Unless otherwise stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement the Minimum Rate of Interest shall be deemed to be zero.

Where the applicable Pricing Supplement identifies that Screen Rate Determination applies to the calculation of interest, if the Reference Rate from time to time is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as being other than LIBOR or EURIBOR, the Rate of Interest in respect of such Notes will be determined as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

#### (c) Minimum Rate of Interest and/or Maximum Rate of Interest

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies a Minimum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (b) above is less than such Minimum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Minimum Rate of Interest.

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies a Maximum Rate of Interest for any Interest Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (b) above is greater than such Maximum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Maximum Rate of Interest.

## (d) Determination of Rate of Interest and calculation of Interest Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent will at or as soon as practicable after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, determine the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period.

The Principal Paying Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the **Interest Amount**) payable on the Floating Rate Notes for the relevant Interest Period by applying the Rate of Interest to:

- in the case of Floating Rate Notes which are represented by a Global Note, the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the Notes represented by such Global Note (or, if they are Partly Paid Notes, the aggregate amount paid up); or
- (ii) in the case of Floating Rate Notes in definitive form, the Calculation Amount;

and, in each case, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention. Where the Specified Denomination of a Floating Rate Note in definitive form is a multiple of the Calculation Amount, the Interest Amount payable in respect of such Note shall be the product of the amount (determined in the manner provided above) for the Calculation Amount and the amount by which the Calculation Amount is multiplied to reach the Specified Denomination without any further rounding.

**Day Count Fraction** means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest in accordance with this Condition 5.2 (*Interest - Interest on Floating Rate Notes*):

- (i) if "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" or "Actual/Actual" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that Interest Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (I) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (II) the actual number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);
- (ii) if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365;

- (iii) if "Actual/365 (Sterling)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest Payment Date falling in a leap year, 366;
- (iv) if "Actual/360" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360;
- (v) if "30/360", "360/360" or "Bond Basis" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

Day Count Fraction = 
$$\frac{[360 \times (Y_2 - Y_1)] + [30 \times (M_2 - M_1)] + (D_2 - D_1)}{360}$$

where:

 $\mathbf{Y}_1$  is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

 $\mathbf{Y_2}$  is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day of the Interest Period falls;

 $M_1$  is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

 $M_2$  is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day of the Interest Period falls;

 $\mathbf{D_1}$  is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless such number is 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

 $\mathbf{D}_2$  is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31 and D1 is greater than 29, in which case D2 will be 30;

(vi) if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

Day Count Fraction = 
$$\frac{[360 \times (Y_2 - Y_1)] + [30 \times (M_2 - M_1)] + (D_2 - D_1)}{360}$$

where:

 $\mathbf{Y}_1$  is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

 $Y_2$  is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day of the Interest Period falls;

 $M_1$  is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

 $M_2$  is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day of the Interest Period falls;

 $\mathbf{D_1}$  is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

 $\mathbf{D}_2$  is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included in the Interest Period, unless such number would be 31, in which case D2 will be 30;

(vii) if "30E/360 (ISDA)" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

Day Count Fraction = 
$$\frac{[360 \times (Y_2 - Y_1)] + [30 \times (M_2 - M_1)] + (D_2 - D_1)}{360}$$

where:

 $\mathbf{Y}_1$  is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls:

 $\mathbf{Y_2}$  is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day of the Interest Period falls;

 $M_1$  is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Interest Period falls;

 $M_2$  is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the last day of the Interest Period falls;

 $\mathbf{D_1}$  is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Interest Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D1 will be 30; and

 $\mathbf{D}_2$  is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day included in the Interest Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February but not the Maturity Date or (ii) such number would be 31, in which case D2 will be 30.

## (e) Linear Interpolation

Where Linear Interpolation is specified as applicable in respect of an Interest Period in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be calculated by the Agent by straight line linear interpolation by reference to two rates based on the relevant Reference Rate (where Screen Rate Determination is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement) or the relevant Floating Rate Option (where ISDA Determination is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement), one of which shall be determined as if the Designated Maturity were the period of time for which rates are available next shorter than the length of the relevant Interest Period and the other of which shall be determined as if the Designated Maturity were the period of time for which rates are available next longer than the length of the relevant Interest Period provided however that if there is no rate available for a period of time next shorter or, as the case may be, next longer, then the

Agent shall determine such rate at such time and by reference to such sources as it determines appropriate.

**Designated Maturity** means, in relation to Screen Rate Determination, the period of time designated in the Reference Rate and, in relation to ISDA Determination, as so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

#### (f) Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for each Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the Issuer, the Trustee and any stock exchange on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes are for the time being listed and notice thereof to be published in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*) as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than the fourth London Business Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements made by way of adjustment) without prior notice in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any such amendment will promptly be notified to each stock exchange on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes are for the time being listed and to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*). For the purposes of this paragraph, the expression **London Business Day** means a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks and foreign exchange markets are open for general business in London.

## (g) Determination or Calculation by Trustee

If for any reason at any relevant time the Principal Paying Agent defaults in its obligation to determine the Rate of Interest or in its obligation to calculate any Interest Amount in accordance with subparagraph (b)(i) or subparagraph (b)(ii) above, as the case may be, and in each case in accordance with paragraph (d) and (e) above, the Trustee shall determine the Rate of Interest at such rate as, in its absolute discretion (having such regard as it shall think fit to the foregoing provisions of this Condition, but subject always to any Minimum Rate of Interest or Maximum Rate of Interest specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement), it shall deem fair and reasonable in all the circumstances or, as the case may be, the Trustee shall calculate the Interest Amount(s) in such manner as it shall deem fair and reasonable in all the circumstances and each such determination or calculation shall be deemed to have been made by the Principal Paying Agent.

#### (h) Certificates to be final

All certificates, communications, opinions, determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this Condition 5.2 (*Interest - Interest on Floating Rate Notes*) by the Principal Paying Agent shall (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the Guarantors, the Principal Paying Agent, the other Agents and all Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders and (in the absence of wilful default or bad faith) no liability to the Issuer, the Guarantors, the Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponholders shall attach to the Principal Paying Agent or the Trustee in connection with the exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant to such provisions.

#### 5.3 Notes other than Fixed or Floating Rate Notes

The rate or amount of interest payable in respect of Notes which are not also Fixed Rate Notes or Floating Rate Notes shall be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, provided that where such Notes are Index Linked Interest Notes the provisions of Condition 5.2 (Interest - Interest on Floating Rate Notes) shall, save to the extent amended in the applicable Pricing Supplement, apply as if the references therein to Floating Rate Notes and to the Agent were references to Index Linked Interest Notes and the Calculation Agent, respectively, and provided further that the Calculation Agent will notify the Agent of the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period as soon as practicable after calculating the same.

In the case of Partly Paid Notes (other than Partly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes), interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid up nominal amount of such Notes and otherwise as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

#### 5.4 Accrual of interest

Each Note (or in the case of the redemption of part only of a Note, that part only of such Note) will cease to bear interest (if any) from the date for its redemption unless payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused. In such event, interest will continue to accrue until whichever is the earlier of:

- (a) the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Note have been paid; and
- (b) the third day after notice is given to the relevant Noteholder(s) (whether individually or in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*)) that the full amount (including interest as aforesaid) in the relevant currency in respect of such Note is available for payment.

#### 6. PAYMENTS

### 6.1 Method of payment

Subject as provided below:

- (a) payments in a Specified Currency other than euro will be made by credit or transfer to an account in the relevant Specified Currency maintained by the payee with a bank in the principal financial centre of the country of such Specified Currency (which, if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively); and
- (b) payments will be made in euro by credit or transfer to a euro account (or any other account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee.

Payments will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or other laws and regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 8 (*Taxation*) and (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the **Code**) or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any official interpretations thereof,

or (without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 8 (*Taxation*)) any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto.

# 6.2 Presentation of definitive Bearer Notes, Receipts and Coupons

Payments of principal in respect of definitive Bearer Notes will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in Condition 6.1 above (*Payments - Method of payment*) only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of definitive Bearer Notes, and payments of interest in respect of definitive Bearer Notes will (subject as provided below) be made as aforesaid only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of Coupons, in each case at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States (which expression, as used herein, means the United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia and its possessions)).

Fixed Rate Notes in definitive bearer form (other than Long Maturity Notes (as defined below)) and save as provided in Condition 6.4 (*Payments – Specific provisions in relation to payments in respect of certain types of Notes*) should be presented for payment together with all unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto (which expression shall for this purpose include Coupons falling to be issued on exchange of matured Talons), failing which the amount of any missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the case of payment not being made in full, the same proportion of the amount of such missing unmatured Coupon as the sum so paid bears to the sum due) will be deducted from the sum due for payment. Each amount of principal so deducted will be paid in the manner mentioned above against surrender of the relative missing Coupon at any time before the expiry of 10 years after the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8 (*Taxation*)) in respect of such principal (whether or not such Coupon would otherwise have become void under Condition 9 (*Prescription*)) or, if later, five years from the date on which such Coupon would otherwise have become due, but in no event thereafter.

Upon any Fixed Rate Note in definitive bearer form becoming due and repayable prior to its Maturity Date, all unmatured Talons (if any) appertaining thereto will become void and no further Coupons will be issued in respect thereof.

Upon the date on which any Floating Rate Note or Long Maturity Note in definitive bearer form becomes due and repayable, unmatured Coupons and Talons (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment or, as the case may be, exchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect thereof. A **Long Maturity Note** is a Fixed Rate Note (other than a Fixed Rate Note which on issue had a Talon attached) whose nominal amount on issue is less than the aggregate interest payable thereon provided that such Note shall cease to be a Long Maturity Note on the Interest Payment Date on which the aggregate amount of interest remaining to be paid after that date is less than the nominal amount of such Note.

If the due date for redemption of any definitive Bearer Note is not an Interest Payment Date, interest (if any) accrued in respect of such Note from (and including) the preceding Interest Payment Date or, as the case may be, the Interest Commencement Date shall be payable only against surrender of the relevant definitive Bearer Note.

#### **6.3** Payments in respect of Bearer Global Notes

Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of Notes represented by any Global Note in bearer form will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in relation to definitive Bearer Notes or otherwise in the manner specified in the relevant Global Note, where applicable against presentation or surrender, as the case may be, of such Global Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States. A record of each payment made, distinguishing between any payment of principal and any payment of interest, will be made either on such Global Note by the Paying Agent to which it was presented or in the records of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable.

## 6.4 Specific provisions in relation to payments in respect of certain types of Notes

Payments of instalments of principal (if any) in respect of definitive Bearer Notes, other than the final instalment, will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in Condition 6.1 (*Payments – Method of payment*) above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the relevant Receipt in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Payment of the final instalment will be made in the manner provided in Condition 6.1 (*Payments – Method of payment*) above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the relevant Bearer Note in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Each Receipt must be presented for payment of the relevant instalment together with the definitive Bearer Note to which it appertains. Receipts presented without the definitive Bearer Note to which they appertain do not constitute valid obligations of the Issuer. Upon the date on which any definitive Bearer Note becomes due and repayable, unmatured Receipts (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall be made in respect thereof.

Upon the date on which any Dual Currency Note or Index Linked Note in definitive bearer form becomes due and repayable, unmatured Coupons and Talons (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment or, as the case may be, exchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect thereof.

## 6.5 Payments in respect of Registered Notes

Payments of principal (other than instalments of principal prior to the final instalment) in respect of each Registered Note (whether or not in global form) will be made against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the Registered Note at the specified office of the Registrar or any of the Paying Agents. Such payments will be made by transfer to the Designated Account (as defined below) of the holder (or the first named of joint holders) of the Registered Note appearing in the register of holders of the Registered Notes maintained by the Registrar (the Register) (i) where in global form, at the close of the business day (being for this purpose a day on which Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg are open for business) before the relevant due date, and (ii) where in definitive form, at the close of business on the third business day (being for this purpose a day on which banks are open for business in the city where the specified office of the Registrar is located) before the relevant due date. For these purposes, **Designated Account** means the account (which, in the case of a payment in Japanese yen to a non resident of Japan, shall be a non resident account) maintained by a holder with a Designated Bank and identified as such in the Register and Designated Bank means (in the case of payment in a Specified Currency other than euro) a bank

in the principal financial centre of the country of such Specified Currency (which, if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively) and (in the case of a payment in euro) any bank which processes payments in euro.

Payments of interest and payments of instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) in respect of each Registered Note (whether or not in global form) will be made by transfer on the due date to the Designated Account of the holder (or the first named of joint holders) of the Registered Note appearing in the Register (i) where in global form, at the close of the business day (being for this purpose a day on which Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg are open for business) before the relevant due date, and (ii) where in definitive form, at the close of business on the fifteenth day (whether or not such fifteenth day is a business day) before the relevant due date (the **Record Date**). Payment of the interest due in respect of each Registered Note on redemption and the final instalment of principal will be made in the same manner as payment of the principal amount of such Registered Note.

No commissions or expenses shall be charged to the holders by the Registrar in respect of any payments of principal or interest in respect of Registered Notes.

None of the Issuer, the Guarantors, the Trustee or the Agents will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial ownership interests in the Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

## 6.6 General provisions applicable to payments

The holder of a Global Note shall be the only person entitled to receive payments in respect of Notes represented by such Global Note and the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantors will be discharged by payment to, or to the order of, the holder of such Global Note in respect of each amount so paid. Each of the persons shown in the records of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as the beneficial holder of a particular nominal amount of Notes represented by such Global Note must look solely to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, for his share of each payment so made by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor to, or to the order of, the holder of such Global Note.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Condition, if any amount of principal and/or interest in respect of Bearer Notes is payable in U.S. dollars, such U.S. dollar payments of principal and/or interest in respect of such Notes will be made at the specified office of a Paying Agent in the United States if:

- (a) the Issuer has appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make payment in U.S. dollars at such specified offices outside the United States of the full amount of principal and interest on the Bearer Notes in the manner provided above when due;
- (b) payment of the full amount of such principal and interest at all such specified offices outside the United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar restrictions on the full payment or receipt of principal and interest in U.S. dollars; and

(c) such payment is then permitted under United States law without involving, in the opinion of the Issuer and the Guarantors, adverse tax consequences to the Issuer or the Guarantor.

## 6.7 Payment Day

If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is not a Payment Day, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next following Payment Day in the relevant place and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in respect of such delay. For these purposes, **Payment Day** means any day which (subject to Condition 9 (*Prescription*)) is:

- (a) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits):
  - (i) in the case of Notes in definitive form only, in the relevant place of presentation; and
  - (ii) in each Additional Financial Centre (other than TARGET2 System) specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
- (b) if TARGET2 System is specified as an Additional Financial Centre in the applicable Pricing Supplement, a day on which the TARGET2 System is open; and
- (c) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (which if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars shall be Sydney and Auckland, respectively) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET2 System is open.

## 6.8 Interpretation of principal and interest

Any reference in the Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as applicable:

- (a) any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to principal under Condition 8 (*Taxation*) or under any undertaking or covenant given in addition thereto, or in substitution therefor, pursuant to the Trust Deed;
- (b) the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes;
- (c) the Early Redemption Amount of the Notes;
- (d) the Optional Redemption Amount(s) (if any) of the Notes;
- (e) the Change of Control Redemption Amount (if any) of the Notes;
- (f) in relation to Notes redeemable in instalments, the Instalment Amounts;

- (g) in relation to Zero Coupon Notes, the Amortised Face Amount (as defined in Condition 7.7 (*Redemption and Purchase Early Redemption Amounts*)); and
- (h) any premium and any other amounts (other than interest) which may be payable by the Issuer under or in respect of the Notes.

Any reference in the Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as applicable, any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to interest under Condition 8 (*Taxation*) or under any undertaking or covenant given in addition thereto, or in substitution therefor, pursuant to the Trust Deed.

## 7. REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE

#### 7.1 Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as specified below, each Note will be redeemed by the Issuer at its Final Redemption Amount specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement in the relevant Specified Currency on the Maturity Date specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

# 7.2 Redemption for tax reasons

Subject to Condition 7.7 (*Redemption and Purchase - Early Redemption Amounts*), the Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole, but not in part, at any time (if this Note is not a Floating Rate Note) or on any Interest Payment Date (if this Note is a Floating Rate Note), on giving not less than the minimum period nor more than the maximum period of notice specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement to the Trustee and the Principal Paying Agent and, in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*), the Noteholders (which notice shall be irrevocable), if the Issuer satisfies the Trustee immediately before the giving of such notice that:

- (a) on the occasion of the next payment due under the Notes, the Issuer has or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided or referred to in Condition 8 (*Taxation*) or any Guarantor would be unable for reasons outside its control to procure payment by the Issuer and in making payment itself would be required to pay such additional amounts, in each case as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of a Tax Jurisdiction (as defined in Condition 8 (*Taxation*)) or any change in the application or official interpretation of such laws or regulations, which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the date on which agreement is reached to issue the first Tranche of the Notes; and
- (b) such obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantors taking reasonable measures available to it,

provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantors would be obliged to pay such additional amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes, or the Guarantee, as the case may be, then due.

Prior to the publication of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition, the Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee to make available at its specified office to the Noteholders (i) a certificate signed by two Authorised Signatories of the Issuer stating that the Issuer is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a

statement of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the right of the Issuer so to redeem have occurred and (ii) an opinion of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to the effect that the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor have or will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as a result of such change or amendment and the Trustee shall be entitled to accept the certificate as sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of the conditions precedent set out above, in which event it shall be conclusive and binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders.

Notes redeemed pursuant to this Condition 7.2 (*Redemption and Purchase - Redemption for tax reasons*) will be redeemed at their Early Redemption Amount referred to in Condition 7.7 (*Redemption and Purchase - Early Redemption Amounts*) below together (if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but excluding) the date of redemption.

# 7.3 Redemption at the option of the Issuer (Issuer Call)

If Issuer Call is specified as being applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Issuer may, having given not less than the minimum period nor more than the maximum period of notice specified in applicable Pricing Supplement to the Trustee, the Principal Paying Agent (and, in the case of Registered Notes, the Registrar) and the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (Notices) (which notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed for redemption), redeem all or some only of the Notes then outstanding on any Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional Redemption Amount(s) specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the relevant Optional Redemption Date. Any such redemption must be of a nominal amount not less than the Minimum Redemption Amount and not more than the Maximum Redemption Amount, in each case as may be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. The Optional Redemption Amount will either be the specified percentage of the nominal amount of the Notes stated in the applicable Pricing Supplement or, if either Spens Amount or Make Whole Redemption Amount is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, will be:

- (a) if Spens Amount is specified as being applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the higher of (i) 100 per cent. of the nominal amount outstanding of the Notes to be redeemed and (ii) the nominal amount outstanding of the Notes to be redeemed multiplied by the price, as reported to the Issuer and the Trustee by the Determination Agent, at which the Gross Redemption Yield on such Notes on the Reference Date is equal to the Gross Redemption Yield (determined by reference to the middle market price) at the Quotation Time on the Reference Date of the Reference Bond, plus the Redemption Margin; or
- (b) if Make Whole Redemption Amount is specified as applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the higher of (i) 100 per cent. of the nominal amount outstanding of the Notes to be redeemed and (ii) the sum of the present values of the nominal amount outstanding of the Notes to be redeemed and the Remaining Term Interest on such Notes (exclusive of interest accrued to the date of redemption) and such present values shall be calculated by discounting such amounts to the date of redemption on an annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months or, in the case of an incomplete month, the number of days elapsed) at the Reference Bond Rate, plus the Redemption Margin,

all as determined by the Determination Agent.

In this Condition:

**DA Selected Bond** means a government security or securities selected by the Determination Agent as having an actual or interpolated maturity comparable with the remaining term of the Notes, that would be utilised, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities denominated in the Specified Currency and of a comparable maturity to the remaining term of the Notes;

**Determination Agent** means a leading investment bank or financial institution of international standing selected by the Issuer after consultation with the Trustee;

Gross Redemption Yield means, with respect to a security, the gross redemption yield on such security, expressed as a percentage and calculated by the Determination Agent on the basis set out by the United Kingdom Debt Management Office in the paper "Formulae for Calculating Gilt Prices from Yields", page 4, Section One: Price/Yield Formulae "Conventional Gilts"; "Double dated and Undated Gilts with Assumed (or Actual) Redemption on a Quasi-Coupon Date" (published 8 June 1998, as amended or updated from time to time) on a semi-annual compounding basis (converted to an annualised yield and rounded up (if necessary) to four decimal places) or on such other basis as the Trustee may (in its absolute discretion) approve;

Quotation Time shall be as set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement;

**Redemption Margin** shall be as set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement;

**Reference Bond** shall be as set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement or the DA Selected Bond;

**Reference Bond Price** means, with respect to any date of redemption, (a) the arithmetic average of the Reference Government Bond Dealer Quotations for such date of redemption, after excluding the highest and lowest such Reference Government Bond Dealer Quotations, or (b) if the Determination Agent obtains fewer than four such Reference Government Bond Dealer Quotations, the arithmetic average of all such quotations;

**Reference Bond Rate** means, with respect to any date of redemption, the rate per annum equal to the annual or semi-annual yield (as the case may be) to maturity or interpolated yield to maturity (on the relevant day count basis) of the Reference Bond, assuming a price for the Reference Bond (expressed as a percentage of its nominal amount) equal to the Reference Bond Price for such date of redemption;

**Reference Date** will be set out in the relevant notice of redemption;

**Reference Government Bond Dealer** means each of five banks selected by the Issuer, or their affiliates, which are (A) primary government securities dealers, and their respective successors, or (B) market makers in pricing corporate bond issues;

**Reference Government Bond Dealer Quotations** means, with respect to each Reference Government Bond Dealer and any date of redemption, the arithmetic average, as determined by the Determination Agent, of the bid and offered prices for the Reference Bond (expressed in each case as a percentage of its nominal amount) at

the Quotation Time on the Reference Date quoted in writing to the Determination Agent by such Reference Government Bond Dealer; and

**Remaining Term Interest** means, with respect to any Note, the aggregate amount of scheduled payment(s) of interest on such Note for the remaining term of such Note determined on the basis of the rate of interest applicable to such Note from and including the date on which such Note is to be redeemed by the Issuer pursuant to this Condition 7.3 (*Redemption at the option of the Issuer (Issuer Call*)).

In the case of a partial redemption of Notes, the Notes to be redeemed (**Redeemed Notes**) will (i) in the case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes, be selected individually by lot, not more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption and (ii) in the case of Redeemed Notes represented by a Global Note, be selected in accordance with the rules of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, (to be reflected in the records of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg as either a pool factor or a reduction in nominal amount, at their discretion). In the case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes, a list of the serial numbers of such Redeemed Notes will be published in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*) not less than 15 days prior to the date fixed for redemption.

## 7.4 Redemption at par at the option of the Issuer (Issuer Maturity Par Call)

If Issuer Maturity Par Call is specified as being applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Issuer may, having given not less than the minimum period nor more than the maximum period of notice specified in applicable Pricing Supplement to the Trustee, the Principal Paying Agent (and, in the case of Registered Notes, the Registrar) and the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*) (which notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed for redemption), redeem the Notes then outstanding in whole, but not in part, at any time during the Maturity Par Call Period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, at their nominal amount together with interest accrued but unpaid to, (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption.

## 7.5 Redemption at the option of the Noteholders (Investor Put)

If Investor Put is specified as being applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, upon the holder of any Note giving to the Issuer in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*) not less than the minimum period nor more than the maximum period of notice specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Issuer will, upon the expiry of such notice, redeem such Note on the Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional Redemption Amount together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the Optional Redemption Date.

To exercise the right to require redemption of this Note the holder of this Note must, if this Note is in definitive form and held outside Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, deliver, at the specified office of any Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes) at any time during normal business hours of such Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar falling within the notice period, a duly completed and signed notice of exercise in the form (for the time being current) obtainable from any specified office of any Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the Registrar (a **Put Notice**) and in which the holder must specify a bank account to which payment is to be made under this Condition and, in the case of Registered Notes, the nominal amount thereof to be redeemed and, if less than the full nominal amount of the Registered Notes so surrendered is to be

redeemed, an address to which a new Registered Note in respect of the balance of such Registered Notes is to be sent subject to and in accordance with the provisions of Condition 2.2 (*Transfers of Registered Notes - Transfers of Registered Notes in definitive form*). If this Note is in definitive bearer form, the Put Notice must be accompanied by this Note or evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent concerned that this Note will, following delivery of the Put Notice, be held to its order or under its control.

If this Note is represented by a Global Note or is in definitive form and held through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, to exercise the right to require redemption of this Note the holder of this Note must, within the notice period, give notice to the Principal Paying Agent of such exercise in accordance with the standard procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (which may include notice being given on his instruction by Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, or any common depositary or common safekeeper, as the case may be for them to the Principal Paying Agent by electronic means) in a form acceptable to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg from time to time.

Any Put Notice or other notice given in accordance with the standard procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg by a holder of any Note pursuant to this Condition 7.5 shall be irrevocable except where, prior to the due date of redemption, an Event of Default has occurred and the Trustee has declared the Notes to be due and payable pursuant to Condition 10 (*Events of Default*), in which event such holder, at its option, may elect by notice to the Issuer to withdraw the notice given pursuant to this Condition 7.5 and instead to declare such Note forthwith due and payable pursuant to Condition 10 (*Events of Default*).

# 7.6 Redemption at the option of the Noteholders upon a change of control (Change of Control Put)

If Change of Control Put is specified as being applicable in the applicable Pricing Supplement, then this Condition 7.6 shall apply.

## A Change of Control Put Event will be deemed to occur if:

- (a) any person or any persons acting in concert (as defined in the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers), other than a holding company (as defined in Section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006, as amended) whose shareholders are or are to be substantially similar to the pre- existing shareholders of the Issuer or any holding company of the Issuer, shall become interested (within the meaning of Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006, as amended) in (A) more than 50 per cent., of the issued or allotted ordinary share capital of the Issuer or (B) shares in the issued or allotted ordinary share capital of the Issuer carrying more than 50 per cent. of the voting rights normally exercisable at a general meeting of the Issuer (each such event being, a **Change of Control**); and
- (b) on the date (the **Relevant Announcement Date**) that is the earlier of (x) the date of the earliest Potential Change of Control Announcement (if any) and (y) the date of the first public announcement of the relevant Change of Control, the Notes carry:
  - (i) an investment grade credit rating (Baa3/BBB-/BBB- or their respective equivalents or better) (an **Investment Grade Rating**)

from any Rating Agency (provided by such Rating Agency (as defined below) at the invitation or with the consent of the Issuer) and such rating from any Rating Agency is within the Change of Control Period either downgraded to a non-investment grade credit rating (Ba1/BB+/BB+ or equivalent or worse) (a Non-Investment Grade Rating) or withdrawn and is not within the Change of Control Period subsequently (in the case of a downgrade) upgraded or (in the case of a withdrawal) reinstated to an Investment Grade Rating by such Rating Agency; or

- (ii) a Non-Investment Grade Rating (provided by such Rating Agency at the invitation or with the consent of the Issuer) and such rating from any Rating Agency is within the Change of Control Period downgraded by one or more notches (for illustration, Ba1/BB+/BB+ to Ba2/BB/BB being one notch) or withdrawn and is not within the Change of Control Period subsequently (in the case of a downgrade) upgraded or (in the case of a withdrawal) reinstated to its earlier credit rating or better by such Rating Agency; or
- (iii) no credit rating from any Rating Agency and a Negative Rating Event also occurs within the Change of Control Period,

and

in making the relevant decision(s) referred to above, the relevant Rating Agency announces publicly or confirms in writing to the Issuer or the Trustee that such downgrading and/or withdrawal resulted, directly or indirectly, from the Change of Control or the Potential Change of Control Announcement (whether or not the Change of Control shall have occurred at the time such rating is downgraded and/or withdrawn). Upon receipt by the Issuer or the Trustee of any such written confirmation, the Issuer shall forthwith give notice of such written confirmation to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (Notices).

If the rating designations employed by Moody's, Fitch or S&P are changed from those which are described in paragraph (b) of the definition of "Change of Control Put Event" above, or if a rating is procured from a Substitute Rating Agency, the Issuer shall determine the rating designations of Moody's, Fitch, S&P or such Substitute Rating Agency (as appropriate) as are most equivalent to the prior rating designations of Moody's, Fitch or S&P and this Condition 7.6 shall be construed accordingly.

If a Change of Control Put Event occurs, the holder of any Note will have the option to require the Issuer to redeem or, at the Issuer's option, purchase (or procure the purchase of) such Note on the Change of Control Put Date (as defined below) at the Change of Control Redemption Amount together (if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but excluding) the date of redemption or purchase.

Promptly upon the Issuer becoming aware that a Change of Control Put Event has occurred and, in any event, within 14 days of the occurrence of the relevant Change of Control, the Issuer shall and, at any time upon the Trustee becoming similarly so aware, the Trustee may, and if so requested by the holders of at least one-quarter in principal amount of the Notes then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders, shall (subject in each case to the Trustee being

indemnified and/or secured and/or pre-funded to its satisfaction) give notice (a **Change of Control Put Event Notice**) to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*) specifying the nature of the Change of Control Put Event and the circumstances giving rise to it and the procedure for exercising the option set out in this Condition 7.6.

If this Note is in definitive form and held outside Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, to exercise the option to require redemption or purchase of this Note under this Condition 7.6, the holder of this Note must deliver, at the specified office of any Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) or the Registrar or any Transfer Agent (in the case of Registered Notes) at any time during normal business hours of such Paying Agent or the Registrar or such Transfer Agent falling within the Change of Control Put Period, a duly completed and signed notice of exercise in the form (for the time being current) obtainable from the specified office of any Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes) (a Change of Control Put Option Notice) and in which the holder must specify a bank account (or, if payment is required to be made by cheque, an address) to which payment is to be made under this Condition 7.6 accompanied by this Note and, in the case of Registered Notes, the nominal amount thereof to be redeemed and, if less than the full nominal amount of the Registered Notes so surrendered is to be redeemed, an address to which a new Registered Note in respect of the balance of such Registered Notes is to be sent subject to and in accordance with Condition 2.2 (Transfer of Registered *Notes in definitive form).* 

If this Note is represented by a Global Note or is in definitive form and held through Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, to exercise the right to require redemption or, as the case may be, purchase of this Note under this Condition 7.6 the holder of this Note must, within the Change of Control Put Period, give notice to the Principal Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes) of such exercise in accordance with the standard procedures of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg (which may include notice being given on his instruction by Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any common depositary or common safekeeper, as the case may be, for them to the Principal Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes) by electronic means) in a form acceptable to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg from time to time.

Any Change of Control Put Option Notice or other notice given in accordance with the standard procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg given by a holder of any Note pursuant to this Condition 7.6 shall be irrevocable except where, prior to the due date of redemption or purchase, an Event of Default has occurred and the Trustee has declared the Notes to be due and payable pursuant to Condition 10 (*Events of Default*), in which event such holder, at its option, may elect by notice to the Issuer to withdraw the notice given pursuant to this Condition 7.6 and instead treat its Notes as being forthwith due and payable pursuant to Condition 10 (*Events of Default*).

If 90 per cent. or more in nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding have been redeemed pursuant to this Condition 7.6, the Issuer may, on not less than 30 or more than 60 days' notice to the Noteholders given within 30 days after the Change of Control Put Date, redeem or, at its option, purchase (or procure the purchase of) the remaining Notes as a whole at the Change of Control Redemption Amount together

(if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but excluding) the date of redemption or purchase.

The Trustee is under no obligation to ascertain whether a Change of Control Put Event or Change of Control, or any event which could lead to the occurrence of, or could constitute, a Change of Control Put Event or Change of Control has occurred, and until it shall have received notice thereof pursuant to the Trust Deed to the contrary, the Trustee may assume that no Change of Control Put Event or Change of Control or other such event has occurred.

In these Conditions:

Change of Control Period means the period commencing on the Relevant Announcement Date and ending 90 days after the occurrence of the Change of Control or, where a Rating Agency has publicly announced that the Notes are under consideration for rating review or, as the case may be, rating (such public announcement being within the period ending 90 days after the Change of Control), the later of (i) such 90th day after the Change of Control and (ii) the date falling 60 days after such public announcement;

**Change of Control Put Date** is the seventh day following the last day of the Change of Control Put Period;

Change of Control Put Period means the period from, and including, the date of a Change of Control Put Event Notice to, but excluding, the 45th day following the date of the Change of Control Put Event Notice or, if earlier, the eighth day immediately preceding the Maturity Date;

Fitch means Fitch Ratings Limited;

Moody's means Moody's Investors Service Limited;

Negative Rating Event shall be deemed to have occurred, if at any time there is no rating assigned to the Notes by any Rating Agency (at the invitation or with the consent of the Issuer), either (i) the Issuer does not, prior to or not later than 21 days after the occurrence of the relevant Change of Control, seek, and thereafter throughout the Change of Control Period use all reasonable endeavours to obtain, a rating of the Notes or (ii) if the Issuer does so seek and use all such reasonable endeavours, it is unable to obtain an Investment Grade Rating by the end of the Change of Control Period and the relevant Rating Agency announces publicly or confirms in writing to the Issuer or the Trustee that the failure to issue an Investment Grade Rating was as a result, directly or indirectly, from the Change of Control or the Potential Change of Control Announcement (whether or not the Change of Control had occurred at such time);

a reference to a **person** includes any individual, company, corporation, unincorporated association or body (including a partnership, trust, fund, joint venture or consortium), government, state, agency, organisation or other entity whether or not having separate legal personality;

**Potential Change of Control Announcement** means any public announcement or statement by or on behalf of the Issuer, any actual or potential bidder or any adviser acting on behalf of any actual or potential bidder relating to any potential Change of

Control where within 180 days following the date of such announcement or statement, a Change of Control occurs;

**Rating Agency** means Moody's, S&P or Fitch or any of their respective successors or any other rating agency (each a **Substitute Rating Agency**) of equivalent international standing specified by the Issuer from time to time and approved by the Trustee in writing; and

**S&P** and **Standard & Poor's** means Standard & Poor's Credit Market Services Europe Limited.

## 7.7 Early Redemption Amounts

For the purpose of Condition 7.2 above (*Redemption and Purchase – Redemption for tax reasons*) and Condition 10 (*Events of Default*):

- (a) each Note (other than a Zero Coupon Note) will be redeemed at its Early Redemption Amount; and
- (b) each Zero Coupon Note will be redeemed at an amount (the **Amortised Face Amount**) calculated in accordance with the following formula:

Early Redemption Amount =  $RP \times (1 + AY)^y$ 

where:

**RP** means the Reference Price;

AY means the Accrual Yield expressed as a decimal; and

is the Day Count Fraction specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement y which will be either (i) 30/360 (in which case the numerator will be equal to the number of days (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each) from (and including) the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes to (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Note becomes due and repayable and the denominator will be 360) or (ii) Actual/360 (in which case the numerator will be equal to the actual number of days from (and including) the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes to (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Note becomes due and repayable and the denominator will be 360) or (iii) Actual/365 (in which case the numerator will be equal to the actual number of days from (and including) the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes to (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Note becomes due and repayable and the denominator will be 365).

## 7.8 Specific redemption provisions applicable to certain types of Notes

The Final Redemption Amount, any Optional Redemption Amount and the Early Redemption Amount in respect of Index Linked Redemption Notes and Dual Currency Redemption Notes may be specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Pricing Supplement. For the purposes of Condition 7.2 (*Redemption and Purchase – Redemption for tax reasons*), Index Linked Interest

Notes and Dual Currency Interest Notes may be redeemed only on an Interest Payment Date.

Instalment Notes will be redeemed in the Instalment Amounts and on the Instalment Dates specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. In the case of early redemption, the Early Redemption Amount of Instalment Notes will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Partly Paid Notes will be redeemed, whether at maturity, early redemption or otherwise, in accordance with the provisions of this Condition and the applicable Pricing Supplement.

#### 7.9 Purchases

The Issuer, the Guarantors or any Subsidiary of the Issuer or the Guarantors may at any time purchase Notes (provided that, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons appertaining thereto are purchased therewith) at any price in the open market or otherwise. All Notes so purchased may be held, resold, re-issued or, at the option of the Issuer, surrendered to a Paying Agent or the Registrar for cancellation.

## 7.10 Cancellation

All Notes purchased by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Guarantors or any Subsidiaries of the Issuer or the Guarantors may be surrendered for cancellation by surrendering each such Note (together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons or Talons) to a Paying Agent or the Registrar and, if so surrendered, shall, together with all Notes which are redeemed by the Issuer be cancelled forthwith (together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons attached thereto or surrendered therewith at the time of redemption). All Notes so surrendered for cancellation and the Notes purchased and cancelled pursuant to Condition 7.9 above (*Redemption and Purchase - Purchases*) (together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons cancelled therewith) shall be forwarded to the Principal Paying Agent and cannot be reissued or resold.

## 7.11 Late payment on Zero Coupon Notes

If the amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Note upon redemption of such Zero Coupon Note pursuant to Condition 7.1 (Redemption and Purchase – Redemption and maturity), 7.2 (Redemption and Purchase – Redemption for tax reasons), 7.3 (Redemption and Purchase – Redemption at the option of the Issuer (Issuer call)) or 7.5 above (Redemption and Purchase – Redemption at par at the option of the Issuer (Issuer Maturity Par Call)) above or upon its becoming due and repayable as provided in Condition 10 (Events of Default) is improperly withheld or refused, the amount due and repayable in respect of such Zero Coupon Note shall be the amount calculated as provided in Condition 7.7(b) above (Redemption and Purchase – Early Redemption Amounts) above as though the references therein to the date fixed for the redemption or the date upon which such Zero Coupon Note becomes due and payable were replaced by references to the date which is the earlier of:

(a) the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Zero Coupon Note have been paid; and

(b) five days after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respect of such Zero Coupon Notes has been received by the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar or the Trustee and notice to that effect has been given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*).

#### 8. TAXATION

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes, Receipts and Coupons by or on behalf of the Issuer or the Guarantors will be made without withholding or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of any Tax Jurisdiction unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In such event, the Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantors will pay such additional amounts as shall be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the holders of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons after such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts of principal and interest which would otherwise have been receivable in respect of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons, as the case may be, in the absence of such withholding or deduction; except that no such additional amounts shall be payable with respect to any Note, Receipt or Coupon:

- (a) presented for payment in the United Kingdom, the British Virgin Islands, Guernsey, Isle of Man or Jersey; or
- (b) the holder of which is liable for such taxes or duties in respect of such Note, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his having some connection with a Tax Jurisdiction other than the mere holding of such Note, Receipt or Coupon; or
- (c) presented for payment more than 30 days after the Relevant Date (as defined below) except to the extent that the holder thereof would have been entitled to an additional amount on presenting the same for payment on such thirtieth day assuming that day to have been a Payment Day (as defined in Condition 6.7 (*Payments Payment Day*)).

#### As used herein:

- (i) **Tax Jurisdiction** means (a) in the case of payments by the Issuer, the United Kingdom or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax or (b) in the case of payments by each Guarantor, the jurisdiction in which such Guarantor is incorporated or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax or in the case of either (a) or (b), any other jurisdiction or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax to which payments made by the Issuer or each Guarantor, as the case may be, of principal and interest on the Notes become generally subject; and
- (ii) the **Relevant Date** means the date on which such payment first becomes due, except that, if the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Trustee or the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, on or prior to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received, notice to that effect is duly given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*).

#### 9. PRESCRIPTION

The Notes (whether in bearer or registered form), Receipts and Coupons will become void unless claims in respect of principal and/or interest are made within a period of 10 years (in the case of principal) and five years (in the case of interest) after the Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8 (*Taxation*)) therefor.

There shall not be included in any Coupon sheet issued on exchange of a Talon any Coupon the claim for payment in respect of which would be void pursuant to this Condition 9 or Condition 6.2 (*Payments - Presentation of definitive Bearer Notes, Receipts and Coupons*) or any Talon which would be void pursuant to Condition 6.2 (*Payments - Presentation of definitive Bearer Notes, Receipts and Coupons*).

#### 10. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT

#### 10.1 Events of Default

The Trustee at its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by the holders of at least one-quarter in nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution shall (subject in each case to being indemnified and/or secured and/or pre-funded to its satisfaction), (but in the case of the happening of any of the events described in paragraphs 10.1(b) to 10.1(d) (other than the winding up or dissolution of the Issuer or the Guarantor), 10.1(e) to (g)and 10.1(i) inclusive below, only if the Trustee shall have certified in writing to the Issuer and the Guarantors that such event is, in its opinion, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders), give notice in writing to the Issuer that each Note is, and each Note shall thereupon immediately become, due and repayable at its Early Redemption Amount together with accrued interest as provided in the Trust Deed if any of the following events (each an **Event of Default**) shall occur:

- (a) if default is made in the payment in the Specified Currency of any principal or interest due in respect of the Notes or any of them and the default continues for a period of 7 days in the case of principal and 14 days in the case of interest; or
- (b) if the Issuer or any of the Guarantors fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under these Conditions or the Trust Deed and (except in any case where, in the opinion of the Trustee, the failure is incapable of remedy when no such continuation or notice as is hereinafter mentioned will be required) the failure continues for the period of 30 days next following the service by the Trustee on the Issuer or the relevant Guarantor (as the case may be) of notice requiring the same to be remedied; or
- (c) if (i) any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money (as defined below) of the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary becomes due and repayable prematurely by reason of an event of default (however described); (ii) the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary fails to make any payment in respect of any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money on the due date for payment, as extended by any originally applicable grace period (iii) any security given by the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary for any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money becomes enforceable and any steps are taken to enforce the same; or (iv) default is made by the Issuer, any Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary in making any payment due under any guarantee and/or indemnity given by it in relation to any Indebtedness for Borrowed Money of any other person,

subject to any originally applicable grace period, provided that the aggregate amount of the relevant indebtedness, guarantees and indemnities in respect of which one or more of the events mentioned above in this paragraph (c) have occurred equals or exceeds £10,000,000 or its equivalent (as reasonably determined by the Trustee); or

- (d) if any order is made by any competent court or resolution passed for the winding up or dissolution of the Issuer, any of the Guarantors or any Principal Subsidiary, save for the purposes of reorganisation on terms previously approved in writing by the Trustee or by an Extraordinary Resolution or for a voluntary solvent winding up of a Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary where surplus assets are available for distribution to the Issuer, any Guarantor or any Principal Subsidiary; or
- (e) if the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary ceases or threatens to cease to carry on the whole or a substantial part of its business, save for the purposes of reorganisation on terms previously approved in writing by the Trustee or by an Extraordinary Resolution, or (in the case of any Principal Subsidiary) for the purpose of a bona fide disposal for full value on an arm's length basis, or the Issuer, the Guarantors or any Principal Subsidiary stops or threatens to stop payment of, or is unable to, or admits inability to, pay, its debts (or any class of its debts) as they fall due, or is deemed by a court to be unable to pay its debts pursuant to or for the purposes of any applicable law, or is adjudicated or found bankrupt or insolvent; or
- (f) if (i) an administrative or other receiver, manager, administrator or other similar official is appointed, in relation to the Issuer, the Guarantors or any Principal Subsidiary or, as the case may be, in relation to the whole or substantially all of the undertaking or assets of any of them, or an encumbrancer takes possession of the whole or substantially all of the undertaking or assets of any of them, or a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or other process is levied, enforced upon, sued out or put in force against the whole or a substantial part of the undertaking or assets of any of them and (ii) in any case (other than the appointment of an administrator) is not discharged within 14 days; or
- (g) if the Issuer, the Guarantors or any Principal Subsidiary initiates or consents to judicial proceedings relating to itself under any applicable liquidation, insolvency, composition, reorganisation or other similar laws (including the obtaining of a moratorium) or makes a conveyance or assignment for the benefit of, or enters into any composition or other arrangement with, its creditors generally (or any class of its creditors) in respect of all or a substantial part of such debts or any meeting is convened to consider a proposal for an arrangement or composition with its creditors generally (or any class of its creditors); or
- (h) if the Guarantee ceases to be, or is claimed by the Issuer or the Guarantor not to be, in full force and effect (other than in accordance with Condition 3.3 (*Release of a Guarantor*); or
- (i) if any event occurs which, under the laws of any relevant jurisdiction, has or may have, in the Trustee's opinion, an analogous effect to any of the events referred to in paragraphs (d) to (h) above.

#### 10.2 Enforcement

The Trustee may at any time, at its discretion and without notice, take such proceedings against the Issuer and/or the Guarantors as it may think fit to enforce the provisions of the Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons, but it shall not be bound to take any such proceedings or any other action in relation to the Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts or the Coupons unless (a) it shall have been so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution or so requested in writing by the holders of at least one-quarter in nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding and (b) it shall have been indemnified and/or secured and/or pre-funded to its satisfaction.

No Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer or the Guarantors unless the Trustee, having become bound so to proceed, fails so to do within a reasonable period and the failure shall be continuing.

#### 10.3 Definitions

For the purposes of the Conditions:

**Indebtedness for Borrowed Money** means any indebtedness (whether being principal, premium, interest or other amounts) for or in respect of any borrowed money or any liability under or in respect of any acceptance or acceptance credit, deposits, financial leases or any notes, bonds, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock or other securities; and

**Principal Subsidiary** means at any time a Subsidiary of the Issuer:

- whose net assets (consolidated in the case of a Subsidiary which itself has (a) Subsidiaries) represent in each case (or, in the case of a Subsidiary acquired after the end of the financial period to which the then latest audited consolidated accounts of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries relate, are equal to) not less than five per cent. of the consolidated net assets of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, all as calculated respectively by reference to the then latest audited accounts (consolidated or, as the case may be, unconsolidated) of such Subsidiary and the then latest audited consolidated accounts of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries, provided that in the case of a Subsidiary of the Issuer acquired after the end of the financial period to which the then latest audited consolidated accounts of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries relate, the reference to the then latest audited consolidated accounts of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries for the purposes of the calculation above shall, until consolidated accounts for the financial period in which the acquisition is made have been prepared and audited as aforesaid, be deemed to be a reference to such first-mentioned accounts as if such Subsidiary had been shown in such accounts by reference to its then latest relevant audited accounts, adjusted as deemed appropriate by the Issuer;
- (b) to which is transferred the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking and assets of a Subsidiary of the Issuer which immediately prior to such transfer is a Principal Subsidiary, provided that the transferor Subsidiary shall upon such transfer forthwith cease to be a Principal Subsidiary and the transferee Subsidiary shall cease to be a Principal Subsidiary pursuant to this subparagraph 10.3(b) on the date on which the consolidated accounts of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries for the financial period current at the date of such transfer have been prepared and audited as

aforesaid but so that such transferor Subsidiary or such transferee Subsidiary may be a Principal Subsidiary on or at any time after the date on which such consolidated accounts have been prepared and audited as aforesaid by virtue of the provisions of subparagraph 10.3(a) above or, prior to or after such date, by virtue of any other applicable provision of this definition; or

to which is transferred an undertaking or assets which, taken together with (c) the undertaking or assets of the transferee Subsidiary, represent (or, in the case aforesaid, are equal to) not less than five per cent. of the consolidated net assets, of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, all as calculated as referred to in subparagraph 10.3(a) above, provided that the transferor Subsidiary (if a Principal Subsidiary) shall upon such transfer forthwith cease to be a Principal Subsidiary unless immediately following such transfer its assets represent (or, in the case aforesaid, are equal to) not less than five per cent. of the consolidated net assets, of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, all as calculated as referred to in subparagraph 10.3(a) above, and the transferee Subsidiary shall cease to be a Principal Subsidiary pursuant to this subparagraph 10.3(c) on the date on which the consolidated accounts of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries for the financial period current at the date of such transfer have been prepared and audited but so that such transferor Subsidiary or such transferee Subsidiary may be a Principal Subsidiary on or at any time after the date on which such consolidated accounts have been prepared and audited as aforesaid by virtue of the provisions of subparagraph 10.3(a) above or, prior to or after such date, by virtue of any other applicable provision of this definition,

all as more particularly defined in the Trust Deed.

A report by two Directors of the Issuer that in their opinion a Subsidiary of the Issuer is or is not or was or was not at any particular time or throughout any specified period a Principal Subsidiary may be relied upon by the Trustee without further enquiry or evidence and, if relied upon by the Trustee, shall, in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on all parties.

## 11. REPLACEMENT OF NOTES, RECEIPTS, COUPONS AND TALONS

Should any Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it may be replaced at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes, Receipts or Coupons) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes) upon payment by the claimant of such costs and expenses as may be incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity as the Issuer may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be surrendered before replacements will be issued.

### 12. AGENTS

The initial Agents are set out above. If any additional Paying Agents are appointed in connection with any Series, the names of such Paying Agents will be specified in Part B of the applicable Pricing Supplement.

The Issuer is entitled, with the prior written approval of the Trustee, to vary or terminate the appointment of any Agent and/or appoint additional or other Agents and/or approve any change in the specified office through which any Agent acts, provided that:

- (a) there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent and a Registrar;
- (b) so long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange or admitted to listing by any other relevant authority, there will at all times be a Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) and a Transfer Agent (in the case of Registered Notes) with a specified office in such place as may be required by the rules and regulations of the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority; and
- (c) there will at all times be a Paying Agent in a jurisdiction within Europe, other than the jurisdiction in which the Issuer and the Guarantors are incorporated.

In addition, the Issuer shall forthwith appoint a Paying Agent having a specified office in New York City in the circumstances described in Condition 6.6 (*Payments - General provisions applicable to payments*). Notice of any variation, termination, appointment or change in Paying Agents will be given to the Noteholders promptly by the Issuer in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*).

In acting under the Agency Agreement, the Agents act solely as agents of the Issuer and the Guarantors and, in certain circumstances specified therein, of the Trustee and do not assume any obligation to, or relationship of agency or trust with, any Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder. The Agency Agreement contains provisions permitting any entity into which any Agent is merged or converted or with which it is consolidated or to which it transfers all or substantially all of its assets to become the successor agent.

#### 13. EXCHANGE OF TALONS

On and after the Interest Payment Date on which the final Coupon comprised in any Coupon sheet matures, the Talon (if any) forming part of such Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the specified office of any Paying Agent in exchange for a further Coupon sheet including (if such further Coupon sheet does not include Coupons to (and including) the final date for the payment of interest due in respect of the Note to which it appertains) a further Talon, subject to the provisions of Condition 9 (*Prescription*).

#### 14. NOTICES

All notices regarding the Bearer Notes will be deemed to be validly given if published (a) in a leading English language daily newspaper of general circulation in London or (b) if and for so long as the Notes are admitted to trading on the Global Exchange Market, and listed on the Official List, of the Irish Stock Exchange, a daily newspaper of general circulation in Ireland or the Irish Stock Exchange's website, www.ise.ie. It is expected that any such publication in a newspaper will be made in the Financial Times in London and the Irish Times in Ireland. The Issuer shall also ensure that notices are duly published in a manner which complies with the rules of any stock exchange or other relevant authority on which the Bearer Notes are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to trading including publication on the website of the relevant stock exchange or relevant authority if required by those rules. Any such notice will be deemed to have been given on the date of the first publication or, where required to be published in more than one newspaper, on the date of the first publication in all required newspapers. publication as provided above is not practicable, a notice will be given in such other manner, and will be deemed to have been given on such date, as the Trustee shall approve.

All notices regarding the Registered Notes will be deemed to be validly given if sent by first class mail or (if posted to an address overseas) by airmail to the holders (or the first named of joint holders) at their respective addresses recorded in the Register and will be deemed to have been given on the fourth day after mailing and, in addition, for so long as any Registered Notes are listed on a stock exchange or are admitted to trading by another relevant authority and the rules of that stock exchange or relevant authority so require, such notice will be published on the website of the relevant stock exchange or relevant authority and/or in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the place or places required by those rules.

Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, there may, so long as any Global Notes representing the Notes are held in their entirety on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, be substituted for such publication in such newspaper(s) or such websites or such mailing the delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg for communication by them to the holders of the Notes and, in addition, for so long as any Notes are listed on a stock exchange or are admitted to trading by another relevant authority and the rules of that stock exchange or relevant authority so require, such notice will be published on the website of the relevant stock exchange or relevant authority and/or in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the place or places required by those rules. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the holders of the Notes on the second day after the day on which the said notice was given to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg.

Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same, together (in the case of any Note in definitive form) with the relative Note or Notes, with the Principal Paying Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes) or the Registrar (in the case of Registered Notes). Whilst any of the Notes are represented by a Global Note, such notice may be given by any holder of a Note to the Principal Paying Agent or the Registrar through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, in such manner as the Principal Paying Agent, the Registrar and Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, may approve for this purpose.

# 15. MEETINGS OF NOTEHOLDERS, MODIFICATION, WAIVER AND SUBSTITUTION

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of the Noteholders to consider any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a modification of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or any of the provisions of the Trust Deed. Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer, the Guarantors or the Trustee and shall be convened by the Issuer if required in writing by Noteholders holding not less than ten per cent. in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being remaining outstanding. The quorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution is one or more persons holding or representing not less than 50 per cent. in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting one or more persons being or representing Noteholders whatever the nominal amount of the Notes so held or represented, except that at any meeting the business of which includes the modification of certain provisions of the Notes, the Receipts or the Coupons or the Trust Deed (including modifying the date of maturity of the Notes or any date for payment of interest thereon, reducing or cancelling the amount of principal or the rate of interest payable in respect of the Notes, or altering the currency of payment of the Notes, the Receipts or the Coupons), the quorum shall be one or more persons holding or representing not

less than two-thirds in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned such meeting one or more persons holding or representing not less than one-third in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding. The Trust Deed provides that (i) a resolution passed at a meeting duly convened and held in accordance with the Trust Deed by a majority consisting of not less than threefourths of the votes cast on such resolution, (ii) a resolution in writing signed by or on behalf of the holders of not less than three-fourths in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding or (iii) consent given by way of electronic consents through the relevant clearing system(s) (in a form satisfactory to the Trustee) by or on behalf of the holders of not less than three-fourths in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding, shall, in each case, be effective as an Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders. An Extraordinary Resolution passed by the Noteholders will be binding on all the Noteholders, whether or not they are present at any meeting, and whether or not they voted on the resolution, and on all Receiptholders and Couponholders.

The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, to any modification of, or to the waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of, any of the provisions of the Notes or the Trust Deed, or determine, without any such consent as aforesaid, that any Event of Default or potential Event of Default shall not be treated as such, where, in any such case, it is not, in the opinion of the Trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders so to do or may agree, without any such consent as aforesaid, to any modification which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or to correct a manifest error or an error which, in the opinion of the Trustee, is proven. Any such modification shall be binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders and any such modification shall be notified to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14 (*Notices*) as soon as practicable thereafter.

In connection with the exercise by it of any of its trusts, powers, authorities and discretions (including, without limitation, any modification, waiver, authorisation or determination), the Trustee shall have regard to the general interests of the Noteholders as a class (but shall not have regard to any interests arising from circumstances particular to individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders whatever their number) and, in particular but without limitation, shall not have regard to the consequences of any such exercise for individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders (whatever their number) resulting from their being for any purpose domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected with, or subject to the jurisdiction of, any particular territory or any political sub-division thereof and the Trustee shall not be entitled to require, nor shall any Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder be entitled to claim, from the Issuer, the Guarantors, the Trustee or any other person any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax consequences of any such exercise upon individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders except to the extent already provided for in Condition 8 (Taxation) and/or any undertaking or covenant given in addition to, or in substitution for, Condition 8 (Taxation) pursuant to the Trust Deed.

The Trustee may, without the consent of the Noteholders, agree with the Issuer to the substitution in place of the Issuer (or of any previous substitute under this Condition 15) as the principal debtor under the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Trust Deed of another company, being a Subsidiary of the Issuer, subject to (i) the Notes being unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Issuer, (ii) the Trustee being satisfied that the interests of the Noteholders will not be materially prejudiced by the

substitution and (iii) certain other conditions set out in the Trust Deed being complied with.

# 16. INDEMNIFICATION OF THE TRUSTEE AND TRUSTEE CONTRACTING WITH THE ISSUER AND/OR THE GUARANTORS

The Trust Deed contains provisions for the indemnification of the Trustee and for its relief from responsibility, including provisions relieving it from taking action unless indemnified and/or secured and/or pre-funded to its satisfaction.

The Trust Deed also contains provisions pursuant to which the Trustee is entitled, *inter alia*, (a) to enter into business transactions with the Issuer, the Guarantors and/or any of their respective Subsidiaries and to act as trustee for the holders of any other securities issued or guaranteed by, or relating to, the Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any of their respective Subsidiaries, (b) to exercise and enforce its rights, comply with its obligations and perform its duties under or in relation to any such transactions or, as the case may be, any such trusteeship without regard to the interests of, or consequences for, the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders and (c) to retain and not be liable to account for any profit made or any other amount or benefit received thereby or in connection therewith.

#### 17. FURTHER ISSUES

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponholders to create and issue further notes having terms and conditions the same as the Notes or the same in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon and the date from which interest starts to accrue and so that the same shall be consolidated and form a single Series with the outstanding Notes.

## 18. CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of this Note under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists or is available apart from that Act.

## 19. GOVERNING LAW AND SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION

## 19.1 Governing law

The Trust Deed (including the Guarantee), the Agency Agreement, the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Trust Deed (including the Guarantee), the Agency Agreement, the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons are governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law.

# 19.2 Submission to jurisdiction

(a) Subject to Condition 19.2(c) below, the English courts have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with the Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts and/or the Coupons, including any dispute as to their existence, validity, interpretation, performance, breach or termination or the consequences of their nullity and any dispute relating to any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Trust Deed,

the Notes, the Receipts and/or the Coupons (a **Dispute**) and accordingly each of the Issuer and the Trustee and any Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders in relation to any Dispute submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.

- (b) For the purposes of this Condition 19.2, the Issuer waives any objection to the English courts on the grounds that they are an inconvenient or inappropriate forum to settle any Dispute.
- (c) To the extent allowed by law, the Trustee, the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders may, in respect of any Dispute or Disputes, take (i) proceedings in any other court with jurisdiction; and (ii) concurrent proceedings in any number of jurisdictions.

## 19.3 Appointment of Process Agent

Each Guarantor (other than any Guarantor incorporated in England and Wales (initially Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited and Tritax Atherstone Limited)) irrevocably appoints the Issuer at Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London W1S 4PD as its agent for service of process in any proceedings before the English courts in relation to any Dispute and agrees that, in the event of the Issuer being unable or unwilling for any reason so to act, it will immediately appoint another person approved by the Trustee as its agent for service of process in England in respect of any Dispute. Each Guarantor (other than any Guarantor incorporated in England and Wales (initially Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited and Tritax Atherstone Limited)) agrees that failure by a process agent to notify it of any process will not invalidate service. Nothing herein shall affect the right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. The Issuer accepts such appointment by such Guarantors as agent under these Conditions for service of process in any proceedings before the English courts in relation to any Dispute.

## 19.4 Other documents and the Guarantors

The Issuer and, where applicable, the Guarantors have in the Trust Deed, Agency Agreement submitted to the jurisdiction of the English courts and appointed an agent for service of process in terms substantially similar to those set out above.

# **USE OF PROCEEDS**

The net proceeds from each issue of Notes will be applied by the Issuer for its general corporate purposes, which may include repaying certain outstanding financial indebtedness of the Issuer.

#### **DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER**

## **Background**

The Issuer was incorporated and registered in England and Wales on 14 September 2012 as a public company limited by shares under the Companies Act with the name "Tritax Income Real Estate Investment Trust plc" and registration number 8215888. The Issuer changed its name to "Tritax REIT plc" on 27 September 2012 and to its current name, "Tritax Big Box REIT plc", on 11 October 2013.

The principal place of business and the registered office of the Issuer is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London W1S 4PD and its telephone number is +44 (0)20 7290 1616. The Issuer is domiciled in the United Kingdom and the principal legislation under which it operates is the Companies Act. It is not authorised or regulated by the FCA or an equivalent overseas regulator. The Issuer has given notice to the Registrar of Companies of its intention to carry on business as an investment company pursuant to section 833 of the Companies Act.

The Issuer's ordinary shares are admitted to the premium listing segment of the Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange's main market for listed securities. As at 21 November 2017 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the Base Listing Particulars), the Issuer had a market capitalisation of approximately £2.0 billion.

#### Overview

The Issuer was incorporated as a closed-ended investment company for the purpose of delivering income and capital returns to shareholders through investment in Big Box assets in the UK. The principal activity of the Issuer is to acquire and hold investments in UK commercial real estate (specifically in the logistics sector) with a view to maximising shareholder returns.

The Issuer is focused on investment in Big Box assets in the UK. The Issuer believes that the Big Box asset class facilitates the delivery of cost savings and convenience demanded by the growth in online retail in the UK and the transformation of the UK retail environment.

## The REIT Group

The Issuer, which is the ultimate holding company of the REIT Group, has the following directly or indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries:

Name	Company	Place of
	number	incorporation
TBBR Holdings 1 Limited	119069	Jersey
TBBR Holdings 2 Limited	119070	Jersey
Baljean Properties Limited	005393V	Isle of Man
Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd	114528	Jersey
Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd	114529	Jersey
Sherburn Trustee One Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust		
joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust	114540	Jersey
Sherburn Trustee Two Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust		
	114541	Jersey
Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited	8215014	United Kingdom
Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited	115825	Jersey
Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited	115826	Jersey
Sonoma Ventures Limited	1637663	British Virgin Islands
Tritax Ripon Limited	36449	Guernsey

Name	Company number	Place of incorporation			
		-			
Tritax REIT Acquisition 8 Limited	9155993	United Kingdom			
Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited	116356 9155999	Jersey			
Tritax REIT Acquisition 9 Limited Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited	116372	United Kingdom Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited	116656	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited	116931	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited	117018	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited	117019	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited	117020	Jersey			
Tritax Worksop Limited	1066320	British Virgin Islands			
Tritax REIT Acquisition 16	9338152	United Kingdom			
Tritax Acquisition 16 Limited	117283	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited Tritax Acquisition 18 Ltd	117758 117914	Jersey Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 18 Ltd Tritax Harlow Limited	53362	Guernsey			
Tritax Lymedale Limited	105392	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited	118138	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited	118292	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited	118293	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 24 Limited	119188	Jersey			
Tritax Knowsley Limited	013057V	Isle of Man			
Tritax Portbury Limited	120653	Jersey			
Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited	1035960	British Virgin Islands			
Tritax Newark Limited Wellzone Limited	121153 04648744	Jersey United Kingdom			
Sportdale Limited	04648736	United Kingdom  United Kingdom			
Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited	121371	Jersey			
Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited	121849	Jersey			
Tritax Holdings CL Debt Limited	121690	Jersey			
Click Peterborough S.à r.l.	B109394	Luxembourg			
Tritax Peterborough Limited	121797	Jersey			
Tritax Holdings PGIM Debt Limited	123071	Jersey			
Tritax Tamworth Limited	122204	Jersey			
Tritax West Thurrock Limited	122130 122205	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 34 Limited Tritax Acquisition 35 Limited	122320	Jersey Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 35 Limited  Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited	122726	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited	122944	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited	123042	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 39 Limited	123471	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited	123794	Jersey			
Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited	123795	Jersey			
Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited	124196	Jersey			
Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited	124197	Jersey			
Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited		•			
	124198	Jersey			
Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited	124476	Jersey			
Tritax Atherstone Limited	124383	Jersey			
Tritax Atherstone Limited (formerly Aequitas Estates (Midlands) Limited)	09704147	UK			
Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited	124757	Jersey			
Tritax Stoke DC1&2 Limited	124818	Jersey			
Tritax Luxembourg DC1&2 Limited	B86125	Luxembourg			
Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited	124819	Jersey			
Tritax Luxembourg DC3 Limited	B133327	Luxembourg			
Tritax Stoke Management Limited (formerly	5599969	UK			
Prologis Park Stoke on Trent Management					
Company Limited)					
Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited	124934	Jersey			
· 1· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		1 J			

Name	Company number	Place of incorporation
Tritax Carlisle Limited	124988	Jersey
Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited	125029	Jersey
Tritax Crewe Limited	125030	Jersey
Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited	125028	Jersey
SAD1 Stobart Air Development 1 Limited	07111373	UK
GPE Worksop 18 Limited	122092	Jersey

The subsidiaries have been set up for the purpose of acquiring investment properties. The Issuer, as the holding company of the REIT Group, depends on dividends from its subsidiaries to fund dividend payments on its ordinary shares and to fund payments on its other obligations, including debit obligations.

The Issuer, as the principal company of the REIT Group, gave notice on 9 December 2013 to HMRC (in accordance with section 523 of the CTA 2010) that the REIT Group had become a UK REIT. As a UK REIT, the REIT Group complies with certain ongoing regulations and conditions and has a tax efficient corporate structure with the consequences for UK shareholders. As a REIT:

- the REIT Group is not required to pay UK corporation tax on profits and gains from its UK qualifying property rental business; and
- the Issuer is required to distribute to shareholders at least 90 per cent. of the income profits arising from the tax-exempt business as calculated for tax purposes, by the filing date of the Issuer's corporation tax return.

As at the date of these Base Listing Particulars under the REIT regime, a tax charge may be levied on the Issuer if it were to make a distribution to a Substantial Shareholder.

## Certain REIT Group audited consolidated figures

The figures in the table as set out below show, by relevant category, the aggregate of the unaudited individual entity figures adjusted for all consolidation items to arrive at the consolidated REIT Group figures for gross rental income, operating profit before changes in fair value of investment properties and net assets as reflected in the REIT Group's audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

The main adjustments made to adjust the entity figures for operating profit before changes in fair value of investment properties to the Issuer's consolidated operating profit before changes in fair value of investment properties are to (i) ignore any inter group distributions and (ii) remove lease incentive adjustments not applicable at the REIT Group level.

The main adjustments made to adjust the entity figures for net assets to the Issuer's consolidated net assets are to (i) to eliminate the value of investment in subsidiaries and (ii) to eliminate all inter group balances.

## Year ended and as at 31 December 2016

	<u>Issuer</u>		<u>Guarantors</u>		<u>Non-</u> <u>Guarantors</u>		<u>Totals</u>	
	£'000	<u>%</u>	£'000	<u>%</u>	£'000	<u>%</u>	£'000	<u>%</u>
Gross rental income	-	-	61,484	82.36	13,172	17.64	74,656	100.00
Operating profit before changes in fair value of investment properties	(11,443)	(18.20)	61,202	97.34	13,114	20.86	62,873	100.00
Net assets	105,497	7.46	931,659	65.86	377,379	26.68	1,414,535	100.00

## The Manager

Tritax Management LLP, which is part of the Tritax Group, is authorised by the FCA as an AIFM and manages the Issuer's investments under the Investment Management Agreement in its capacity as Manager. Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement and the Service Level Agreement, the Issuer is provided with all management and advisory services by the Manager.

The Tritax Group started in 1995 where it focused on originating, syndicating and managing commercial property investments for private equity capital. The Tritax Group started by offering property investments structured to make use of available tax reliefs (such as "Enterprise Zones") so as to enhance investors' returns.

Since 1995, the Tritax Group has acquired and developed commercial property assets with an acquisition value of over £4.4 billion on behalf of property unit trusts, limited partnerships and other vehicles (including the Issuer), involving more than 121 separate investments including Big Box assets, industrial properties, office, retail and hotels. As at 17 November 2017, the Tritax Group had total assets under management with an acquisition value of approximately £2.9 billion, across more than 9 investment vehicles (including the Issuer), consisting of over 25 million sq. ft. of real estate assets.

The Manager was incorporated as a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom on 2 March 2007, with registered number 0C326500. The registered office of the Manager is Aberdeen House, South Road, Haywards Heath, West Sussex RH16 4NG. The Manager is domiciled in England and Wales. The principal operational place of business of the Manager is Standbrook House, 4th Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London W1S 4PD.

## **Investment Management Agreement**

The Board is responsible for the determination of the Issuer's Investment Objective and Investment Policy and has overall responsibility for the Issuer's activities. However, the Manager provides property management services and advises the Issuer on property matters (management, administration and investment) pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement in its capacity as an FCA authorised AIFM and exercises the final investment decision in accordance with its delegated responsibility as the Issuer's AIFM.

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager is responsible for investment decisions under the Investment Policy and identifying, structuring and monitoring

investments and specifically has responsibility for general property management of the properties held by the Issuer, including:

- (a) ensuring the Issuer receives necessary advice to comply with its lease and headlease obligations;
- (b) managing tenant applications and supervising tenants;
- (c) preparing budgets for the properties;
- (d) sourcing and assisting with the acquisition of properties that fall within the Issuer's Investment Policy;
- (e) advising the Issuer in circumstances where the interests in real estate in contemplation are securitised in such a way that advice in relation to their acquisition or disposal is regulated under FSMA;
- (f) implementing a comprehensive and focused active and entrepreneurial asset management strategy to deliver added value;
- (g) arranging senior and subordinated debt (if required) to optimise the capital structure and support the acquisition process; and
- (h) co-ordinating with third parties providing services to the Issuer.

In addition, Link Alternative Fund Administrators Limited (formerly Capita Sinclair Henderson Limited), in its capacity as Administrator under the Administration Agreement, calculates the EPRA NAV and Basic NAV of the Issuer's ordinary shares on a semi-annual basis using third party valuers to provide independent valuation reports on a six monthly basis, such valuers to be appropriately qualified and internationally recognised. These calculations are reported to shareholders in the Issuer's interim financial statements and annual accounts.

In consideration of the performance by the Manager of the various property management and other services under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager receives an annual management fee which is calculated quarterly in arrear based upon a percentage of the last published Basic NAV of the Issuer (not taking into account cash balances).

The Investment Management Agreement terminates on 31 December 2021. However, either party may by written notice to the other terminate the Investment Management Agreement by giving not less than 24 months' prior written notice to the other, which notice may not be given by the Issuer before 31 December 2019. The Investment Management Agreement may also be terminated on the occurrence of an insolvency event in relation to a party thereto, if such party is fraudulent, grossly negligent or commits wilful default or misconduct which, if capable of remedy, is not remedied within 30 business days or on a force majeure event continuing for more than 90 days.

#### Service Level Agreement

The Service Level Agreement imposes certain additional responsibilities on the Manager relating to Board meetings, research and analysis, investor relations and marketing, equity market intelligence and property reports.

The Service Level Agreement shall remain in force for the term of the Investment Management Agreement (and shall cease to have effect immediately upon the termination or expiry of the Investment Management Agreement in accordance with its terms). No fees beyond the fees paid under the Investment Management Agreement are required to be paid to the Manager by the Issuer for the services provided under the Service Level Agreement.

#### **Investment objective**

The Issuer's investment objective is to acquire UK Big Box assets benefiting from long-term leases with Institutional-Grade Tenants to deliver, on a fully invested and geared basis:

- a targeted annual dividend of 6.4 pence per ordinary share, with the potential to grow through upward-only rent reviews which are either fixed, RPI linked or linked to market rents; and
- a targeted Total Return in excess of 9 per cent. per annum over the medium term.

These are targets only and not profit forecasts.

The Issuer believes that Big Box assets represent attractive assets, as a result of the upwardonly rent reviews contained in the leases of the assets, coupled with favourable supply and demand dynamics.

Furthermore, assets acquired by the Issuer typically benefit from "full repairing and insuring" leases, otherwise known as "triple net leases", being a lease agreement where the tenant agrees to pay all taxes, building insurance and maintenance costs on the property, in addition to all fees that are expected under the lease, such as rent and service charge.

Under such a lease, the tenant is responsible for all costs associated with the repair and maintenance of the building and consequently the risk profile for the Issuer (apart from uninsurable risks) is essentially limited to the creditworthiness of the tenant.

#### **Investment policy**

The Issuer invests in well-located Big Box assets in the UK, let to Institutional-Grade Tenants typically on long-term leases and with regular upward only rent reviews. The Issuer invests in these assets directly or through holdings in special purpose vehicles. It invests in high quality assets, taking into account several factors, including:

- the strength of the tenant's financial covenant;
- the terms of the lease, focusing on duration (typically with an unexpired lease term remaining of at least 12 years, however shorter terms are considered on a case-by-case basis as part of an integrated value driven strategy) and basis of rent review and potential for growth in passing rent; and
- the property characteristics, including location, building quality, scale, transportation links, workforce availability and operational efficiencies.

The Issuer seeks to deliver potential additional income and capital growth from the asset management services provided by the Manager. Rental income profiles, the condition of properties and their relative attractiveness to tenants can potentially be enhanced by the Manager. This further supports the Issuer's belief that it delivers a high quality and growing rental income, which contributes to capital appreciation.

No material change will be made to the Investment Policy without the approval of the Issuer's shareholders by way of ordinary resolution.

# Gearing

The Issuer uses gearing to enhance equity returns under its Investment Policy. The level of borrowing is on a prudent basis for the asset class and seeks to achieve a low cost of funds, whilst maintaining flexibility in the underlying security requirements and the structure of both the Portfolio and the REIT Group.

The Issuer intends that the REIT Group will maintain a conservative level of aggregate borrowings with a medium term target of up to 40 per cent. of the REIT Group's gross assets. The aggregate borrowings are always subject to an absolute maximum, calculated at the time of drawdown for a property purchase, of 50 per cent. of the REIT Group's gross assets.

The REIT Group had a loan to value ratio of 30 per cent as at 31 December 2016 compared to 27 per cent as at 30 June 2017. As at 31 December 2016, the loan to value ratio has been calculated by dividing bank borrowings drawn (£541.5 million) by the total investment property assets (£1,803.1 million) as reported in the REIT Group financial statements as at the relevant date. As at 30 June 2017, the loan to value ratio has been calculated by dividing bank borrowings drawn (£681.5 million) by total assets (£2,523.5 million) as reported in the REIT Group financial statements as at the relevant date.

Notwithstanding the above, the Issuer's articles of association do not contain a limit to the Issuer's ability to borrow funds.

# Use of derivatives

The Issuer utilises derivatives for efficient portfolio management. In particular, the Issuer engages in full or partial interest rate hedging or otherwise seeks to mitigate the risk of interest rate increases on borrowings incurred in accordance with the paragraph "Gearing" above as part of the Issuer's portfolio management.

#### **Investment restrictions**

The Issuer invests and manages its assets with the objective of delivering a high quality, diversified portfolio, subject to the following investment restrictions contained in its Investment Policy:

- the maximum limit for any single asset is 20 per cent. of gross assets calculated at the time of investment (by reference to the latest published interim or annual financial statements);
- the maximum exposure to any tenant or developer is limited to 20 per cent. of gross assets once fully invested and geared in accordance with the paragraph "Gearing" above. However, from time to time, the Issuer may have a greater exposure to a particular tenant in the Portfolio where such tenant is, or whose parent company is, at the time of investment, included in the FTSE 350 or within the top 350 companies included in any non-UK index which is, in the reasonable opinion of the Board, comparable to the FTSE 350 (FTSE Tenant). The maximum exposure to any such FTSE Tenant, which is limited to two FTSE Tenants in the Portfolio at any time, is 30 per cent. of gross assets once fully invested and geared in accordance with the paragraph "Gearing" above;
- the maximum exposure to land and options over land is limited to 10 per cent. of net asset value calculated at the time of investment;
- save for investments in land and options over land, the Issuer only invests in leased or preleased assets and does not invest in speculative developments;
- the Issuer does not invest in closed-ended investment companies;
- save for investments in land and options over land, the Issuer only invests in assets with Institutional-Grade Tenants;
- save for investments in land and options over land, the Issuer only invests in assets with leases with regular upward-only rent reviews; and

• all property assets are located in the UK.

#### Other

Cash held for working capital purposes or received by the REIT Group pending reinvestment or distribution is held in Sterling only and invested in cash, cash equivalents, near cash instruments and money market instruments. The Issuer determines the cash management policy in consultation with the Manager.

The Issuer at all times conducts its affairs so as to enable it to remain qualified as a REIT for the purposes of Part 12 of the CTA 2010 (and the regulations made thereunder).

In the event of a breach of the Investment Policy and restrictions set out above, the Manager shall inform the Issuer upon becoming aware of the same and, if the Issuer considers the breach to be material, notification will be made to a Regulatory Information Service.

# Competitive advantages

The Issuer believes that it has a number of competitive advantages including:

- *Unique portfolio*: the Issuer is the only listed vehicle giving pure exposure to the Big Box asset class in the UK with a Portfolio of 44 Big Box assets (as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars but excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the Howdens Forward Funded Developments and Wincanton/ITS, Harlow) that are income producing and let or pre-let to Institutional-Grade Tenants;
- Tenant quality: the Issuer's Portfolio is let or pre-let to some of the most well-known companies in the UK including Amazon, B&Q, Kellogg's, L'Oréal, Marks & Spencer, Rolls-Royce Motor Cars, Sainsbury's and Tesco. 46 per cent. of the Issuer's tenants are FTSE 100 companies, 18 per cent. are FTSE 250 companies and 19 per cent. are other international listed public limited companies;
- Long leases: the Issuer's Portfolio benefits from a weighted average unexpired lease term (WAULT) of 14.2 years as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars. 42 per cent. of the Issuer's rent roll did not expire for more than 15 years, as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars. The Portfolio is well positioned to offer strong and reliable income growth through upward only rent reviews. As at the date of these Base Listing Particulars, 33 per cent. of the leases in the Portfolio have rent reviews that are fixed, 18 per cent. are linked to RPI/CPI and 41 per cent. are reviewed to open market and 8 per cent. are hybrid; reviews are typically every five years;
- Access to investment opportunities: the Manager has access to attractively priced
  investment opportunities through long-established industry contacts and extensive
  knowledge of the sector; approximately 82 per cent. (by value) of the Issuer's
  Portfolio since the IPO has been acquired off-market, helping to avoid the potential of
  a competitive acquisition process for assets and thereby potentially enhancing any
  initial capital appreciation;
- Favourable demand/supply dynamic: the imbalance of occupational supply and demand remains favourable for landlords, pointing to the potential for further rental growth;
- Asset management: the Issuer is progressing a number of opportunities to create capital value enhancement through re-gearing of leases, maximising rent reviews and capturing expansion plans to support tenant operations;

- Fully covered, progressive dividend policy: the Issuer's dividend policy is underpinned by a growing rental stream with inflation protection, a low cost base and all leases providing for upward only rent reviews, positioning the Issuer to capture market rental growth;
- Low cost management fee arrangements: management fees are based on Basic NAV excluding uncommitted cash balances and reduce as Basic NAV grows. Furthermore, 25 per cent. of total fees (not of any applicable tax) are payable in ordinary shares of the Issuer, helping to align the interests of the Manager with the Issuer's shareholders. There are no additional performance, acquisition, exit or property management fees payable by the Issuer to the Manager;
- Low Total Expense Ratio and EPRA cost ratio: the Issuer's Total Expense Ratio for the year ended 31 December 2016 was 1.06 per cent compared to 1.09 per cent for the year ended 31 December 2015. Its EPRA cost ratio was 15.8 per cent. for the year ended 31 December 2016 compared to 17.9 per cent for the year ended 31 December 2015: and
- Development benefit with minimised development risk: the Issuer does not undertake speculative development and will only fund a development which is pre-let. The Issuer's first development completed in autumn 2015 and, in total since launch, it has completed eight developments with no development cost overruns being incurred across any of the developments.

#### **Portfolio**

#### Introduction

As at the date of these Base Listing Particulars, the Issuer's Portfolio comprised standing assets let or pre-let to Institutional-Grade Tenants. In September 2017, the Issuer completed contracts to purchase a development site at Littlebrook, Dartford. The freehold of the former Littlebrook Power Station site had been acquired for a total consideration of £62.5 million. The site extends to approximately 124 acres and is capable of supporting the potential development of approximately 1.7 million square ft of logistics distribution buildings.

As at 31 December 2016, the Issuer's Portfolio had a market value of approximately £1.89 billion compared to a market value of £2.10 billion as at 30 June 2017. Between 30 June 2017 and the date of these Base Listing Particulars, the Issuer acquired £203.9 million of standing assets along with the development site at Littlebrook, Dartford, resulting in a Portfolio value of £2.37 billion.

As at date of these Base Listing Particulars, the Portfolio consists of 21.8 million sq. ft. of built logistics and the Issuer has 124 acres of prime London distribution land. The Portfolio has a weighted average unexpired lease term of 14.2 years compared to 15.1 years as at 30 June 2017. Approximately 82 per cent. of assets (by value) have been acquired off-market since the IPO and were acquired at an average purchase yield of 5.7 per cent., compared to a valuation yield of 4.93 per cent. as at 31 December 2016 and 4.87 per cent. as at 30 June 2017.

The Portfolio is 100 per cent. let and income producing with contracted annual gross rental income of £120.2 million as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars. All leases provide for upward-only rent reviews of which 41 per cent. are open market, 33 per cent. were fixed uplift, 18 per cent. were RPI/CPI linked and 8 per cent. were hybrid. The Portfolio had a rent reversion (being the difference (increase) between the contracted annual rent and the estimated rental value) of 5.7 per cent. as at 30 June 2017.

In addition the Issuer has agreed contracts to acquire a further £182.3 million of investment assets. One of these contracts relates to the two Howdens Forward Funded Developments, which have an aggregate purchase price of £101.8 million, and is conditional on various matters specified in the sale contracts, including the transfer of some additional land to the seller, the variation of a lease agreement and planning permission, which is anticipated before the end of 2017. Another of these contracts relates to a facility at Harlow Logistics Hub of 390,092 sq. ft. let to Wincanton Holdings Ltd and Industrial Tool Services Limited which will complete on or around 18 December 2017. Further, the Issuer is in active negotiations to acquire assets to the value of approximately £127 million and contracts for the acquisition of these assets may be exchanged before the end of 2017. For the avoidance of doubt, neither the £182.3 million under agreed contracts nor the approximately £127 million of assets under negotiations form part of the Portfolio and are not included in the figures and descriptions within the £2.37 billion portfolio value above.

The Issuer categorises its Portfolio across three investment pillars as follows:

- Foundation assets: buildings are usually modern, in prime locations let with long leases to tenants with excellent covenant strength providing core low-risk income;
- *Value-add assets*: typically let to tenants with strong covenants but offering asset management opportunities to enhance capital value or income; and
- Growth covenant assets: well-located buildings let to tenants which are currently perceived to be undervalued and which the Manager considers have opportunity for improving their financial strength.

#### Overview of the Portfolio

The Portfolio (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the Howdens Forward Funded Developments and Wincanton/ITS, Harlow) was broadly diversified by tenant, geography, size, age and investment category as at 21 November 2017 as shown in the charts below:



- (1) All properties included as per 30 June 2017 independent valuation except Royal Mail, Atherstone, Royal Mail, Daventry, Marks & Spencer, Stoke, Dunelm, Stoke, Cerealto, Worksop and Stobart Group, Carlisle which are included at acquisition price. Includes forward funded commitments but excludes £101.8 million conditional commitment to the Howdens Forward Funded Developments and Wigeston (TS, Bardow.
- (2) By floor area
- (3) Split based on listed parent company; DHL assets represented by parent Deutsche Post AG, Rolls-Royce Motor Cars asset represented by parent BMW, Argos asset represented by J Sainsbury plc, B&Q asset represented by parent Kingfisher, TK Maxx represented by parent TJX Companies, Kuehne & Nagel represented by lease guarantor Hays plc, DSG asset represented by Dixons Carphone plc, Euro Car Parts represented by parent LKQ Corporation, Screwfix represented by parent Kingfisher plc and Hachette represented by parent Lagardere SCA. Note that the aforementioned parent companies may not be guarantors to the respective tenant lease

The table below summarises each of the 44 assets which form part of the Issuer's Portfolio as at the date of these Base Listing Particulars:

		Size	Date of
Tenant (Guarantor)	Location	(sq. ft.)	acquisition
Sainsbury's Supermarkets Limited	Leeds	571,522	Dec 13
Marks and Spencer plc	Castle Donington	906,240	Dec 13
Tesco Stores Limited	Chesterfield	501,751	Mar 14
Tesco Stores Limited (Tesco Plc)	Didcot	288,295	Apr 14
Next Group PLC	Doncaster	755,055	Jun 14
Wm Morrison Supermarkets plc	Sittingbourne	919,443	Jun 14
DHL Supply Chain Limited	Langley Mill	255,680	Aug 14
DHL Supply Chain Limited	Skelmersdale	470,385	Aug 14
Wolseley UK Limited	Ripon	221,763	Aug 14
Rolls-Royce Motor Cars Limited	Bognor Regis	313,220	Oct 14
CDS (Superstores International)	Thorne	750,431	Nov 14
Limited			
Tesco Stores Limited	Middleton	302,111	Dec 14
Kuehne + Nagel Limited (Hays Plc)	Derby	343,248	Dec 14
L'Oréal (U.K.) Limited	Manchester	315,118	Dec 14
Argos Limited	Heywood	495,441	Apr 15
B&Q plc	Worksop	880,175	Apr 15
Ocado Holdings Limited (Ocado	Erith	563,103	May 15
Group plc)			
Nice-Pak International Limited	Wigan, Greater		
	Manchester	399,519	May 15
New Look Retailers Limited	Newcastle-under-	398,618	May 15
	Lyme		
Brake Bros Limited	Harlow	276,213	June 15
Tesco Stores Limited	Goole	711,933	June 15
Dunelm (Soft Furnishings) Limited	Stoke-on-Trent	526,426	June 15
TJX UK (trading as TK Maxx)	Wakefield	638,745	Sept 15
Howden Joinery Group plc	Raunds, Northants	657,000	Oct 15
Matalan Retail Limited	Knowsley, Liverpool	578,127	Dec 15
Brake Bros Limited	Bristol	250,763	Mar 16
Argos Limited	Burton-Upon-Trent	653,670	Mar 16
DSG Retail Limited	Newark	725,798	May 16
Gestamp Tallent Limited*	Wolverhampton	543,692	Aug 16
Kellogg Company of Great Britain Limited	Manchester	311,602	Aug 16
Amazon UK Services Limited	Peterborough	549,788	Aug 16
Euro Car Parts Limited	Tamworth	780,977	Oct 16
Whirlpool UK Appliances Limited	Raunds, Northants	473,263	Oct 16
Co-operative Group Limited	West Thurrock	322,684	Oct 16
Screwfix Direct Limited	Fradley, Staffs	561,767	Dec 16
Hachette UK Limited	Didcot	242,067	Feb 17
Unilever UK Limited	Doncaster	262,885	May 17
Wm Morrisons Supermarkets Ltd	Birmingham	814,329	June 17
Royal Mail Group Limited	Atherstone	381,091	Sep 17
Royal Mail Group Limited	Daventry	272,603	Oct 17
Marks & Spencer plc	Stoke	382,594	Oct 17
DuneIm (soft furnishings) Ltd	Stoke	503,389	Oct 17
Cerealto (UK) Limited (Grupo Siro	Worksop	330,807	Nov 17
Corporative SL)	_		
Stobart Group Limited	Carlisle	314,981	Nov 17

#### **Financial & Capital Structure**

Debt is secured at the asset level and potentially at the Issuer level with or without a charge over some of all of the Issuer's assets, depending on the optimal structure for the Issuer and having consideration to key metrics including lender diversity, cost of debt, debt type and maturity profiles.

As at 30 June 2017, the REIT Group had £781.53 million of committed bank borrowings and £681.53 million of drawn bank borrowings, leaving available headroom under these facilities of £100 million. The facilities comprised a Syndicated Facility, the PGIM Facility, the Canada Life Facility, the Ocado Facility, the DHL Langley Facility and the DHL Skelmersdale Facility as detailed below. Each loan agreement benefits from security over a segregated set of assets of the Issuer and/or its subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2017, the REIT Group's loan-to-value ratio was 27.0 per cent., which reflected a decrease from 30.0 per cent. as at 31 December 2016.

The Issuer has a medium term target of its aggregate level of borrowings as a ratio of the RIET Group's gross assets of up to 40 per cent over the medium term.

As at 30 June 2017, the REIT Group's weighted average debt maturity was 5.0 years, which increases to 5.7 years if the extension options (subject to lender agreement) are assumed to be exercised on the Syndicated Facility. As at 30 June 2017, the REIT Group's weighted average capped cost of debt was 2.78 per cent. (compared to 2.82 per cent. as at 31 December 2016).

As the date of these Base Listing Particulars, the Issuer is seeking to refinance some of its bank borrowings, including the Syndicated Facility, with the proceeds from the first issue of Notes under the Programme and by entering into a new unsecured syndicated facility of up to £350,000,000.

#### **Material Contracts**

#### **PGIM** Facility Agreement

Pursuant to a facility agreement dated 28 February 2017 between: (1) certain of the Issuer's subsidiaries; (2) The Prudential Insurance Company of America as original lender; (3) The Prudential Insurance Company of America as agent; (4) The Prudential Insurance Company of America as arranger, and (5) The Prudential Insurance Company of America as arranger, the original lender made available a facility of up to £90,000,000 (the **PGIM Facility**). The PGIM Facility was used for refinancing Big Box assets and developing a forward funded development. The PGIM Facility is due to be repaid on 28 February 2027.

# Canada Life Facility Agreement

Pursuant to a facility agreement dated 3 August 2016 between: (1) certain of the Issuer's subsidiaries; (2) Canada Life Limited, London Life Insurance Company and Great-West Life & Annuity Insurance Company as original lenders; (3) Canada European Real Estate Limited as agent; (4) Canada European Real Estate Limited as security agent; and (5) Canada Life Asset Management Limited as arranger, the original lenders made available a facility of up to £72,000,000 (the **Canada Life Facility**). The Canada Life Facility was used for refinancing Big Box assets and is due to be repaid on 30 April 2029.

#### Syndicated Facility Agreement

Pursuant to a facility agreement dated 2 October 2015, certain of the Issuer's subsidiaries entered into facility agreements with Barclays Bank PLC, ING Bank N.V., London Branch, Landesbank Hessen-Thüringen Girozentrale, London Branch and Wells Fargo Bank N.A.,

London Branch in respect of the part re-financing of certain assets (as amended from time to time, the "**Syndicated Facility**"). Additional subsidiaries of the Issuer have since acceded to the Syndicated Facility Agreement and to the first ranking debenture. The amount available under the facility is £550,000,000 (and is subject to accordion provisions which allow for an increase up to £700,000,000, subject to the terms and conditions contained therein). The term loans made available under the Syndicated Facility are due to be repaid on 2 October 2020.

#### Ocado Facility Agreement

Pursuant to a facility agreement dated 13 July 2015 (the **Ocado Facility Agreement**) between (amongst others) Tritax Acquisition Limited as borrower and Helaba as original lender, agent, security trustee and original counterparty, Helaba made available a facility of up to £51,439,000 (the **Ocado Facility**). The Ocado Facility Agreement was amended on 29 July 2016. The Ocado Facility is split into two tranches, being the development facility (the **Development Facility**) and the investment facility (the "**Investment Facility**"). The Development Facility was used for financing or refinancing (as applicable) the project costs contemplated by the development appraisal in respect of a Big Box asset for Ocado Holdings Limited (the **Ocado Big Box**). Following the completion of the Ocado Big Box the Investment Facility was used to refinance the outstanding loans under the Development Facility. The Investment Facility is due to repaid the on 13 July 2023 with no options to extend.

# DHL Langley Facility Agreement

Pursuant to a facility agreement dated 17 November 2014 between (amongst others) Tritax REIT Acquisition 8 Limited as borrower and Helaba as original lender, agent, security trustee and original counterparty, Helaba made available a facility of up to £7,060,000 (the **DHL Langley Facility**). The DHL Langley Facility is to be used for refinancing a Big Box asset for DHL Supply Chain Limited in Langley, Nottingham and is due to be repaid on 19 November 2019.

#### DHL Skelmersdale Facility Agreement

Pursuant to a facility agreement dated 17 November 2014 between (amongst others) Tritax REIT Acquisition 9 Limited as borrower and Helaba as original lender, agent, security trustee and original counterparty, Helaba made available a facility of up to £11,600,000 (the **DHL Skelmersdale Facility**). The DHL Skelmersdale Facility is to be used for refinancing a Big Box asset for DHL Supply Chain Limited in Latham, Skelmersdale and is due to be repaid on 19 November 2019.

#### **Interests of Major Shareholders**

The Issuer is not aware of any person who as at 15 November 2017 (being the last practicable date prior to the publication of these Base Listing Particulars) directly or indirectly, jointly or severally, exercises or could exercise control over the Issuer, nor is it aware of any arrangements, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change of control by the Issuer.

#### The Big Box Market

# **Summary**

The Issuer believes that the Big Box logistics sector is one of the most attractive asset classes in the UK property market.

# Big Boxes are critical to their tenants

Big Boxes are highly efficient distribution centres and logistics hubs, which act as both the "break down point" for goods imported in bulk and which hold the finished goods for distribution to other parts of the supply chain or directly to consumers. This large scale format did not exist in the UK before the early 1990s and most high-quality Big Boxes are modern facilities constructed within the past 15 years. This latest generation of logistics assets are often technologically sophisticated and make a significant contribution to the local and national economy. This makes Big Boxes a firmly established and rapidly growing market and the Issuer has been at the forefront of its recent development.

Key unique characteristics of Big Boxes include:

- Strategically located: Big Boxes are usually situated close to major roads, motorways and potentially to airports, sea ports or rail freight hubs, allowing efficient stocking and onward distribution;
- *Modern*: Big Boxes are modern facilities typically constructed within the last 15 years incorporating modern designs and the latest specifications;
- *Technologically sophisticated*: Big Boxes often benefit from value enhancing capital investments by tenants in the form of state of the art automated handling;
- Very big: Big Boxes have floor areas generally between 300,000 and 1,000,000 sq. ft., with eaves heights of between 10 and 25 metres allowing for the installation of racking and mezzanine floors; and
- *Highly sought after*: Big Boxes are in demand from institutional-grade tenants who are willing to sign up to long leases, with regular upward only rent reviews, and from investors wanting to own the assets.

# Big Box market drivers

Demand for Big Boxes comes from three main sources: conventional and online retailers, third-party logistics companies (**3PLs**), and other companies such as manufacturers. These organisations are responding to structural changes in their markets, such as the rise of ecommerce, weaker economic growth and increased competition, which means that improving operational efficiency can be a key factor in determining profits.

Big Boxes offer previously unavailable flexibility, economies of scale and low cost of use. They are often the nucleus for distribution at a national level and increasingly at a regional level and can be the most important component of an occupier's supply chain. Many companies use Big Boxes to centralise previously dispersed distribution into fewer, larger facilities, helping to optimise staff and stock management and expand product ranges. This allows retailers to match store or online offerings in a single warehouse, which is not possible with smaller buildings. 3PLs are also focusing on Big Box assets to centralise multiple contracts, providing flexibility and allowing them to tender more competitively.

Low-bay buildings are typically used for food distribution. For non-food distribution, a tall building can allow for high racking and mezzanine floors, which can double or even triple the floor space. This additional volume can increase efficiency and flexibility, making Big Boxes

even more attractive to tenants, not least because rents are generally paid on the ground floor area only, as opposed to the building's volume.

To drive efficiency, occupiers increasingly invest in advanced systems that allow them to stock automatically and rapidly retrieve products, so they can operate on a "just in time" basis. Technological advances are resulting in Big Boxes becoming smarter. So called "four-dimensional" automation can pack complex online deliveries in the most efficient order possible. When customised to work with state of the art robotics, such technology drives efficiency savings of up to 20 per cent. The tenant will typically own the fit-out and their capital investment can be substantial, sometimes exceeding the value of the property. Such commitment to a location often goes hand-in-hand with either an initial long-term lease or a lease extension. This can be value enhancing, which the Issuer believes can be highly attractive to landlords.

These characteristics mean that Big Boxes can be both strategically and operationally important to their occupiers. Many retailers, 3PLs and manufacturers who want to remain commercially viable regard Big Boxes as a strategic necessity.

#### Big Boxes will remain vital as supply chains evolve

Supply chains continue to evolve in response to commercial demands which, in turn, impact on commercial property.

# Fragmented distribution

A major catalyst for change to UK supply chains was the transition towards the majority of production being outsourced to overseas, low cost economies, producing an increasing volume of cheap imports. Prior to this, domestically made products were held in store rooms on retail premises or in numerous small, simple and geographically dispersed industrial properties, each holding specific product line items representing only a small percentage of a retailer's total range, thus requiring multiple journeys. Such logistics frameworks are outdated and inefficient.

#### Centralised distribution

Pre-Millennium, some companies recognised the benefits of larger scale logistics hubs, known as National Distribution Centres (NDCs), from which a single building could be tasked with distribution across the UK. These buildings were typically below 400,000 sq. ft. in size. Increased road traffic congestion has made this model challenging and since the turn of the Millennium, the distribution model has evolved. Consequently, some NDCs have effectively morphed into Regional Distribution Centres (RDCs).

#### Big Box evolution

A natural compromise between these two former distribution models saw the emergence of RDCs which, due to their proximity to stores, effectively shortened the NDC supply chain and at the same time delivered cost savings and efficiencies not possible from the fragmented smaller unit model. Modern RDCs are often larger than the former NDCs; consequently, high street stores can hold less stock and dedicate more space to "showroom" sales. RDCs act as the "break down point" where bulk container loads of palleted goods (usually from ports) are reduced into manageable quantities, suitable for onward transportation to either smaller distribution centres, stores or direct to consumer households. The scale of RDCs allows them to handle slow, medium and fast moving goods.

#### Modern supply chains need Big Boxes

Changing consumer habits have placed pressure on retailers, resulting in the need for swifter and more reliable replenishment of stock in stores. In tandem, there has been an exponential growth in online retail sales with consumers demanding ever-faster deliveries. Retailers are increasingly combining both store and e-retail distribution, holding their full range of products within an RDC. This and the rising volume of product "returns" has contributed to the growth in larger buildings of up to approximately 1 million sq. ft. This scale can provide occupiers with significant operational efficiencies and cost benefits particularly when combined with "real time" ordering systems and extensive automation often necessary to deal with the complications of omni-channel supply chains. RDCs can efficiently cover much of the market, although for major cities they can also deliver stock to "Last Mile" or Urban Logistics Centres (ULCs), typically 50,000 to 100,000 sq. ft. ULCs usually hold only a very small percentage of a retailer's product line and these tend to be smaller sized products and those most consistently ordered.

# The rise of e-commerce and Omni-channel retailing

E-commerce sales in the UK have grown rapidly in recent years, with the result that many Big Boxes have become quasi-retail outlets. As a relatively small and densely populated nation, the UK is ideal for e-commerce and the penetration of online shopping is far higher than in other European countries. This is supported by ubiquitous access to smartphones and Wi-Fi, widespread availability of 4G and the introduction of new services allowing consumers to have packages delivered to convenient stores or lockers, rather than just their homes.

In addition to pure online retailers, growth is being driven by the expansion of Omni-channel retailing. This reflects consumers' desires to interact with retailers in different ways at different points in their transactions. Omni-channel retailers can therefore have physical, online and mobile stores, apps and telephone sales, all requiring fulfilment capabilities. New technology is changing how consumers interact with retailers. Amazon's Dash service, for example, allows consumers to order specific products by pressing a button. Smart appliances such as washing machines will, for example, be able to reorder detergents automatically.

The rapid growth in e-commerce sales is therefore expected to continue in the coming years, with eMarketer predicting that e-commerce will account for 23 per cent. of total retail sales in the UK by 2020, up from 13.0 per cent. in 2014. While the impact of Brexit on the UK economy remains uncertain, industry analysts expect that e-commerce will continue to grow, even if the retail sector as a whole remains flat. E-commerce therefore has resilient characteristics.

To remain competitive in this environment, retailers need to have large, highly efficient distribution facilities that can fulfil orders quickly and accurately. This need is only becoming more acute as customers demand ever-shorter delivery times. The importance of data to successful e-commerce operations means that Big Boxes dedicated to e-commerce increasingly also house the retailer's data and intelligence centres.

Information collection has become increasingly important for retailers. Bar code scanning at tills in store provides sales data and can trigger automatic re-stocking and the same principles apply to on-line sales. Cookies, collected when consumers "surf" the internet, provide additional intelligence which allows retailers to know what is being bought by whom, where and when. They also provide trending data that allows retailers to more accurately forecast changes in fashion which means they are able to pre-order product lines that are more likely to sell.

As the complexities of multi-channel retail grow, many retailers are combining the control point for these functions within Big Boxes. These facilities increasingly fulfil store-

replenishment alongside home deliveries, while also dealing with other channels such as click and collect. If store sales are reducing and e-commerce sales are increasing, the retailer can adjust for this within a Big Box far more easily than it can by operating those functions from smaller and separate single-focus warehouses.

# Growing retail demand in peak periods

Changing consumer shopping habits are also requiring retailers to cope with more pronounced surges in demand. Bank holidays and key shopping days before Christmas tend to see significant increases in online orders. According to IMRG, online retail sales on "Black Friday" in 2016 were up 12.2 per cent. on the previous year, to £1.23 billion. With retailers beginning their offers earlier, the four days before "Black Friday" also saw substantial spikes in demand, with significant sales growth each day against 2015.

The challenges these demand peaks create for online retailers are being exacerbated by the share of sales generated via e-commerce. The "Black Friday" week has seen e-commerce sales as a percentage of total sales increase from 33 per cent. to 48 per cent. in just two years. The Issuer believes that those with the quickest, most efficient and reliable ways of fulfilling consumer demand are best placed to benefit. At the same time, the ability to provide a trouble-free service can protect retailers' reputations from the damage caused by failed deliveries or long delays. The Issuer believes that Big Boxes have a crucial role to play in supporting retailers through these peak periods.

#### Other significant retail trends favour Big Boxes

The retail market is also developing in other ways that favour Big Boxes. Retailers want to make the most of their expensive high street store space, so they are carrying less stock instore and are focusing more on the consumer experience with the inclusion of enhancements such as in-store cafés. Retailers also use computerised sales tracking to automatically re-order stock and to respond rapidly to changing customer demand in quality and product type. At the same time, consumers are increasingly favouring smaller convenience stores for food shopping. These stores generally have very limited storage capacity. As online sales have increased, so has the amount of product being returned. Stores, with limited storage space, are ill-equipped to cope with the necessary checking and re-stocking of returned items. Invariably this function is fulfilled by Big Boxes, some of which have dedicated returns sections. Along with the rise of click and collect, these factors mean retailers need much greater control of stock and the timing and efficiency of deliveries to stores. Speed and reliability are crucial, which is where Big Boxes come into their own.

#### **Compelling market fundamentals**

#### Strong occupational demand and constrained supply

The strong occupier demand outlined above has led to high levels of take-up and there is a shortage of Big Boxes to let. Take up has, nonetheless, been constrained by low supply levels. Some key areas of the country currently have no new-build supply and there is no vacant modern Big Box currently available to let in the UK of greater than 500,000 sq. ft.. This creates opportunities for rising rents and increasing capital values for owners.

Supply is likely to remain constrained in the medium term as there is a significant lag in the supply of new Big Boxes.

Suitable land which can accommodate Big Boxes is scarce in key locations, which may not be zoned for employment use, let alone planning permission for distribution which can take years to secure. The scale of Big Boxes and the extent of traffic movements they generate can present planning challenges. In addition, Big Boxes require a pool of suitable workers in the

local area and have substantial power and infrastructure requirements, adding further complexity to site identification and delivery.

Once detailed planning consent has been obtained, however, the construction of a new Big Box can be relatively quick (typically 6-12 months) from the point where the site is serviced with suitable infrastructure. Tenant fit-out can then take a further three to 18 months, depending on the extent and complexity.

Despite the attractions of Big Boxes as an asset class, the amount of capital a developer would have to invest deters speculative development. While there is some speculative development of smaller buildings, the Issuer is not aware of any properties of over 500,000 sq. ft. that are currently being speculatively built (i.e. without a tenant pre-letting) and are aware of only one property over 500,000 sq.ft. that is currently planned to be speculatively built, with practical completion expected in late 2018. The level of occupier demand means developers can derisk their development upfront by agreeing a pre-let with a tenant, rather than going down the speculative route.

Building-to-suit on a pre-let basis creates opportunities for investors such as the Issuer to forward fund these developments and obtain brand new assets on long leases, to high-quality tenants.

## Rising rents

The combination of strong occupier demand driven by tenants looking to upscale their distribution facilities and capture the efficiencies they drive and a shortage of supply has resulted in positive rental growth in recent years, which the Issuer believes will continue for some time to come given the barriers to entry. In addition, build costs for Big Boxes have increased in 2016, for various reasons, including as a result of increased imported material costs, exacerbated by the fall in Sterling in the second half of 2016. While the demand-supply imbalance has been the main driver of rental growth to date, it is clear that cost inflation is also feeding through to rising rents and the Issuer expects this to continue in 2017.

Pre-let deals for Big Boxes can be agreed initially at a premium to the prevailing market rent due to the specific requirements of tenants and the shortage of available stock. Tenants are keen to secure the opportunity and developers seek to capture the benefit of anticipated rental growth between securing the pre-letting and delivering the completed building, which can be a year or so after agreeing terms.

# Driving investment values

The increased importance of Big Boxes to tenants and evidence of rental growth have heightened investment demand, compressing yields.

Historically, prime retail yields of around 4 per cent. were standard. This low yield reflected limited property fabric obsolescence and reliable rental growth from strong occupational demand. Industrial property attracted yields of 6.5 per cent. or more, due to higher perceived obsolescence and abundant land supply, which suppressed rental growth. More recently, for larger logistics buildings, land supply has become constrained.

As high street retail has come under pressure and demand for prime logistics has grown, prime yields in the two sectors have converged. The Issuer believes that this reflects a structural long-term yield repositioning.

Although yields have hardened for logistics, investors are still able to source attractive opportunities. In a low interest rate environment, property yields remain well above the cost of debt, maintaining a positive yield gap and a considerable premium to UK Government bond yields.

# **Board of Directors of the Issuer**

The directors of the Issuer, all of whom are non-executive, are listed below along with their principal functions and significant principal outside activities:

Name	Function	Significant Principal Outside activities
Richard Jewson	Chairman	Nomina No 195 LLP
		Temple Bar Investment Trust Plc
		Cloudview Holdings Limited
		Raven Russia Limited
Jim Prower FCA	Senior	Argent Investments LLP
	Independent Non-	Empiric Student Property Plc
	Executive	Empiric Student Property Trustees Limited
Mark Shaw FCA	Director Non –Executive	BRS Developments (Euro Central)
1/14/11 (31/4// 1 (31/	Director	<ul> <li>Tal Se Land Developments</li> </ul>
		Partnership LLP
		Tritax Developments Brookfields Park LLP
		Brookfields Park Syndicate LLP
		Magenta Oxford LLP
		Magenta Shepherd Bush LLP
		Magenta St Albans LLP
		Tritax Securities LLP
		Tritax Industrial 2 (General
		Partner) LLP
		Tritax Cobham Marlow (General Partner) LLP
		• 2010/2011 Brookfields Thetford (General
		Partner) LLP
		• 2010/2011 Cortonwood Retail (General Partner) LLP
		Aldershot Self Storage LLP
		Tritax Securities 1 Limited
		Opus Wines Limited
		Collective Investments Limited
		Grosvenor House (Telford)
		Management Company Limited
		Grosvenor House (Telford)
		Nominee No.1 Limited
		Brookstand 4 Limited
		Magenta Nottingham Limited
		Brookfields Park Holdings Limited
		Brookfields Contractors MA4 Limited
		Tedworth House Freehold Limited
		Lodge SS Limited
		Tritax Carry (GP) Limited
		Fairbridge Developments Limited
		Tritax Cobham Marlow (Nominee) LLP
		Ash Road SS Limited  Ash Road SS Limited
		Tritax Reit Acquisition 3 Limited
		Tritax Reit Acquisition 4 Limited
		Tritax Reit Acquisition 5 Limited  Tritax Reit Acquisition 5 Limited
		• Tritax Aberdeen HQ Office (General Partner)

Name	Function	Significant Principal Outside activities
		Limited  Tritax Prime Distribution Income (General Partner) Limited  Tal Investors Limited  Tritax Prime Distribution Income Nominee Limited  Acquisition 22 Limited  Tritax Reit Acquisition 23 Limited  Magenta Storage Limited  Shaw Thing Productions Limited  Magenta City Limited  TPIF (Portfolio No1) Nominee Limited
Susanne Given	Non-Executive Director	<ul> <li>Eurostar International Limited</li> <li>Susanne Given Limited</li> <li>Made.com Design Limited</li> <li>Al Tayer Group</li> <li>Push Doctor Limited</li> <li>Outfittery</li> </ul>
Aubrey Adams	Non-Executive Director	<ul><li> Group chair of L&amp;Q</li><li> British Land PLC</li></ul>

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London W1S 4PD.

None of the directors have any potential conflict of interest between their duties to the Issuer and their private interests or other duties, except to the extent that Mark Shaw is a partner of the Manager and SG Commercial, which has provided general property agency services to the REIT Group. All of the other directors are independent of the Manager and SG Commercial.

As a partner of the Manager, Mark Shaw shall not vote at any meeting of the Board on any matter in relation to which he may have a material interest or an actual or potential conflict of interest, specifically in relation to any matter relating to the Manager. In addition, Mark Shaw will not take part in any Board discussion related to matters regarding the Manager, where the independent directors make such a request. Further, Mark Shaw shall not take a fee for his role on the Board. A majority of the Board will at all times be independent of the Manager.

While there are currently no existing contractual arrangements between the Issuer and SG Commercial, the Issuer may choose to appoint SG Commercial in the future from time to time on either a sole or joint basis. Any such appointments have been and will continue to be made on normal market-based contractual terms. In the event that any such appointment is proposed by the Manager, the Board has and shall continue to be consulted and asked for the Board's approval. Mark Shaw does not vote at any meeting of the Board relating to contractual terms to be agreed between the Issuer and SG Commercial, nor with respect to any investment decision where SG Commercial is acting as agent in any capacity.

#### GLOSSARY OF KEY TERMS

Administration Agreement the administration agreement dated 18 November 2013

between the Issuer and the Administrator;

Administrator Capita Sinclair Henderson Limited (company number

02056193);

**AIFM** an alternative investment fund manager within the meaning of

AIFMD;

**AIFMD** Directive 2011/61/EU of the European Parliament and of the

Council of 8 June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund

Managers;

Basic NAV the value, as at any date, of the assets of the Issuer after

deduction of all liabilities determined in accordance with the accounting policies adopted by the Issuer from time to time;

**Big Box** a "Big Box" property or asset refers to a specific sub-segment

of the logistics sector of the real-estate market, relating to very large logistics warehouses (each with typically over 500,000 sq. ft. of floor area) with the primary function of holding and distributing finished goods, either downstream in the supply chain or direct to consumers, and typically having the following characteristics: generally a modern constructed building with eaves height exceeding 12 metres; let on long leases with Institutional-Grade Tenants; with regular, upward only rental reviews; having a prime geographical position to allow both efficient stocking (generally with close links to sea ports or rail freight hubs) and efficient downstream distribution; and typically with sophisticated automation

systems or a highly bespoke fit out;

**Board** the directors of the Issuer from time to time;

**Companies Act** the Companies Act 2006, as amended from time to time;

**CPI** consumer price index, a measure that examines the weighted

average of prices of a basket of consumer goods and services, such as transportation, food and medical care as calculated on

a monthly basis by the Office of National Statistics;

CTA 2010 the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and any statutory modification

or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force;

**EPRA** European Public Real Estate Association;

EPRA cost ratio administrative and operating costs (including and excluding

costs of direct vacancy) divided by gross rental income;

**EPRA NAV** the Basic NAV adjusted to meet EPRA requirements by

excluding the impact of any fair value adjustments to debt and related derivatives, and reflecting the diluted number of

Issuer's ordinary shares in issue;

FCA the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority (or any

successor entity or entities);

**FSMA** the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended

from time to time;

**HMRC** HM Revenue and Customs;

**Hachette Forward Funded** 

Development

a forward funded development of a new distribution centre at

Signa Park, Didcot, Oxfordshire;

**Howdens Forward Funded** 

**Developments** 

a forward funded development of distribution warehouse

facilities at Plots 6A and 6B, Warth Park, Raunds,

Northamptonshire;

**Issuer** Tritax Big Box REIT plc (company number 8215888);

Institutional-Grade Tenants tenants of sufficient size and stature that they merit attention

from large national or international investors;

**Investment Management** 

Agreement

the investment management agreement dated 2 July 2014

entered into between the Issuer and the Manager as amended

or supplemented from time to time;

**Investment Objective** the investment objective of the Issuer as detailed under

"Description of the Issuer and the REIT Group – Investment

Objective";

**Investment Policy** the investment policy of the Issuer as detailed under

"Description of the Issuer and the REIT Group – Investment

Policy";

**IPO** the admission of the share capital of the Issuer to trading on

the Specialist Fund Market and on the Channel Islands Securities Exchange and to listing on the Channel Islands

Securities Exchange on 9 December 2013;

Manager Tritax Management LLP (partnership number 0C326500);

Operating profit before changes in fair value of investment properties

net rental income less administrative and other expenses;

Portfolio the investment portfolio of the Issuer, as set out under

"Description of the Issuer and the REIT Group – Portfolio" (but excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the Howdens Forward Funded Developments and Wincanton/ITS, Harlow);

**Regulatory Information** 

**Service** a service authorised by the UK Listing Authority to release

regulatory announcements to the London Stock Exchange;

**REIT** a real estate investment trust to which Part 12 of the CTA

2010 applies;

**REIT Group** the Issuer and all of its subsidiary undertakings;

**RPI** retail price index, an inflationary indicator that measures the

change in the cost of a fixed basket of retail goods as calculated on a monthly basis by the Office of National

Statistics;

**Service Level Agreement** the service level agreement dated 20 December 2016 entered

into between the Issuer and the Manager as amended or

supplemented from time to time;

SG Commercial LLP (partnership number OC326498)

Substantial Shareholder any person whose interest in the Issuer, whether legal or

beneficial, direct or indirect, may cause any member of the REIT Group to be liable to pay tax under section 551 of the CTA 2010 (as such section may be modified, supplemented or replaced from time to time) on or in connection with the making of a distribution to or in respect of such person including, at the date of adoption of the Issuer's articles of association, any holder of excessive rights as defined in

section 553 of the CTA 2010;

**Tritax Group** the existing Tritax corporate entities, the Manager and the

associated companies and joint venture vehicles they have

acquired (but excluding the REIT Group);

Total Expense Ratio the ratio of the REIT Group's total administration and

operating cash costs to its average net assets over the period;

**Total Return** net total shareholder return, being the change in EPRA NAV

over the relevant period plus dividends paid; and

Wincanton/ITS, Harlow the logistics facility at Harlow Logistics Hub, Edinburgh

Way, Harlow.

#### DESCRIPTION OF THE ORIGINAL GUARANTORS

## **Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited**

#### Overview

Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited was incorporated in England and Wales on 14 September 2012 as a private limited company with company registration number 08215014. Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited is governed by the Companies Act 2006. Its registered office is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD, England, telephone number +44 207 290 1616. Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited changed its name from Tritax Income Real Estate Acquisition 3 Limited on 26 September 2012.

Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

#### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Position held
Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

#### **TBBR Holdings 1 Limited**

#### **Overview**

TBBR Holdings 1 Limited (**TBBRH1**) was incorporated in Jersey on 21 July 2015 as a registered private company with company registration number 119069. TBBRH1 is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. TBBRH1 is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

TBBRH1's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

#### Administration and Management

The directors of TBBRH1 and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/ or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to TBBRH1 by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

#### **TBBR Holdings 2 Limited**

#### **Overview**

TBBR Holdings 2 Limited (**TBBRH2**) was incorporated in Jersey on 21 July 2015 as a registered private company with company registration number 119070. TBBRH2 is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844830. TBBRH2 is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

TBBRH2's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of TBBRH2 and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to TBBRH2 by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

# Sherburn Trustee One Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of the Sherburn RDC Unit Trust

#### Overview

Sherburn Trustee One Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 5 December 2013 as a registered private company with registered number 114540. Sherburn Trustee One Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE. Sherburn Trustee One Limited is wholly owned by The Sherburn Charitable Trust.

The unit holders of the Sherburn RDC Unit Trust are Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd and Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd, which are indirectly-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Issuer.

Sherburn Trustee One Limited's primary business activity is to act as trustee of the Sherburn RDC Unit Trust.

#### Administration and Management

The directors Sherburn Trustee One Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held	
William Patrick Jones	Director	
Richard John Stobart Prosser	Director	
Karen Jane Benest	Director	
Brendan Dowling	Director	
Melanie Belle McEnery	Director	

The business address of the directors is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd and Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Sherburn Trustee One Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

# Sherburn Trustee Two Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of the Sherburn RDC Unit Trust

#### Overview

Sherburn Trustee Two Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 5 December 2013 as a registered private company with registered number 114541. Sherburn Trustee Two Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE. Sherburn Trustee Two Limited is wholly owned by The Sherburn Charitable Trust.

The unit holders of the Sherburn RDC Unit Trust are Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd and Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd, which are indirectly-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Issuer.

Sherburn Trustee Two Limited's primary business activity is to act as trustee of the Sherburn RDC Unit Trust.

#### Administration and Management

The directors Sherburn Trustee Two Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
William Patrick Jones	Director
Richard John Stobart Prosser	Director
Karen Jane Benest	Director
Brendan Dowling	Director
Melanie Belle McEnery	Director

The business address of the directors is St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd and Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Sherburn Trustee Two Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

#### **Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd**

#### Overview

Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd was incorporated in Jersey on 5 December 2013 as a registered private company with company registration number 114528. Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held	
William Patrick Jones	Director	_
Richard John Stobart Prosser	Director	
Karen Jane Benest	Director	
Brendan Dowling	Director	
Melanie Belle McEnery	Director	

The business address of the directors is St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of Sherburn Trustee One limited and Sherburn Trustee Two Limited, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

# Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd was incorporated in Jersey on 5 December 2013. as a registered private company with company registration number 114529. Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
William Patrick Jones	Director
Richard John Stobart Prosser	Director
Karen Jane Benest	Director
Brendan Dowling	Director
Melanie Belle McEnery	Director

The business address of the directors is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of Sherburn Trustee One limited and Sherburn Trustee Two Limited, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

#### **Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited**

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 28 May 2014 as a registered private company with company registration number 115825. Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

#### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

#### **Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited**

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 28 May 2014 as a registered private company with company registration number 115826. Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

#### **Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited**

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 1 August 2014 as a registered private company with company registration number 116356. Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

#### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held	
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director	
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director	
Henry Bell Franklin	Director	
Petrina Marie Austin	Director	
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director	

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 8 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

#### **Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited**

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 5 August 2014 as a registered private company with company registration number 116372. Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

#### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 9 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

# **Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited**

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 18 September 2014 as a registered private company with company registration number 116656. Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 10 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

# **Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited**

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 23 October 2014 as a registered private company with company registration number 116931. Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 11 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

# **Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited**

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 4 November 2014 as a registered private company with company registration number 117018. Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 12 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

# **Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited**

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 4 November 2014 as a registered private company with company registration number 117019. Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 13 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

# **Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited**

#### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 4 November 2014 as a registered private company with company registration number 117020. Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

#### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held	
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director	
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director	
Henry Bell Franklin	Director	
Petrina Marie Austin	Director	
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director	

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 14 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 6 February 2015 as a registered private company with company registration number 117758. Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 17 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 2 March 2015 as a registered private company with company registration number 117914. Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 18 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 27 March 2015 as a registered private company with company registration number 118138. Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 21 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 16 April 2015 as a registered private company with company registration number 118292. Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 22 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 16 April 2015 as a registered private company with company registration number 118293. Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 23 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 25 May 2016 as a registered private company with company registration number 121371. Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 28 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 6 December 2016 as a registered private company with company registration number 122726. Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 36 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 11 January 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 122944. Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 37 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited**

### Overview

Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 30 January 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 123042. Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited is governed by Companies Jersey Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 38 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited**

### Overview

Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 4 May 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 123794. Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 40 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

# **Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 4 May 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 123795. Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844 830. Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 20 September 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124757. Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 84487. Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 42 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 41 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.]

# **Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 17 October 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124934. Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 26 October 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 125028. Tritax Acquisition 43 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Acquisition 44 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Atherstone Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Atherstone Limited was incorporated in the England and Wales as Aequitas Estates (Midlands) Limited on 27 July 2015 as a private limited company with company registration number 09704147. It changed its name to Tritax Atherstone Limited on 25 September 2017. Tritax Atherstone Limited is governed by the Companies Act 2006. Its registered office is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Steet, London W1S 4PD, England, telephone number +44 207 290 1616. Tritax Atherstone Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Atherstone Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

## Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Atherstone Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Atherstone Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Atherstone Limited**

#### Overview

Tritax Atherstone Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 28 July 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124383. Tritax Atherstone Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Atherstone Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Atherstone Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

## Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Atherstone Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Atherstone Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Crewe Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Crewe Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 26 October 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 125030. Tritax Crewe Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Crewe Limited is a direct whollyowned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Crewe Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Crewe Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Crewe Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Carlisle Limited**

#### Overview

Tritax Carlisle Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 23 October 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124988. Tritax Carlisle Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Carlisle Limited is a direct whollyowned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Carlisle Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Carlisle Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Carlisle Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 26 October 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 125029. Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

## Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 3 July 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124196. Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 3 July 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124197. Tritax Littlebrook 2 Ltd is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Littlebrook 2 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 3 July 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124198. Tritax Littlebrook 3 Ltd is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Littlebrook 3 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 11 August 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124476. Tritax Littlebrook 4 Ltd is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Littlebrook 4 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Lymedale Limited**

#### Overview

Tritax Lymedale Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 30 March 2010 as a registered private company with company registration number 105392. Tritax Lymedale Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Lymedale Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Lymedale Limited was originally called RREEF Lymedale Limited and changed its name to Tritax Lymedale Limited on 20 May 2015.

Tritax Lymedale Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Lymedale Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Lymedale Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Peterborough Limited**

### Overview

Tritax Peterborough Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 26 July 2016 as a registered private company with company registration number 121797. Tritax Peterborough Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Peterborough Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Peterborough Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Peterborough Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Peterborough Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited

### **Overview**

Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 28 September 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124818. Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 28 September 2017 as a registered private company with company registration number 124819. Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade St Helier Jersey JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited's primary business activity is a holding company and does not carry on any operating business.

# Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited**

#### Overview

Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited was incorporated in Jersey on 3 August 2016 as a registered private company with company registration number 121849. Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited is governed by the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Its registered office is 13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey, JE1 1EE, telephone number +44 1534 844877. Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Park Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Baljean Properties Limited**

### **Overview**

Baljean Properties Limited (**Baljean**) was incorporated in the Isle of Man on 20 May 2010 as a private company limited by shares with company registration number 005393V. Baljean is governed by the Isle of Man Companies Act 2006. Its registered office is 33-37 Athol Street, Isle of Man, IM1 1LB, telephone number +44 1481 755 625. Baljean is an indirect whollyowned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Baljean's primary business activity is property investment.

## Administration and Management

The directors of Baljean and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Baljean by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Knowsley Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Knowsley Limited was incorporated in the Isle of Man on 7 July 2005 as a private company limited by shares with company registration number 113894C and was later reregistered under the Isle of Man Companies Act 2006 with new company registration number 013057V. Tritax Knowsley Limited is governed by the Isle of Man Companies Act 2006. Its registered office is 33-37 Athol Street, Douglas Isle of Man, IM1 1LB, telephone number +.+44 1481 755 625 Tritax Knowsley Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Knowsley Limited changed its name from LNC Developments Knowsley Limited to Delderfield (Knowsley) Limited on 9 August 2010 and subsequently to Tritax Knowsley Limited on 10 December 2015.

Tritax Knowsley Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

## Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Knowsley Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Knowsley Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Sonoma Ventures Limited**

#### Overview

Sonoma Ventures Limited was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 16 March 2011 as a private company limited by shares with company registration number 1637663. Sonoma Ventures Limited is governed by BVI Business Companies Act, 2004. Its registered office is Jayla Place, Wickham's Cay I, PO Box 319, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands VG1110, telephone number +44 1481 755 625. Sonoma Ventures Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Sonoma Ventures Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

## Administration and Management

The directors of Sonoma Ventures Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Sonoma Ventures Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited**

#### Overview

Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 4 July 2006 as a private company limited by shares with company registration number 1035960. Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited is governed by the BVI Business Companies Act 2004. Its registered office is Jayla Place, Wickham's Cay I, PO Box 319, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands VG1110, telephone number +1 284 393 1300. Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

This Guarantor changed its name from Mistaly Holdings Ltd. to Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited on 27 April 2016.

Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

### Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Burton upon Trent Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Worksop Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Worksop Limited was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 24 November 2006 as a private company limited by shares with company registration number 1066320. Tritax Worksop Limited is governed by the BVI Business Companies Act 2004. Its registered office is Jayla Place, Wickham's Cay I, PO Box 319, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands VG1110, telephone number +1 284 393 1300. Tritax Worksop Limited is an indirect whollyowned subsidiary of the Issuer.

This Guarantor changed its name from Peachey Property Limited to Tritax Worksop Limited on 1 May 2005.

Tritax Worksop Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

## Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Worksop Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Mark Glenn Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Worksop Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

## **Tritax Ripon Limited**

#### Overview

Tritax Ripon Limited was incorporated in Guernsey on 29 February 2000 as a non-cellular company limited by shares with company registration number 36449. Tritax Ripon Limited is governed by The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended. Its registered office is P.O. Box 25, Regency Court, Glategny Esplanade, St. Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 3AP, telephone number +44 1481 755 625. Tritax Ripon Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Ripon Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

## Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Ripon Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Mark Glen Bridgman Shaw	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Ripon Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

### **Tritax Harlow Limited**

### **Overview**

Tritax Harlow Limited was incorporated in Guernsey on 25 July 2011 as a non-cellular company limited by shares with company registration number 53795. Tritax Harlow Limited is governed by The Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, as amended. Its registered office is Regency Court, Glategny Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 3AP, telephone number ++44 1481 755 625. Tritax Harlow Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer.

Tritax Harlow Limited's primary business activity is property investment.

## Administration and Management

The directors of Tritax Harlow Limited and their significant principal outside activities are as follows:

Name	Position held
Henry Bell Franklin	Director
Petrina Marie Austin	Director
Bjorn Dominic Hobart	Director
Colin Richard Godfrey	Director
Mark Glen Bridgman Shaw	Director

The business address of the directors is Standbrook House, Fourth Floor, 2-5 Old Bond Street, London, W1S 4PD.

At the date of these Base Listing Particulars, other than as directors of other companies in the REIT Group, the Manager and/or SG Commercial, no potential conflicts of interest exist between any duties owed to Tritax Harlow Limited by its directors and their private interests or other duties and none of the directors has any significant principal outside activities.

As the Manager provides asset management services to other investors who may have a similar objective to that of the REIT Group, the activities of the directors of the Manager may, on occasion, give rise to conflicts of interest. So as to avoid conflicts of interest, the Manager manages its duties to the REIT Group pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement, which includes conflict provisions.

#### **TAXATION**

### **UNITED KINGDOM**

The comments below are of a general nature based on current United Kingdom law and Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs (HMRC) practice (which may not be binding on HMRC and may be subject to change, sometimes with retrospective effect) and are not intended to be exhaustive. They describe only certain aspects of the United Kingdom withholding tax treatment of payments of interest and of annual payments in respect of the Notes. They do not deal with any other United Kingdom tax implications of acquiring, holding or disposing of Notes, Coupons or Receipts. Prospective Noteholders, Couponholders and Receiptholders should be aware that the particular terms of issue of any series of Notes as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement may affect the treatment of that and other series of Notes. The following is only a general guide and should be treated with caution. Prospective holders are strongly advised to seek independent advice. This summary is based upon the law as in effect on the date of these Base Listing Particulars and is subject to any change in law that may take effect after such date.

Holders who may be liable to taxation in jurisdictions other than the United Kingdom in respect of their acquisition, holding or disposal of the Notes, Coupons or Receipts are particularly advised to consult their professional advisers as to whether they are so liable (and if so under the laws of which jurisdictions), since the following comments relate only to certain United Kingdom taxation aspects of payments in respect of the Notes, Coupons and Receipts. In particular, holders should be aware that they may be liable to taxation in relation to payments in respect of the Notes, Coupons or Receipts even if such payments may be made without withholding or deduction for or on account of taxation under the laws of the United Kingdom.

The references to "interest" in the comments below on United Kingdom withholding tax mean "interest" as understood in United Kingdom tax law. The comments do not take any account of any different definitions of "interest" which may prevail under any other law or which may be created by the terms and conditions of the Notes, Coupons or Receipts or any related documentation.

# UK withholding on interest paid by the Issuer

Interest may be paid by the Issuer on the Notes without withholding or deduction for or on account of UK income tax so long as the Notes constitute "quoted Eurobonds" within the meaning of section 987 of the Income Tax Act 2007 (ITA 2007). They will do so provided they carry a right to interest and provided they are listed and continue to be listed on a recognised stock exchange (designated as such by HMRC) within the meaning of section 1005 of the ITA 2007. The Irish Stock Exchange is a recognised stock exchange for these purposes. Securities will be treated as listed on the Irish Stock Exchange if they are included in the Official List and are admitted to trading on the Global Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange. Provided, therefore, that the Notes are and remain so listed, interest on the Notes will be payable without withholding or deduction on account of UK income tax.

Interest on the Notes may also be paid without withholding or deduction on account of UK income tax where the maturity of the Notes is less than 365 days and these Notes do not form part of a scheme or arrangement of borrowing intended to be capable of remaining outstanding for more than 364 days.

In other cases, interest paid by the Issuer on Notes will generally be paid subject to withholding or deduction on account of UK income tax at the basic rate (currently 20 per cent.), subject to the availability of reliefs or to any direction to the contrary from HMRC in respect of such relief as may be available pursuant to the provisions of any applicable double taxation treaty, and except that the withholding obligation is disapplied (unless HMRC direct otherwise) in respect of a payment which the Issuer reasonably believes is an excepted payment. For these purposes a payment will be an excepted payment if, inter alia:

- (i) the person beneficially entitled to the interest is a UK resident company;
- (ii) the person beneficially entitled to the interest is a non-UK resident company carrying on a trade in the UK through a permanent establishment which is within the charge to corporation tax as regards the interest;
- (iii) the payment is made to certain categories of recipient enjoying a special tax status (including charities and certain classes of pension funds); or
- (iv) a partnership consisting of such persons is beneficially entitled to the interest.

#### UK withholding on interest paid by a Guarantor

Depending on the correct legal analysis of payments made by a Guarantor as a matter of UK tax law, it is possible that payments by a Guarantor would be subject to withholding on account of UK tax at the basic rate (currently 20 per cent.), subject to any relief which may be available under applicable double tax treaties. Payments made by a Guarantor may not be eligible for the exemptions described above in relation to payments of interest.

#### FATCA DISCLOSURE

#### Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

Pursuant to certain provisions of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, commonly known as FATCA, a foreign financial institution (as defined by FATCA) may be required to withhold on certain payments it makes (foreign passthru payments) to persons that fail to meet certain certification, reporting or related requirements. The issuer may be a foreign financial institution for these purposes. A number of jurisdictions (including the United Kingdom) have entered into, or have agreed in substance to, intergovernmental agreements with the United States to implement FATCA (IGAs), which modify the way in which FATCA applies in their jurisdictions. Under the provisions of IGAs as currently in effect, a foreign financial institution in an IGA jurisdiction would generally not be required to withhold under FATCA or an IGA from payments that it makes. Certain aspects of the application of the FATCA provisions and IGAs to instruments such as Notes, including whether withholding would ever be required pursuant to FATCA or an IGA with respect to payments on instruments such as Notes, are uncertain and may be subject to change. Even if withholding would be required pursuant to FATCA or an IGA with respect to payments on instruments such as Notes, such withholding would not apply prior to 1 January 2019 and Notes characterised as debt (or which are not otherwise characterised as equity and have a fixed term) for U.S. federal tax purposes that are issued on or prior to the date that is six months after the date on which final regulations defining foreign passthru payments are filed with the U.S. Federal Register generally would be grandfathered for purposes of FATCA withholding unless materially modified after such date (including by reason of a substitution of the issuer). However, if additional Notes (as described under "Terms and Conditions-Further Issues") that are not distinguishable from previously issued Notes are issued after the expiration of the grandfathering period and are subject to withholding under FATCA, then withholding agents may treat all Notes, including the Notes offered prior to the expiration of the grandfathering period, as subject to withholding under FATCA. Holders should consult their own tax advisers regarding how these rules may apply to their investment in Notes. In the event any withholding would be required pursuant to FATCA or an IGA with respect to payments on the Notes, no person will be required to pay additional amounts as a result of the withholding.

### The proposed financial transactions tax (FTT)

The European Commission has published a proposal (the **Commission's Proposal**) for a Directive for a common FTT which is being considered by Belgium, Germany, Greece, Spain, France, Italy, Austria, Portugal, Slovenia and Slovakia (the **participating Member States**).

The Commission's Proposal has very broad scope and could, if introduced, apply to certain dealings in Notes (including secondary market transactions) in certain circumstances. Primary market transactions referred to in Article 5(c) at Regulation EC No 1287 2006 are expected to be exempt.

Under the Commission's Proposal the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both within and outside of the participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain dealings in the Notes where at least one party is a financial institution, and at least one party is established in a participating Member State. A financial institution may be, or be deemed to be "established" in a participating Member State in a broad range of circumstances, including (a) by transacting with a person established in a participating Member State or (b) where the financial instrument which is subject to the dealings is issued in a participating Member State.

The European Commission were expected to present draft legislation for consideration by the participating Member States by the end of 2016, but this has not yet been published. The FTT proposal remains subject to negotiation between participating Member States. It may therefore be altered prior to any implementation, the timing of which remains unclear. Additional EU Member States may decide to participate.

Prospective holders of the Notes are advised to seek their own professional advice in relation to the FTT.

#### SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

The Dealers have, in a Programme Agreement (such Programme Agreement as modified and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the **Programme Agreement**) dated 23 November 2017, agreed with the Issuer and the Original Guarantors a basis upon which they or any of them may from time to time agree to purchase Notes. Any such agreement will extend to those matters stated under "Form of the Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the Notes". In the Programme Agreement, the Issuer (failing which, the Original Guarantors) have agreed to reimburse the Dealers for certain of their expenses in connection with the establishment and any future update of the Programme and the issue of Notes under the Programme and to indemnify the Dealers against certain liabilities incurred by them in connection therewith.

#### **SELLING RESTRICTIONS**

#### **United States**

The Notes and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or the securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction of the United States and may not be offered or sold within the United States to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions exempt from or not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under the Securities Act.

The Notes in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or its possessions or to a United States person, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. Treasury regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder. The applicable Pricing Supplement will identify whether TEFRA C rules or TEFRA D rules apply or whether TEFRA is not applicable.

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that it will not offer, sell or deliver Notes (a) as part of their distribution at any time or (b) otherwise until 40 days after the completion of the distribution, as determined and certified by the relevant Dealer or, in the case of an issue of Notes on a syndicated basis, the relevant lead manager, of all Notes of the Tranche of which such Notes are a part, within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons except in accordance with Regulation S of the Securities Act. Each Dealer has further agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree, that it will send to each dealer to which it sells any Notes during the distribution compliance period a confirmation or other notice setting forth the restrictions on offers and sales of the Notes within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Until 40 days after the commencement of the offering of any Series of Notes, an offer or sale of such Notes within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with an available exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

Each issuance of Notes which are also Index Linked Notes or Dual Currency Notes shall be subject to such additional U.S. selling restrictions as the Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree as a term of the issuance and purchase of such Notes, which additional selling restrictions shall be set out in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

#### Prohibition of sales to EEA Retail Investors

From 1 January 2018, unless the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes specifies "Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that it has not offered, sold or otherwise made available and will not offer, sell or otherwise make available any Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated by the Base Listing Particulars as completed by the Pricing Supplement in relation thereto to any retail investor in the European Economic Area. For the purposes of this provision:

- (a) the expression **retail investor** means a person who is one (or more) of the following:
  - (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, **MiFID II**); or
  - (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2002/92/EC (as amended, the **Insurance Mediation Directive**), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or
  - (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended, the **Prospectus Directive**); and
- (b) the expression an **offer** includes the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Notes.

Prior to 1 January 2018, and from that date if the Pricing Supplement in respect of any Notes specifies "Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors" as "Not Applicable", in relation to each Member State of the EEA which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member State), each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the Relevant Implementation Date) it has not made and will not make an offer of Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated by these Base Listing Particulars as completed by the final terms in relation thereto to the public in that Relevant Member State except that it may, with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date, make an offer of such Notes to the public in that Relevant Member State:

- (a) at any time to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;
- (b) at any time to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive) subject to obtaining the prior consent of the relevant Dealer or Dealers nominated by the Issuer for any such offer; or
- (c) at any time in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive.

provided that no such offer of Notes referred to in (a) to (c) above shall require the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision:

- the expression an offer of Notes to the public in relation to any Notes in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Notes, as the same may be varied in that Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State; and
- the expression **Prospectus Directive** means Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended, including by Directive 2010/73/EU), and includes any relevant implementing measure in the Relevant Member State.

# United Kingdom

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that:

- (a) in relation to any Notes which have a maturity of less than one year, (i) it is a person whose ordinary activities involve it in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of its business and (ii) it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Notes other than to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or as agent) for the purposes of their businesses or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold, manage or dispose of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses where the issue of the Notes would otherwise constitute a contravention of Section 19 of the FSMA by the Issuer;
- (b) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any Notes in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer or the Original Guarantors; and
- (c) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

# British Virgin Islands

These Base Listing Particulars are not an offer to the public in the British Virgin Islands (**BVI**). No action has been taken to permit an offer in the BVI and these Base Listing Particulars are not a registered prospectus within the meaning of section 25 of the Securities and Investment Business Act, 2010 (**SIBA**).

The Programme will not be offered to or accepted from any person in the BVI unless: (a) that person is a Qualified Investor as defined in Schedule 4 of SIBA and, to the extent that person is a professional investor for the purposes of Schedule 4 of SIBA, it declares that (i) its ordinary business involves, whether for its own account or the account of others, the acquisition or disposal of property of the same kind as the Notes; or (ii) it has net worth in

excess of 1 million U.S. dollars or its equivalent in any other currency and that it consents to being treated as a professional investor within the meaning of section 40 of SIBA; or (b) that person is a BVI business company and neither these Base Listing Particulars nor any other document relating to this offer has been received by that person at an address in the BVI other than its registered office in the BVI; or (c) that person has a close connection (within the meaning of section 2(3) of SIBA) with the Issuer; or (d) that person is the Government of the British Virgin Islands.

#### Jersey

The Notes being offered may be offered or sold in Jersey only in compliance with the provisions of the Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Order 1958. These Base Listing Particulars do not purport to provide investment advice and shall not be construed as giving advice on the merits or suitability of the subscription or purchase of the Notes.

# Isle of Man

The Programme is available, and may be made, in or from within the Isle of Man and these Base Listing Particulars are being provided in or from within the Isle of Man only:

- (a) by persons licensed to do so under the Isle of Man Financial Services Act 2008 (FSA); or
- (b) in accordance with any relevant exclusion contained in the Regulated Activities Order 2011 or exemption contained in the Financial Services (Exemptions) Regulations 2011, both as amended 2013 and 2016 and made under the FSA.

The Programme referred to in the Base Listing Particulars and the Base Listing Particulars are not available in or from within the Isle of Man other than in accordance with paragraphs (a) or (b) above and must not be relied upon by any person unless made or received in accordance with such paragraphs.

#### Guernsey

Each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that:

- (a) the Notes cannot be marketed, offered or sold in or to persons resident in Guernsey other than in compliance with the licensing requirements of the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987 as amended, and the regulations enacted thereunder, or any exemption therefrom; and
- (b) the Base Listing Particulars have not been approved or authorised by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission for circulation in Guernsey. The Base Listing Particulars may not be distributed or circulated directly or indirectly to any persons in the Bailiwick of Guernsey other than (i) by a person licensed to do so under the terms of the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987, as amended, or (ii) if certain conditions are met to those persons regulated by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission as licensees under the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987, as amended, the Banking Supervision (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1994, the Insurance Business (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2002 or the Regulation of Fiduciaries, Administration Business and Company Directors etc. (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2000.

#### Japan

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan (Act No. 25 of 1948, as amended; the **FIEA**) and each Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to represent and agree, that it will not offer or sell any Notes, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (as defined under Item 5, Paragraph 1, Article 6 of the Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade Act (Act No. 228 of 1949, as amended)), or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, a resident of Japan, except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the FIEA and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.

#### General

Each Dealer has agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree, that it will (to the best of its knowledge and belief) comply with all applicable securities laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers Notes or possesses or distributes these Base Listing Particulars and will obtain any consent, approval or permission required by it for the purchase, offer, sale or delivery by it of Notes under the laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction to which it is subject or in which it makes such purchases, offers, sales or deliveries and neither the Issuer, the Original Guarantors, the Trustee nor any of the other Dealers shall have any responsibility therefor.

None of the Issuer, the Original Guarantors, the Trustee and the Dealers represents that Notes may at any time lawfully be sold in compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant to any exemption available thereunder, or assumes any responsibility for facilitating such sale.

#### **GENERAL INFORMATION**

#### Authorisation

The establishment of the Programme and the issue of Notes have been duly authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Issuer dated 15 November 2017. The giving of the Guarantee has been duly authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors of each Original Guarantor dated 21 November 2017.

#### **Listing of Notes**

Application has been made to the Irish Stock Exchange for the Notes to be admitted to trading on the Irish Stock Exchange's Global Exchange Market and to be listed on the Official List of the Irish Stock Exchange.

#### **Documents Available**

For as long as the securities are listed on the Official List of the Irish Stock Exchange and admitted to trading on the Global Exchange Market, copies of the following documents will, when published, be available for inspection in physical form from the registered office of the Issuer and from the specified office of the Paying Agents for the time being in London:

- (c) the memorandum and articles of association of the Issuer and the constitutional documents of each of the Original Guarantors;
- (d) the consolidated audited financial statements of the Issuer in respect of the financial years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, in each case together with the audit reports prepared in connection therewith. The Issuer currently prepares audited consolidated accounts on an annual basis;
- (e) the most recently published audited annual financial statements of the Issuer and the most recently published unaudited interim financial statements (if any) of the Issuer, in each case together with any audit or review reports prepared in connection therewith.) The Issuer currently prepares unaudited consolidated interim accounts on a semi-annual basis;
- (f) the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the forms of the Global Notes, the Notes in definitive form, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Talons;
- (g) a copy of these Base Listing Particulars; and
- (h) any future offering circulars, prospectuses, information memoranda, supplements and Pricing Supplements (save that Pricing Supplements relating to a Tranche of Notes which is not admitted to listing, trading and/or quotation on any listing authority, stock exchange and/or quotation system will only be available for inspection by a holder of such Note and such holder must produce evidence satisfactory to the Issuer or the Paying Agent as to its holding of Notes and identity) to these Base Listing Particulars and any other documents incorporated herein or therein by reference.

# **Clearing Systems**

The Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (which are the entities in charge of keeping the records). The appropriate Common Code and

ISIN for each Tranche of Notes allocated by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. If the Notes are to clear through an additional or alternative clearing system the appropriate information will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

The address of Euroclear is Euroclear Bank SA/NV, 1 Boulevard du Roi Albert II, B-1210 Brussels. The address of Clearstream, Luxembourg is Clearstream Banking, 42 Avenue JF Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg.

### **Conditions for determining price**

The price and amount of Notes to be issued under the Programme will be determined by the Issuer and each relevant Dealer at the time of issue in accordance with prevailing market conditions.

#### **Significant or Material Change**

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the Issuer or the REIT Group since 30 June 2017 and there has been no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of the Issuer since 31 December 2016.

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of each Original Guarantor since 30 June 2017 and there has been no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of each Original Guarantor since 31 December 2016.

### Litigation

Neither the Issuer nor any other member of the REIT Group is or has been involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Issuer is aware) in the 12 months preceding the date of this document which may have or have in such period had a significant effect on the financial position or profitability of the Issuer or the REIT Group.

None of the Original Guarantors is or has been involved in any governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Original Guarantors are aware) in the 12 months preceding the date of this document which may have or have in such period had a significant effect on the financial position or profitability of any Original Guarantor.

#### **Auditors**

The auditors of the Issuer are BDO LLP, a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, who have audited the Issuer's accounts, without qualification, in accordance with IFRS for each of the two financial years ended on 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015. The auditors of the Issuer have no material interest in the Issuer.

# Dealers transacting with the Issuer and the Original Guarantors

Certain of the Dealers and their affiliates have engaged, and may in the future engage, in investment banking and/or commercial banking transactions with, and may perform other services for the Issuer, the Original Guarantors and their affiliates in the ordinary course of business.

#### Trustee's action

The Conditions and the Trust Deed provide for the Trustee to take action on behalf of the Noteholders in certain circumstances, but only if the Trustee is indemnified and/or secured and/or pre-funded to its satisfaction. It may not always be possible for the Trustee to take certain actions, notwithstanding the provision of an indemnity and/or security and/or pre-funding to it. Where the Trustee is unable to take any action, the Noteholders are permitted by the Conditions and the Trust Deed to take the relevant action directly.

#### **Listing Agent**

Arthur Cox Listing Services Limited is acting solely in its capacity as listing agent for the Issuer in relation to Notes issued under the Programme and is not itself seeking admission of Notes issued under the Programme to the Official List of the Irish Stock Exchange or to trading on the Global Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange.

# **ISSUER**

Tritax Big Box REIT plc
Standbrook House
4th Floor 2-5 Old Bond Street London W15 4PD

# THE ORIGINAL GUARANTORS

Tritax REIT Acquisition 3 Limited	TBBR Holdings 1 Limited	TBBR Holdings 2 Limited
Sherburn Trustee One Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of The Sherburn RDC Unit Trust	Sherburn Trustee Two Limited in its capacity as joint trustee of the Sherburn RDC Unit Trust	Tritax Acquisition 2 Ltd
Tritax Acquisition 2 (SPV) Ltd	Tritax Acquisition 4 Limited	Tritax Acquisition 5 Limited
Tritax Acquisition 8	Tritax Acquisition 9	Tritax Acquisition 10
Limited	Limited	Limited
Tritax Acquisition 11	Tritax Acquisition 12	Tritax Acquisition 13
Limited	Limited	Limited
Tritax Acquisition 14	Tritax Acquisition 17	Tritax Acquisition 18
Limited	Limited	Limited
Tritax Acquisition 21	Tritax Acquisition 22	Tritax Acquisition 23
Limited	Limited	Limited
Tritax Acquisition 28	Tritax Acquisition 36	Tritax Acquisition 37
Limited	Limited	Limited
Tritax Acquisition 38	Tritax Acquisition 40	Tritax Acquisition 41
Limited	Limited	Limited
Tritax Acquisition 42	Tritax Acquisition 43	Tritax Acquisition 44
Limited	Limited	Limited
<b>Tritax Atherstone Limited</b>	Tritax Atherstone Limited	Tritax Crewe Limited
Tritax Carlisle Limited	Tritax Edinburgh Way Harlow Limited	Tritax Littlebrook 1 Limited
Tritax Littlebrook 2	Tritax Littlebrook 3	Tritax Littlebrook 4
Limited	Limited	Limited
Tritax Lymedale Limited	Tritax Peterborough Limited	Tritax Stoke DC1 & 2 Limited

### THE ORIGINAL GUARANTORS (continued)

Tritax Stoke DC3 Limited Tritax Merlin 310 Trafford Baljean Properties Limited

**Park Limited** 

Tritax Knowsley Limited Sonoma Ventures Limited Tritax Burton upon Trent

Limited

Tritax Worksop Limited Tritax Ripon Limited Tritax Harlow Limited

# TRUSTEE

**BNY Mellon Corporate Trustee Services Limited** 

One Canada Square London E14 5AL United Kingdom

# PRINCIPAL PAYING AGENT The Bank of New York Mellon

One Canada Square London E14 5AL United Kingdom

#### **REGISTRAR**

The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Luxembourg Branch

Vertigo Building – Polaris 2-4 rue Eugène Ruppert L-2453 Luxembourg

# **LEGAL ADVISERS**

To the Issuer and the Original Guarantors as to English law

**Ashurst LLP** 

Broadwalk House 5 Appold Street London NC2A 2HA

To the Issuer and the Original Guarantors as to Jersey, Guernsey, BVI and Isle of Man

**Appleby Global** 

13-14 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey JE1 1BD

To the Dealers and the Trustee as to English law Allen & Overy LLP

# One Bishops Square London E1 6AD

To the Dealers and the Trustee as to Isle of Man law

#### **Simcocks Advocates Limited**

Ridgeway House, Ridgeway Street Douglas, Isle of Man IM99 1PY

To the Dealers and the Trustee as to Jersey, Guernsey and British Virgin Islands law

### **Ogier LLP**

44 Esplanade, St. Helier Jersey JE4 9WG

#### **ARRANGER**

#### **Barclays Bank PLC**

5 The North Colonnade Canary Wharf, London E14 4BB

#### **DEALERS**

#### Banco Santander, S.A.

Cuidad Grupo Santander Edificio Encinar Avenida de Cantabria s/n 28660, Boadilla del Monte Madrid, Spain

#### **BNP Paribas**

10 Harewood Avenue London NW1 6AA United Kingdom

#### **HSBC** Bank plc

8 Canada Square London E14 5HQ United Kingdom

# ING Bank N.V.

Foppingadreef 7 PO Box 1800 1102 BD Amsterdam The Netherlands

# The Royal Bank of Scotland plc (trading as NatWest Markets)

250 Bishopsgate London EC2M 4AA United Kingdom

# Wells Fargo Securities International Limited

One Plantation Place 30 Fenchurch Street London EC3M 3BD United Kingdom

# LISTING AGENT

# **Arthur Cox Listing Services Limited**

Ten Earlsfort Terrace
Dublin 2
Ireland